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Standard & Poor’s “A (Stable Outlook)” Underlying

See “RATING” and “MUNICIPAL BOND INSURANCE" herein

In the opinion of Bond Counsel, under existing law and assuming continuing compliance by the School District with certain covenants intended to assure continuing
compliance with the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”), and all applicable regulations thereunder, interest on the Bonds (including
any original issue discount properly allocable to the owner of a Bond) is excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes and is not an item of tax
preference for purposes of the federal alternative minimum tax imposed on individuals and corporations; however, for the purpose of computing the alternative
minimum tax imposed on certain corporations (as defined for federal income tax purposes), such interest is taken into account in determining adjusted current
earnings. For the purpose of rendering such opinion, Bond Counsel has assumed compliance by the School District with all requirements of the Internal Revenue
Code of 1986, as amended, that must be satisfied subsequent to the issuance of the Bonds in order that the interest thereon be, and continue to be, excludable
from gross income for federal income tax purposes.

In the opinion of Bond Counsel, under the law of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania as presently enacted and construed, the Bonds are exempt from Pennsylvania
personal property taxes and the interest on the Bonds is exempt from Pennsylvania personal income tax and from Pennsylvania corporate net income tax. See
“TAX MATTERS” herein.
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Dated: Date of Delivery Principal Due: September 1, as shown on inside cover
Interest Due: March 1 and September 1 First Interest Payment: March 1, 2018

The New Castle Area School District's General Obligation Bonds, Series of 2017 in the aggregate principal amount of $9,995,000 (the “Bonds” or “2017 Bonds”)
will be issued as fully registered securities. The Bonds will be registered in the name of Cede & Co., as the registered owner and nominee of The Depository
Trust Company (“DTC”), New York, New York. Beneficial ownership of the Bonds may be acquired in denominations of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof only
under the book-entry only system maintained by DTC through its brokers and dealers who are, or act through, DTC Participants. The purchasers of the Bonds
will not receive physical delivery of the Bonds. For so long as any purchaser is the beneficial owner of a Bond, that purchaser must maintain an account with a
broker or a dealer who is, or acts through, a DTC Participant to receive payment of principal of and interest on the Bonds. See “BOOK-ENTRY ONLY SYSTEM”
herein. If, under the circumstances described herein, the Bonds are ever issued in certificated form, the Bonds will be subject to registration of transfer, exchange
and payment as described herein. The principal of the Bonds will be paid to the registered owners or assigns, when due, upon presentation and surrender of the
Bonds to The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A. (the “Paying Agent”), acting as paying agent and sinking fund depository, at its designated corporate
trust office in Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania. Interest on the Bonds is payable initially on March 1, 2018, and thereafter, semiannually, on March 1 and September 1
of each year, until the principal sum thereof is paid. Payment of interest on the Bonds will be made to the registered owners of the Bonds as of the Record Date.
(See “THE BONDS” herein.)

The Bonds are subject to optional redemption prior to maturity (See “REDEMPTION OF BONDS" herein).

The Bonds are general obligations of the New Castle Area School District, a public school district located in Lawrence County, Pennsylvania (the “School District”
or “District”), payable from local taxes, state subsidy and other general revenues. The School District has covenanted in the Resolution authorizing the Bonds,
as adopted by the Board of School Directors on August 21, 2017 (the “Resolution”), that it will budget in each year, and will appropriate from its general revenues
in each such year, the amount of the debt service due on the Bonds for such year and will duly and punctually pay or cause to be paid from the sinking fund
established under the Resolution, or any other of its legally available revenues or funds, the principal of every Bond, and the interest thereon, on the dates, at the
place and in the manner stated in the Bonds and for such budgeting, appropriation and payment the School District has irrevocably pledged its full faith, credit and
available taxing power, which taxing power includes the power to levy ad valorem taxes on all taxable real property within the School District, to the extent available
by law. (See “SECURITY FOR THE BONDS” and “PENNSYLVANIA ACTS AFFECTING CERTAIN LOCAL TAXING POWERS OF SCHOOL DISTRICTS",
including the description of the Taxpayer Relief Act (“Act 1”) and other legislation described herein.)

The proceeds to be derived by the School District from the issuance and sale of the Bonds will be used to provide funds to: (1) refund, on a current refunding
basis, all of the District's outstanding General Obligation Bonds, Series of 2010 in the principal amount of $1,265,000 plus accrued interest (the “2010 Bonds”); (2)
refund, on a current refunding basis, a portion of the District’s outstanding General Obligation Bonds, Series of 2012 currently outstanding in the principal amount of
$8,840,000, of which $8,345,000 will be refunded, plus accrued interest (the “Refunded 2012 Bonds”); and (3) pay all costs and expenses incident to the issuance
of the Bonds. (See “PURPOSE OF THE ISSUE” herein.)

The Bonds are an authorized investment for fiduciaries in the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania pursuant to the Pennsylvania Probate, Estate and Fiduciaries Code,
Act of June 30, 1972, No. 164, P.L. 508, as amended and supplemented.

The scheduled payment of principal of and interest on the Bonds when due will be guaranteed under an insurance policy to be issued concurrently with the delivery
of the Bonds by ASSURED GUARANTY MUNICIPAL CORP.

ASSURED
GUARANTY
MUNICIPAL
MATURITIES, AMOUNTS, RATES AND YIELDS/PRICES
See Inside Cover

The Bonds are offered for delivery when, as and if issued by the School District and received by the Underwriter, subject to prior sale and subject to the approving
legal opinion of Bruce E. Dice & Associates, of Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania, Bond Counsel, to be furnished upon delivery of the Bonds. Certain legal matters will be
passed upon for the School District by the Charles P. Sapienza, Jr., Esquire, of New Castle, Pennsylvania, School District Solicitor. PFM Financial Advisors LLC
of Harrisburg, Pennsylvania, will act as the School District’s Financial Advisor in connection with the issuance of the Bonds. It is expected that the Bonds will be
available for delivery in New York, New York, on or about November 8, 2017.

BOENNING & SCATTERGOOD INC.

Dated: October 4, 2017



Assured Guaranty Municipal Corp. (“AGM”) makes no representation regarding the Bonds or the advisability of investing in the
Bonds. In addition, AGM has not independently verified, makes no representation regarding, and does not accept any responsibility
for the accuracy or completeness of this Official Statement or any information or disclosure contained herein, or omitted herefrom,
other than with respect to the accuracy of the information regarding AGM supplied by AGM and presented under the heading
“MUNICIPAL BOND INSURANCE” and “Appendix C - Specimen Municipal Bond Insurance Policy”.

$9,995,000
New Castle Area School District

(Lawrence County, Pennsylvania)
General Obligation Bonds, Series of 2017

Dated: Date of Delivery Principal Due: March 1, as shown below
Interest Due: March 1 and September 1 First Interest Payment: March 1, 2018

BOND MATURITY SCHEDULE

Maturity Principal CUsIP
Date Amount Coupon Yield Price 6434420

3/1/2019 $65,000 2.000% 1.200% 101.039% MQ6
3/1/2020 $140,000 4.000% 1.350% 106.015% MR4
3/1/2021 $150,000 2.000% 1.500% 101.609% MS2
3/1/2022 $155,000 2.000% 1.700% 101.241% MTO
3/1/2023 $160,000 2.000% 1.900%  100.502% MU7
3/1/2024 $155,000 2.000% 2.080% 99.527% MV5
3/1/2025 $165,000 2.125% 2.280% 98.959% MW3
3/1/2026 $170,000 2.300% 2.430% 99.025% MX1
3/1/2027 $170,000 2.450% 2.580% 98.927% MY9
3/1/2028 $210,000 2.600% 2.750% 98.658% MZ6
3/1/2029 $255,000 2.700% 2.850% 98.555% NAO
3/1/2030 $265,000 2.800% 2.950% 98.458% NB8
3/1/2031 $270,000 3.000% 3.050% 99.453% NC6
3/1/2032 $2,475,000 3.000% 3.100% 98.848% ND4
3/1/2033 $2,555,000 3.050% 3.200% 98.192% NE2
3/1/2034 $2,635,000 3.100% 3.250% 98.109% NF9

@) The above CUSIP (Committee on Uniform Securities Identification Procedures) numbers have been assigned by an organization not
affiliated with the School District or the Underwriter and such parties are not responsible for the selection or use of the CUSIP numbers.
The CUSIP numbers are included solely for the convenience of bondholders and no representation is made as to the correctness of
such CUSIP numbers. CUSIP numbers assigned to securities may be changed during the term of such securities based on a number
of factors including, but not limited to, the refunding or defeasance of such issue or the use of secondary market financial products.
Neither the School District or the Underwriter has agreed to, and there is no duty or obligation to, update this Official Statement to
reflect any change or correction in the CUSIP numbers set forth above.
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No dealer, broker, salesperson or other person has been authorized by the School District or the Underwriter to give any information or to make any
representations, other than those contained in this Official Statement, and, if given or made, any such other information or representations may not
be relied upon as having been authorized by the School District or the Underwriter. This Official Statement does not constitute an offer to sell or the
solicitation of an offer to buy, nor shall there be any sale of the Bonds by any person in any jurisdiction in which it is unlawful for such person to make such
offer, solicitation or sale. This Official Statement has been approved by the School District and the information set forth herein has been obtained from
the School District and other sources which are believed to be reliable but is not guaranteed as to accuracy or completeness by, and is not to be
construed as a representation by, the Underwriter or, as to information from other sources, by the School District. The information and expressions of
opinion herein are subject to change without notice and neither the delivery of this Official Statement nor any sale made under this Official Statement shall,
under any circumstances, create any implication that there has been no change in any of the information set forth herein since the date hereof or the earliest
date of which said information is given.

IN CONNECTION WITH THE OFFERING OF THE BONDS, THE UNDERWRITER MAY OVERALLOT OR EFFECT TRANSACTIONS THAT STABILIZE
OR MAINTAIN THE MARKET PRICE OF THE BONDS AT A LEVEL ABOVE THAT WHICH MIGHT OTHERWISE PREVAIL IN THE OPEN MARKET.
SUCH STABILIZATION, IF COMMENCED, MAY BE DISCONTINUED AT ANY TIME. THE PUBLIC OFFERING PRICES STATED ON THE COVER
HEREOF MAY BE CHANGED FROM TIME TO TIME BY THE UNDERWRITER WITHOUT PRIOR NOTICE.

THE ORDER AND PLACEMENT OF THE MATERIALS IN THIS OFFICIAL STATEMENT, INCLUDING THE APPENDICES, ARE NOT TO BE DEEMED TO
BE A DETERMINATION OF RELEVANCE, MATERIALITY OR IMPORTANCE, AND THIS OFFICIAL STATEMENT, INCLUDING THE APPENDICES, MUST
BE CONSIDERED IN ITS ENTIRETY. THE OFFERING OF THE BONDS IS MADE ONLY BY MEANS OF THIS ENTIRE OFFICIAL STATEMENT.

THE UNDERWRITER HAS PROVIDED THE FOLLOWING SENTENCE FOR INCLUSION IN THIS OFFICIAL STATEMENT. THE UNDERWRITER
HAS REVIEWED THE INFORMATION IN THIS OFFICIAL STATEMENT IN ACCORDANCE WITH, AND AS PART OF, ITS RESPONSIBILITIES TO
INVESTORS UNDER, THE FEDERAL SECURITIES LAWS AS APPLIED TO THE FACTS AND CIRCUMSTANCES OF THIS TRANSACTION, BUT
THE UNDERWRITER DOES NOT GUARANTEE THE ACCURACY OR COMPLETENESS OF SUCH INFORMATION.

THE BONDS HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED WITH THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933,
AS AMENDED, NOR HAS THE RESOLUTION BEEN QUALIFIED UNDER THE TRUST INDENTURE ACT OF 1939, AS AMENDED, IN RELIANCE
UPON EXEMPTIONS CONTAINED IN SUCH ACTS. THE REGISTRATION OR QUALIFICATION OF THE BONDS OR THE RESOLUTION IN
ACCORDANCE WITH APPLICABLE PROVISIONS OF THE SECURITIES LAWS OF CERTAIN STATES, IF ANY, IN WHICH THE BONDS HAVE
BEEN REGISTERED OR QUALIFIED AND THE EXEMPTION FROM REGISTRATION OR QUALIFICATION IN CERTAIN OTHER STATES CANNOT
BE REGARDED AS A RECOMMENDATION THEREOF. NEITHER THESE STATES NOR ANY OF THEIR AGENCIES HAVE PASSED UPON THE
MERITS OF THE BONDS OR THE ACCURACY OR COMPLETENESS OF THIS PRELIMINARY OFFICIAL STATEMENT. ANY REPRESENTATION
TO THE CONTRARY MAY BE A CRIMINAL OFFENSE.

THIS OFFICIAL STATEMENT IS SUBMITTED IN CONNECTION WITH THE SALE OF THE SECURITIES REFERRED TO HEREIN, AND MAY NOT
BE REPRODUCED OR BE USED, IN WHOLE OR IN PART, FOR ANY OTHER PURPOSE. NEITHER THE DELIVERY OF THIS OFFICIAL
STATEMENT NOR ANY SALE MADE HEREUNDER SHALL UNDER ANY CIRCUMSTANCES AT ANY TIME IMPLY THAT THE INFORMATION
HEREIN IS CORRECT AS OF ANY TIME SUBSEQUENT TO ITS DATE.

Neither the School District's independent auditors, nor any other independent accountants, have compiled, examined, or performed any procedures with
respect to the forecasted information contained herein, nor have they expressed any opinion or any other form of assurance on such information or its
achievability, and assume no responsibility for, and disclaim any association with, the forecasted information.

If and when included in this Official Statement, the words “"expects,” “forecasts," "projects,” "intends," "anticipates," "estimates,” "assumes" and
analogous expressions are intended to identify forward-looking statements and any such statements inherently are subject to a variety of risks and
uncertainties that could cause actual results to differ materially from those that have been projected. Such risks and uncertainties which could
affect the revenues and obligations of the School District include, among others, changes in economic conditions, mandates from other governments
and various other events, conditions and circumstances, many of which are beyond the control of the School District. Such forward-looking statements
speak only as of the date of this Official Statement. The School District disclaims any obligation or undertaking to release publicly any updates or
revisions to any forward-looking statement contained herein to reflect any changes in the School District's expectations with regard thereto or any
change in events, conditions or circumstances on which any such statement is based.

The School District does not generally publish its business plans and strategies or make external disclosures of its anticipated financial position or
results of operations. Accordingly, the School District does not intend to update or otherwise revise the forecasted financial information to reflect
circumstances existing since its preparation or to reflect the occurrence of unanticipated events, even in the event that any or all of the underlying
assumptions are shown to be in error. Furthermore, the School District does not intend to update or revise the forecasted financial information to reflect
changes in general economic or industry conditions. Additional information relating to the principal assumptions used in preparing the projections is set
forth herein.



SUMMARY STATEMENT

This Summary Statement is subject in all respects to more complete information contained in this Official Statement. No person is authorized to detach
this SUMMARY STATEMENT from this Official Statement or otherwise use it without the entire Official Statement.

[ U= SR New Castle Area School District, Lawrence County, Pennsylvania (the “School District” or “District”).

The BONdS.....coooeeeiiieeiiieeeieeee General Obligation Bonds, Series of 2017 (the “Bonds” or the “2017 Bonds”), in the aggregate principal amount of
$9,995,000. The Bonds are initially dated the Date of Delivery, and will mature as shown in the BOND MATURITY
SCHEDULE shown on Page ii of this Official Statement. Interest on the Bonds will begin to accrue on the Date of
Delivery, and is payable initially on March 1, 2018, and on each March 1 and September 1 thereafter. (See “THE
BONDS” herein.)

Redemption Provisions ............. The Bonds are subject to optional redemption prior to their stated dates of maturity. (See “REDEMPTION OF
THE BONDS” herein.)

Form of Bonds.......ccccccveiienncns Book-entry form only.

Purpose of the Issue The proceeds to be derived by the School District from the issuance and sale of the Bonds will be used to provide
funds to: (1) refund, on a current refunding basis, all of the District’'s outstanding General Obligation Bonds, Series
of 2010 in the principal amount of $1,265,000 plus accrued interest (the “2010 Bonds”); (2) refund, on a current
refunding basis, a portion of the District's outstanding General Obligation Bonds, Series of 2012 currently
outstanding in the principal amount of $8,840,000, of which $8,345,000 will be refunded, plus accrued interest (the
“Refunded 2012 Bonds”); and (3) pay all costs and expenses incident to the issuance of the Bonds. (See
“PURPOSE OF THE ISSUE” herein.)

Security for the Bonds THE 2017 BONDS ARE GENERAL OBLIGATIONS OF THE NEW CASTLE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT, A
PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT LOCATED IN LAWRENCE COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA, PAYABLE FROM
LOCAL TAXES, STATE SUBSIDY AND OTHER GENERAL REVENUES. THE SCHOOL DISTRICT HAS
COVENANTED IN THE RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE BONDS, AS ADOPTED BY THE BOARD OF
SCHOOL DIRECTORS ON AUGUST 21, 2017 (THE “RESOLUTION") THAT IT WILL BUDGET IN EACH
YEAR, AND WILL APPROPRIATE FROM ITS GENERAL REVENUES IN EACH SUCH YEAR, THE AMOUNT
OF THE DEBT SERVICE DUE ON THE BONDS FOR SUCH YEAR AND WILL DULY AND PUNCTUALLY PAY
OR CAUSE TO BE PAID FROM THE SINKING FUND ESTABLISHED UNDER THE RESOLUTION OR ANY
OTHER OF ITS LEGALLY AVAILABLE REVENUES OR FUNDS THE PRINCIPAL OF EVERY BOND AND THE
INTEREST THEREON ON THE DATES, AT THE PLACE AND IN THE MANNER STATED IN THE BONDS,
AND FOR SUCH BUDGETING, APPROPRIATION AND PAYMENT THE SCHOOL DISTRICT HAS
IRREVOCABLY PLEDGED ITS FULL FAITH, CREDIT AND AVAILABLE TAXING POWER, WHICH TAXING
POWER INCLUDES THE POWER TO LEVY AD VALOREM TAXES ON ALL TAXABLE REAL PROPERTY
WITHIN THE SCHOOL DISTRICT, TO THE EXTENT AVAILABLE BY LAW. (SEE “SECURITY FOR THE
BONDS” AND “PENNSYLVANIA ACTS AFFECTING CERTAIN LOCAL TAXING POWERS OF SCHOOL
DISTRICTS” INCLUDING THE DESCRIPTION OF THE TAXPAYER RELIEF ACT (“ACT 1") AND
OTHER LEGISLATION DESCRIBED HEREIN.)

Credit Enhancement ................. The scheduled payment of principal of and interest on the Bonds when due will be guaranteed under a municipal
bond insurance policy to be issued concurrently with the delivery of the Bonds by Assured Guaranty Municipal
Corp. (See “MUNICIPAL BOND INSURANCE" herein.)

Bond Rating .......ccocevvvvveeiiiieennns The Bonds are expected to receive a credit rating of “AA (Stable Outlook)” from S&P Global Ratings, New York,
New York, (“S&P”) with the understanding that the above-described municipal bond insurance policy will be issued
at the time of settlement of the Bonds. S&P has also assigned its underlying rating of “A (Stable Outlook)” to the
Bonds. (See “RATING" herein.)

Continuing Disclosure
Undertaking ................ The District has agreed to provide, or cause to be provided, in a timely manner, certain information in accordance
with the requirements of Rule 15c2-12, as promulgated under the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended and interpreted (the "Rule"). (See “CONTINUING DISCLOSURE UNDERTAKING" herein.)



This Table of Contents is for convenience of reference only and does not list all of the subjects in this Official Statement. In all instances reference should be made
to the complete Official Statement to determine the subjects discussed in it. The order and placement of material in the Official Statement, including the
Appendices, are not to be deemed to be a determination of relevance, materiality or importance and this Official Statement including Appendices must be
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OFFICIAL STATEMENT

$9,995,000

New Castle Area School District
Lawrence County, Pennsylvania
General Obligation Bonds, Series of 2017

INTRODUCTION

This Official Statement, including the cover and inside cover pages hereof and Appendices hereto, is furnished by the
New Castle Area School District (the “School District” or “District”), a public school district located in Lawrence County,
Pennsylvania, in connection with the offering of its General Obligation Bonds, Series of 2017 in the aggregate principal amount
of $9,995,000 (the “Bonds” or the “2017 Bonds”). The Bonds are being issued pursuant to a Resolution of the Board of School
Directors of the School District adopted on August 21, 2017 (the "Resolution"), and pursuant to the Local Government Unit
Debt Act of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania (the “Commonwealth”), 53 Pa. C.S. A. 88001 et seq., as amended (the “Act”).

The Bonds shall be issued in denominations of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof. Interest on the Bonds is payable
semiannually on March 1 and September 1 of each year, commencing March 1, 2018. Subject to the applicable provisions for
Book-Entry payment of the Bonds, interest on any Bond is payable to the registered owner which appears on the registration
books of the Paying Agent on the appropriate Record Date as described below. The principal of the Bonds is payable at the
corporate trust office of The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A. located in Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania (the "Paying
Agent" or “Sinking Fund Depository”). The Bonds are only transferable on the registration books maintained by the Paying Agent
upon presentation and surrender thereof (see "THE BONDS" herein). The Bonds are subject to optional redemption as stated
herein.

The information which follows contains summaries of the Resolution, the Bonds, relevant provisions of state and
federal laws, and the School District’'s budget and financial statements, among others. Such summaries do not purport to be
complete and reference is made to the Resolution, the School District's budget and financial statements and other documents,
copies of which are on file and available for examination at the offices of the School District. Reference is also made to the
Bonds and to the full text of the cited laws and regulations.

Neither the delivery of this Official Statement nor any sale of the Bonds made hereunder shall, under any
circumstances, create any implication that thereafter there have been no changes in the affairs of the School District
since the date of this Official Statement or the earliest date as of which certain information contained herein is given.

PURPOSE OF THE ISSUE

The proceeds to be derived by the School District from the issuance and sale of the Bonds will be used to provide
funds to: (1) refund, on a current refunding basis, all of the District’'s outstanding General Obligation Bonds, Series of 2010 in
the principal amount of $1,265,000 plus accrued interest (the “2010 Bonds”); (2) refund, on a current refunding basis, a portion
of the District's outstanding General Obligation Bonds, Series of 2012 currently outstanding in the principal amount of
$8,840,000, of which $8,345,000 will be refunded, plus accrued interest (the “Refunded 2012 Bonds”); and (3) pay all costs
and expenses incident to the issuance of the Bonds.



Sources and Uses of Bond Proceeds

The following is a summary of the sources and uses of the proceeds from the issuance of the Bonds.

Sources of Funds Total

Bond Principal Amount $9,995,000.00

Net Original Issue Premium/(Discount) (128,296.20)
Total $9,866,703.80

Uses of Funds

Amount to retire the 2010 Bonds $1,273,757.69
Amountto retire the Refunded 2012 Bonds 8,400,543.47
Cost of Issuance (1) 184,476.04
Miscellaneous Expenses/Rounding $7,926.60

Total $9,866,703.80

@Includes, but not limited to: legal, bond discount, financial advisor, printing, rating, CUSIP, paying agent, dissemination
agent, bond insurance premium and miscellaneous costs.

Future Financing

The School District may issue approximately $2,000,000 for a variety of repair and renovation projects within the next
3 years.

THE BONDS
Description: Payment of Principal and Interest

The Bonds will be issued in registered form, without coupons, in denominations of $5,000 principal amount and
integral multiples thereof, will be in the aggregate principal amount of $9,995,000 and will be dated the date of delivery, when
interest begins to accrue. The Bonds will bear interest at the rates and mature in the amounts and on the dates set forth on
the inside front cover of this Official Statement. Interest on each of the Bonds will be payable initially on March 1, 2018, and
thereafter, semiannually on March 1 and September 1 of each year until the maturity date of such Bond or, if such Bond is
subject to redemption prior to maturity, until the date fixed for redemption thereof, if payment of the redemption price has been
duly made or provided for.

When issued, the Bonds will be registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee for The Depository Trust
Company (“DTC”), New York, New York. Purchasers of the Bonds (the “Beneficial Owners”) will not receive any physical
delivery of Bond certificates, and beneficial ownership of the Bonds will be evidenced only by book entries. Each Beneficial
Owner of a Bond may desire to make arrangements with a DTC Participant to receive notices or communications with respect
to matters described herein. See “BOOK — ENTRY ONLY SYSTEM” herein.

So long as Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC, is the registered owner of the Bonds, payments of principal of,
redemption premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds, when due, are to be made to DTC, and all such payments shall be
valid and effective to satisfy fully and to discharge the obligations of the School District with respect to, and to the extent of,
principal, redemption premium, if any, and interest so paid. If the use of the Book-Entry Only System for the Bonds is
discontinued for any reason, Bond certificates will be issued to the Beneficial Owners of the Bonds and payment of principal,
redemption premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds shall be made as described in the following paragraphs:

The principal of certificated Bonds, when due upon maturity or upon any earlier redemption, will be paid to the
registered owners of such Bonds, or registered assigns, upon surrender of such Bonds to The Bank of New York Mellon Trust
Company, N.A., Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania (the “Paying Agent”), acting as paying agent and sinking fund depository for the
Bonds, at its specified corporate trust office (or to any successor paying agent or alternate designated office(s)). Interest on
each of the Bonds will be payable initially on March 1, 2018, and thereafter, semiannually, on March 1 and September 1 of
each year until the maturity date of such Bond or, if such Bond is subject to redemption prior to maturity, until the date fixed for
redemption thereof, if payment of the redemption price has been duly made or provided for. Interest shall be computed on the
basis of a 30-day month and a 360-day year.



Interest will be payable to the registered owner of a Bond from the interest payment date next preceding the date of
registration and authentication of such Bond, unless: (a) such Bond is registered and authenticated as of an interest payment
date, in which event such Bond shall bear interest from said interest payment date, or (b) such Bond is registered and
authenticated after a Record Date (hereinafter defined) and before the next succeeding interest payment date, in which event
such Bond shall bear interest from such interest payment date, or (¢) such Bond is registered and authenticated on or prior to
the Record Date preceding March 1, 2018, in which event such Bond shall bear interest from the date of delivery, or (d) as
shown by the records of the Paying Agent, interest on such Bond shall be in default, in which event such Bond shall bear
interest from the date to which interest was last paid on such Bond. Interest on each certificated Bond will be payable by
check drawn on the Paying Agent, which shall be mailed to the registered owner whose name and address shall appear, at the
close of business on the fifteenth (15") day (whether or not a day on which the Paying Agent is open for business) next
preceding each interest payment date (the “Record Date”), on the registration books maintained by the Paying Agent,
irrespective of any transfer or exchange of such Bond subsequent to such Record Date and prior to such interest payment
date, unless the School District shall be in default in payment of interest due on such interest payment date. In the event of
any such default, such defaulted interest shall be payable to the person in whose name such certificated Bond is registered at
the close of business on a special record date for the payment of such defaulted interest established by notice mailed by the
Paying Agent to the registered owners of such Bonds not less than fifteen (15) days preceding such special record date. Such
notice shall be mailed to the persons in whose names such Bonds are registered at the close of business on the fifth (5 day
preceding the date of mailing.

If the date for payment of the principal of or interest on any Bonds shall be a Saturday, Sunday, legal holiday or a day
on which banking institutions in the Commonwealth are authorized or required by law or executive order to close, then the date
for payment of such principal or interest shall be the next succeeding day which is not a Saturday, Sunday, legal holiday or a
day on which such banking institutions are authorized or required to close, and payment on such date shall have the same
force and effect as if made on the nominal date established for such payment.

Transfer, Exchange and Registration of Bonds

Subject to the provisions described below under “Book-Entry Only System,” certificated Bonds are transferable or
exchangeable upon surrender of such Bonds to the Paying Agent, accompanied by a written instrument or instruments in form,
with instructions, and with guaranty of signature satisfactory to the Paying Agent, duly executed by the registered owner of
such Bond or his attorney-in-fact or legal representative. The Paying Agent shall enter any transfer of ownership of certificated
Bonds in the registration books and shall authenticate and deliver at the earliest practicable time in the name of the transferee
or transferees a new fully registered Bond or Bonds of authorized denominations of the same series, maturity date and interest
rate for the aggregate principal amount which the registered owner is entitled to receive. The School District and the Paying
Agent may deem and treat the registered owner of such Bond as the absolute owner thereof (whether or not a Bond shall be
overdue) for the purpose of receiving payment of or on account of principal and interest and for all other purposes, and the
School District and the Paying Agent shall not be affected by any notice to the contrary.

Bonds may be exchanged for a like aggregate principal amount of Bonds of other authorized denominations of the
same series, maturity date and interest rate.

Neither the School District nor the Paying Agent shall be required (a) to register the transfer of or exchange of any
Bonds then considered for redemption during a period beginning at the close of business on the fifteenth (15") day next
preceding any date of selection of Bonds to be redeemed and ending at the close of business on the day on which the
applicable notice of redemption is mailed or (b) to register the transfer of or exchange any portion of any Bond selected for
redemption until after the redemption date or (c) to register the transfer of or to exchange any Bond during the period
beginning at the close of business on the fifteenth day preceding the date of maturity of the Bond and ending at the close of
business on the date of maturity. Bonds may be exchanged for a like aggregate principal amount of Bonds of other authorized
denominations of the same series, maturity and interest rate.



SECURITY FOR THE BONDS
General Obligation Pledge

The Bonds are general obligations of the School District and are payable from its local taxes, state subsidies and
other general revenues. The School District has covenanted in the Resolution that it will provide in its budget for each year,
and will appropriate from its general revenues in each such year, the amount of the debt service due on the Bonds for such
year, and will duly and punctually pay or cause to be paid from its Sinking Fund, as hereinafter defined, or any other of its
revenues or funds, the principal of each of the Bonds and the interest thereon at the dates and place and in the manner stated
on the Bonds, and for such budgeting, appropriation and payment the School District irrevocably has pledged its full faith,
credit and available taxing power, which taxing power presently includes ad valorem taxes on all taxable property within the
School District, within limitations provided by law. (See “TAXING POWERS AND LIMITS” and “PENNSYLVANIA ACTS
AFFECTING CERTAIN LOCAL TAXING POWERS OF SCHOOL DISTRICTS” herein.) The Debt Act presently provides for
enforcement of debt service payments as hereinafter described (see “Actions in the Event of Default on the Bonds” herein),
and the Public School Code presently provides for the withholding and application of subsidies in the event of failure to pay
debt service (see “State Subsidy Intercept Under Section 633 of the Pennsylvania School Code” herein).

Sinking Fund

A sinking fund for the payment of debt service on the Bonds, which may be designated New Castle Area School
District “Sinking Fund, General Obligation Bonds, Series of 2017” (the “Sinking Fund”), has been created in accordance with
the Resolution and will be maintained by the Paying Agent, as sinking fund depository. The School District shall deposit in the
Sinking Fund a sufficient sum not later than the date when interest and/or principal is to become due on the Bonds (or such
earlier date as may be required by the Bond Insurer) so that on each payment date the Sinking Fund will contain an amount
which, together with any other funds available therein, is sufficient to pay, in full, interest and principal then due on the Bonds.

The Sinking Fund shall be held by the Paying Agent, as sinking fund depository, and invested by the Paying Agent as
authorized by the Debt Act and upon direction of the School District. Such deposits and securities shall be in the name of the
School District, but subject to withdrawal or collection only by the Paying Agent, as sinking fund depository, and such deposits
and securities, together with the interest thereon, shall be a part of the Sinking Fund.

The Paying Agent, as sinking fund depository, is authorized without further order from the School District to pay from
the Sinking Fund the principal of and interest on the Bonds, as and when due and payable.

State Subsidy Intercept under Section 633 of the Pennsylvania School Code

Section 633 of the Pennsylvania Public School Code of 1949, as amended by Act 154 of 1998 (the “Public School
Code"), presently provides that in all cases where the board of school directors of any school district fails to pay or to provide
for the payment of any indebtedness on the date of maturity or date of mandatory redemption or on any sinking fund deposit
date, or any interest due on such indebtedness on any interest payment date or on any sinking fund deposit date, in
accordance with the schedule under which the Bonds were issued, the Secretary of Education shall notify such board of
school directors of its obligation and shall withhold out of any State appropriation due such school district an amount equal to
the sum of the principal amount maturing or subject to mandatory redemption and interest owing by such school district, or
sinking fund deposit due by such school district, and shall pay over the amount so withheld to the bank or other person acting
as sinking fund depository for such bond issue. These withholding provisions are not part of any contract with the holders of
the Bonds, and may be amended or repealed by future legislation.

The effectiveness of Section 633 of the Public School Code may be limited by the application of other withholding
provisions contained in the Public School Code, such as provisions for withholding and paying over of appropriations for
payment of unpaid teachers’ salaries. Enforcement may also be limited by bankruptcy, insolvency, or other laws or equitable
principles affecting the enforcement of creditors’ rights generally (see “Pennsylvania Budget Adoption” hereinafter).

Pennsylvania Budget Adoption

Over the past several years the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania has, from time to time, started its fiscal year without a
fully adopted state budget. In the State’s 2015-16 fiscal year, a final budget was not enacted until 270 days following the
beginning of the fiscal year on March 27, 2016 when the Governor failed to sign or veto the state budget that was adopted by
the General Assembly on March 17, 2016.

For the 2016-17 fiscal year, the state budget became law, known as Act 16A of 2016, on July 12, 2016 when the
Governor failed to sign or veto the state budget that was adopted by the General Assembly on July 1, 2016. On July 13, 2016,
the General Assembly adopted and the Governor signed into law an additional tax and revenue package, known as Act 85 of
2016, which was needed to balance the 2016-17 state budget.



During a state budget impasse, school districts in Pennsylvania cannot be certain that state subsidies and revenues
owed them from the Commonwealth will become available. This includes many of the major state subsidies, and overall
revenues, that a Pennsylvania school district receives including basic education funding, special education funding, PlanCon
reimbursements, and certain block grants, among many others. Future budget impasses may affect the timeliness or
amount of payments by the Commonwealth under the withholding provisions of Section 633 of the Public School
Code, as described above. However recent legislation included in Act 85 of 2016 has attempted to address the
timeliness of the withholding provisions of Section 633 of the Public School Code during any future budget impasses
(see “Act 85 of 2016” hereinafter).

For the 2017-18 fiscal year, the state budget became law, known as Act 1A of 2017, on July 11, 2017 when the
Governor failed to sign or veto the state budget that was adopted by the General Assembly on June 30, 2017. Since that time,
the General Assembly has considered, but has not yet adopted, any tax and revenue package, as the same is needed in order
to balance the 2017-18 state budget. In light of this failure, the Governor has made various public pronouncements of the
impending need to defer or eliminate budgeted expenditures in order to achieve a balanced budget. No assurances can be
provided as to when or if the General Assembly will adopt a tax and revenue package as is necessary to balance the state
budget, or as to the effect on the School District’s financial condition of further delays or a continuing failure to balance the
state budget.

Act 85 of 2016

On July 13, 2016, the Governor of the Commonwealth signed into law Act No. 85 of 2016, (P.L. 664, No. 85) (“Act 85 of
2016”), an amendment to the Act of April 9, 1929 (P.L. 343, No. 176), known as the Fiscal Code (“Fiscal Code”). Act 85 of
2016 adds to the Fiscal Code Article XVII-E.4, entitled “School District Intercepts for the Payment of Debt Service During
Budget Impasse”, which provides stop-gap funding for the intercept of subsidy payments by the Pennsylvania Department of
Education (“PDE”) to a school district subject to an intercept statute or an intercept agreement in the event of a
Commonwealth budget impasse in any fiscal year.

Act 85 of 2016 includes in the definition of “intercept statutes” Section 633 of the Public School Code. The School
District's general obligation bonds, including the Bonds, are subject to Section 633 of the Public School Code.

Act 85 of 2016 provides that the amounts that may be necessary for PDE to comply with the provisions of the applicable
intercept statute or intercept agreement “shall be appropriated” to PDE from the General Fund of the Commonwealth after
PDE submits justification (in the form of the following certifications) to the majority and minority chairs of the appropriations
committees of the Pennsylvania Senate and House of Representatives allowing ten (10) calendar days for their review and
comment, if any, in any fiscal year:

(1) annual appropriations for payment of Commonwealth money to school districts have not been enacted by July
1 and continue not to be enacted when a payment is due;

(2) the conditions under which PDE is required to comply with an intercept statute or intercept agreement have
occurred, thereby requiring PDE to withhold payments which would otherwise be due to school district; and

(3) the Secretary of PDE, in consultation with the Secretary of the Budget, determines that there are no payments
or allocations due to be paid to the applicable school districts from which PDE may withhold money as
required by the applicable intercept statute or intercept agreement.

The necessary amounts shall be appropriated and paid to the paying agent on the day the scheduled payment for
principal and interest is due, but not earlier than the expiration of the tenth (10th) day following submission of the justification
described above to the majority and minority chairs of the appropriations committees, who may comment on the justification
but cannot prevent the effectiveness of the appropriation.

The total of all intercept payments under Article XVII-E.4 for a school district may not exceed 50% of the total nonfederal
general fund subsidy payments made to that school district in the prior fiscal year.

Act 85 of 2016 requires that each school district with bonds or notes subject to an intercept statute or intercept
agreement must deliver to PDE, in such format as PDE may direct, a copy of the final Official Statement for the relevant bonds
or notes or the loan documents relating to the obligations, within thirty (30) days of receipt of the proceeds of the obligations.
The School District intends on submitting this information with respect to the Bonds to PDE within the prescribed timeframe
following the issuance of the Bonds. Act 85 of 2016 provides that any obligation for which PDE does not receive the required
documents shall not be subject to the applicable intercept statute or intercept agreement.

The provisions of Act 85 of 2016 are not part of any contract with the holders of the Bonds and may be amended or
repealed by future legislation. Act 85 is recent legislation. No assurances can be provided regarding the timeliness and
manner of PDE application and enforcement of Act 85’'s provisions in the event of a budget impasse. Given Act 85's
requirements for the presentation of a justification to leadership chairs in the General Assembly, and their generation of
comment, no assurances can be given regarding the timeliness of payments, even if funds are available for the same.
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Actions in the Event of Default on the Bonds

Subject to the exclusive representation of Bondholders by a trustee appointed under the Act as described in the
following paragraph, if the School District fails or neglects to pay principal or interest on any of the Bonds as it becomes due
and payable, and such failure continues for thirty days, the holder of such Bond may bring suit in the Court of Common Pleas
of the county in which the School District is located (Lawrence County) and any judgment recovered shall have an appropriate
priority upon the money next coming into the treasury of the School District, all as provided in the Act. The Act also provides
other remedies to Bondholders to enforce the School District's covenants in respect of payment of the Bonds.

In the event the School District defaults in the payment of the principal of or the interest on any of the Bonds after the
same shall become due, whether at the stated maturity or upon call for prior redemption, and such default shall continue for
thirty days, or if the School District fails to comply with any provision of the Bonds or the Resolution, the Act provides that the
holders of 25% in aggregate principal amount of the Bonds then outstanding may, upon appropriate action, appoint a trustee
to represent the Bondholders. The trustee may, and upon request of the holders of 25% in principal amount of the Bonds then
outstanding and upon being provided with indemnity satisfactory to it, shall, take such action on behalf of the Bondholders as
is more specifically set forth in the Act. Such representation by the trustee shall be exclusive.

MUNICIPAL BOND INSURANCE
Bond Insurance Policy

Concurrently with the issuance of the Bonds, Assured Guaranty Municipal Corp. ("AGM") will issue its Municipal Bond
Insurance Policy for the Bonds (the "Policy"). The Policy guarantees the scheduled payment of principal of and interest on the
Bonds when due as set forth in the form of the Policy included as Appendix C to this Official Statement.

The Policy is not covered by any insurance security or guaranty fund established under New York, California,
Connecticut or Florida insurance law.

Assured Guaranty Municipal Corp.

AGM is a New York domiciled financial guaranty insurance company and an indirect subsidiary of Assured Guaranty
Ltd. (“AGL”"), a Bermuda-based holding company whose shares are publicly traded and are listed on the New York Stock
Exchange under the symbol “AGO”. AGL, through its operating subsidiaries, provides credit enhancement products to the
U.S. and global public finance, infrastructure and structured finance markets. Neither AGL nor any of its shareholders or
affiliates, other than AGM, is obligated to pay any debts of AGM or any claims under any insurance policy issued by AGM.

AGM’s financial strength is rated “AA” (stable outlook) by S&P Global Ratings, a business unit of Standard & Poor’s
Financial Services LLC (“S&P"), “AA+" (stable outlook) by Kroll Bond Rating Agency, Inc. (‘KBRA”) and “A2” (stable outlook)
by Moody’s Investors Service, Inc. (“Moody’s”). Each rating of AGM should be evaluated independently. An explanation of
the significance of the above ratings may be obtained from the applicable rating agency. The above ratings are not
recommendations to buy, sell or hold any security, and such ratings are subject to revision or withdrawal at any time by the
rating agencies, including withdrawal initiated at the request of AGM in its sole discretion. In addition, the rating agencies may
at any time change AGM'’s long-term rating outlooks or place such ratings on a watch list for possible downgrade in the near
term. Any downward revision or withdrawal of any of the above ratings, the assignment of a negative outlook to such ratings
or the placement of such ratings on a negative watch list may have an adverse effect on the market price of any security
guaranteed by AGM. AGM only guarantees scheduled principal and scheduled interest payments payable by the issuer of
bonds insured by AGM on the date(s) when such amounts were initially scheduled to become due and payable (subject to and
in accordance with the terms of the relevant insurance policy), and does not guarantee the market price or liquidity of the
securities it insures, nor does it guarantee that the ratings on such securities will not be revised or withdrawn.

Current Financial Strength Ratings

On June 26, 2017, S&P issued a research update report in which it affirmed AGM's financial strength rating of “AA”
(stable outlook). AGM can give no assurance as to any further ratings action that S&P may take.

On December 14, 2016, KBRA issued a financial guaranty surveillance report in which it affirmed AGM'’s insurance
financial strength rating of “AA+” (stable outlook). AGM can give no assurance as to any further ratings action that KBRA may
take.

On August 8, 2016, Moody’s published a credit opinion affirming its existing insurance financial strength rating of “A2”
(stable outlook) on AGM. AGM can give no assurance as to any further ratings action that Moody’s may take.

For more information regarding AGM'’s financial strength ratings and the risks relating thereto, see AGL's Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2016.



Capitalization of AGM
At June 30, 2017:
o The policyholders’ surplus of AGM was approximately $2,222 million.

. The contingency reserves of AGM and its indirect subsidiary Municipal Assurance Corp. (“MAC") (as described below)
were approximately $1,289 million. Such amount includes 100% of AGM'’s contingency reserve and 60.7% of MAC's
contingency reserve.

. The net unearned premium reserves of AGM and its subsidiaries (as described below) were approximately $1,699
million. Such amount includes (i) 100% of the net unearned premium reserves of AGM and AGM’'s wholly owned
subsidiaries Assured Guaranty (Europe) plc, Assured Guaranty (UK) plc, CIFG Europe S.A. and Assured Guaranty
(London) plc (together, the “AGM European Subsidiaries”) and (ii) 60.7% of the net unearned premium reserve of MAC.

The policyholders’ surplus of AGM and the contingency reserves and net unearned premium reserves of AGM and
MAC were determined in accordance with statutory accounting principles. The net unearned premium reserves of the AGM
European Subsidiaries were determined in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

Incorporation of Certain Documents by Reference

Portions of the following documents filed by AGL with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) that
relate to AGM are incorporated by reference into this Official Statement and shall be deemed to be a part hereof:

(i) the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2016 (filed by AGL with the SEC on February
24, 2017);

(i)  the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2017 (filed by AGL with the SEC on May 5,
2017); and

(i)  the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 2017 (filed by AGL with the SEC on August
3, 2017).

All consolidated financial statements of AGM and all other information relating to AGM included in, or as exhibits to,
documents filed by AGL with the SEC pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended,
excluding Current Reports or portions thereof “furnished” under Item 2.02 or Item 7.01 of Form 8-K, after the filing of the last
document referred to above and before the termination of the offering of the Bonds shall be deemed incorporated by reference
into this Official Statement and to be a part hereof from the respective dates of filing such documents. Copies of materials
incorporated by reference are available over the internet at the SEC’s website at http://www.sec.qov, at AGL’s website at
http://www.assuredguaranty.com, or will be provided upon request to Assured Guaranty Municipal Corp.: 1633 Broadway,
New York, New York 10019, Attention: Communications Department (telephone (212) 974-0100). Except for the information
referred to above, no information available on or through AGL’s website shall be deemed to be part of or incorporated in this
Official Statement.

Any information regarding AGM included herein under the caption “MUNICIPAL BOND INSURANCE — Assured
Guaranty Municipal Corp.” or included in a document incorporated by reference herein (collectively, the “AGM Information”)
shall be modified or superseded to the extent that any subsequently included AGM Information (either directly or through
incorporation by reference) modifies or supersedes such previously included AGM Information. Any AGM Information so
modified or superseded shall not constitute a part of this Official Statement, except as so modified or superseded.

Miscellaneous Matters

AGM makes no representation regarding the Bonds or the advisability of investing in the Bonds. In addition, AGM
has not independently verified, makes no representation regarding, and does not accept any responsibility for the accuracy or
completeness of this Official Statement or any information or disclosure contained herein, or omitted herefrom, other than with
respect to the accuracy of the information regarding AGM supplied by AGM and presented under the heading “MUNICIPAL
BOND INSURANCE".



BOND INSURANCE RISK FACTORS

In the event of a default in the payment of principal or interest with respect to the Bonds when any such payment becomes
due, any owner of the Bonds shall have a claim under the applicable Bond Insurance Policy (the “Policy”) for such payment.
However, in the event of any acceleration of the due date of such principal resulting from any default or otherwise, other than any
advancement of maturity pursuant to a mandatory sinking fund payment, any payments to be made pursuant to the Policy will be
made in such amounts and at such times as such payments would have been due had there not been any such acceleration. In
addition, the Policy does not insure the payment of any redemption premium.

Under most circumstances, any default in the payment of principal and interest does not accelerate the obligations of the
Bond Insurer without its consent. The Bond Insurer may direct, and must consent to, any remedies that a trustee might exercise
following such a default and the Bond Insurer’'s consent may be required in connection with amendments to the Resolution in those
circumstances.

In the event that the Bond Insurer is unable to make any payments of principal and interest as such payments become due
under the Policy, the Bonds will be payable solely from the moneys received by the Paying Agent pursuant to the Resolution. In
the event that the Bond Insurer becomes obligated to make payments with respect to the Bonds, no assurance is given that such
event will not adversely affect the market price of the Bonds or the marketability (liquidity) for the Bonds.

The long-term ratings on the Bonds are dependent in part on the financial strength of the Bond Insurer and its claims
paying ability. The Bond Insurer’s financial strength and claims paying ability are predicated upon a number of factors that could
change over time. No assurance is given that the long-term ratings of the Bond Insurer and, therefore, the ratings on the Bonds
insured, will not be subject to downgrade, and such event could adversely affect the market price of the Bonds or the marketability
(liquidity) for the Bonds. See “RATING” herein.

The obligations of the Bond Insurer under the Policy are general obligations of the Bond Insurer and, upon an event of default
by the Bond Insurer, the remedies available to a trustee may be limited by applicable bankruptcy law or other similar laws related to
the insolvency of entities like the Bond Insurer.

NEITHER THE SCHOOL DISTRICT, NOR THE UNDERWRITER, HAS MADE AN INDEPENDENT INVESTIGATION INTO THE
CLAIMS PAYING ABILITY OF THE BOND INSURER AND NO ASSURANCE OR REPRESENTATION REGARDING THE
FINANCIAL STRENGTH OR PROJECTED FINANCIAL STRENGTH OF THE BOND INSURER IS GIVEN. THUS, WHEN
MAKING AN INVESTMENT DECISION, POTENTIAL INVESTORS SHOULD CAREFULLY CONSIDER THE ABILITY OF THE
SCHOOL DISTRICT TO PAY PRINCIPAL AND INTEREST ON THE BONDS AND THE CLAIMS PAYING ABILITY OF THE
BOND INSURER, PARTICULARLY OVER THE LIFE OF THE INVESTMENT. SEE “BOND INSURANCE” HEREIN FOR
FURTHER INFORMATION PROVIDED BY THE BOND INSURER WITH RESPECT TO ITSELF AND THE POLICY, WHICH
INCLUDES FURTHER INSTRUCTIONS FOR OBTAINING CURRENT FINANCIAL INFORMATION CONCERNING THE BOND
INSURER.

BOOK-ENTRY ONLY SYSTEM

The information in this section has been provided by The Depository Trust Company, New York, New York
("DTC") and is not deemed to be a representation of the School District or the Underwriter.

DTC, New York, New York, will act as securities depository for the Bonds. The Bonds will be issued as fully-
registered Bonds registered in the name of Cede & Co. (DTC’s partnership nominee) or such other name as may be
requested by an authorized representative of DTC. One fully-registered certificate will be issued for each maturity of the
Bonds, respectively, each in the aggregate principal amount of such maturity, and will be deposited with DTC.

DTC, the world’s largest securities depository, is a limited-purpose trust company organized under the New York
Banking Law, a “banking organization” within the meaning of the New York Banking Law, a member of the Federal Reserve
System, a “clearing corporation” within the meaning of the New York Uniform Commercial Code, and a “clearing agency”
registered pursuant to the provisions of Section 17A of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. DTC holds and provides asset
servicing for over 3.6 million issues of U.S. and non-U.S. equity issues, corporate and municipal debt issues, and money
market instruments from over 100 countries that DTC's participants (“Direct Participants”) deposit with DTC. DTC also
facilitates the post-trade settlement among Direct Participants of sales and other securities transactions in deposited
securities, through electronic computerized book-entry transfers and pledges between Direct Participants’ accounts. This
eliminates the need for physical movement of securities certificates. Direct Participants include both U.S. and non-U.S.
securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, clearing corporations, and certain other organizations. DTC is a
wholly-owned subsidiary of The Depository Trust & Clearing Corporation (“DTCC”). DTCC is the holding company for DTC,
National Securities Clearing Corporation and Fixed Income Clearing Corporation, all of which are registered clearing agencies.
DTCC is owned by the users of its regulated subsidiaries. Access to the DTC system is also available to others such as both
U.S. and non U.S. securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, and clearing corporations that clear through or
maintain a custodial relationship with a Direct Participant, either directly or indirectly (“Indirect Participants”). DTC has



Standard & Poor’s highest rating: AA+. The DTC Rules applicable to its Participants are on file with the Securities and
Exchange Commission. More information about DTC can be found at www.dtcc.com and www.dtc.org.

Purchases of the Bonds under the DTC system must be made by or through Direct Participants, which will receive a
credit for the Bonds on DTC's records. The ownership interest of each actual purchaser of each Bond (“Beneficial Owner”) is
in turn to be recorded on the Direct and Indirect Participants’ records. Beneficial Owners will not receive written confirmation
from DTC of their purchase. Beneficial Owners are, however, expected to receive written confirmations providing details of the
transaction, as well as periodic statements of their holdings, from the Direct or Indirect Participant through which the Beneficial
Owner entered into the transaction. Transfers of ownership interests in the Bonds are to be accomplished by entries made on
the books of Direct and Indirect Participants acting on behalf of Beneficial Owners. Beneficial Owners will not receive
certificates representing their ownership interests in the Bonds, except in the event that use of the book-entry system
for the Bonds is discontinued.

To facilitate subsequent transfers, all Bonds deposited by Direct Participants with DTC are registered in the name of
DTC'’s partnership nominee, Cede & Co., or such other name as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC.
The deposit of Bonds with DTC and their registration in the name of Cede & Co. or such other DTC nominee do not affect any
change in beneficial ownership. DTC has no knowledge of the actual Beneficial Owners of the Bonds; DTC's records reflect
only the identity of the Direct Participants to whose accounts such Bonds are credited, which may or may not be the Beneficial
Owners. The Direct and Indirect Participants will remain responsible for keeping account of their holdings on behalf of their
customers.

Conveyance of notices and other communications by DTC to Direct Participants, by Direct Participants to Indirect
Participants, and by Direct Participants and Indirect Participants to Beneficial Owners will be governed by arrangements
among them, subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in effect from time to time. Beneficial Owners of
the Bonds may wish to take certain steps to augment the transmission to them of notices of significant events with respect to
the Bonds, such as redemptions, tenders, defaults, and proposed amendments to the Bond documents. For example,
Beneficial Owners of the Bonds may wish to ascertain that the nominee holding the Bonds for their benefit has agreed to
obtain and transmit notices to Beneficial Owners. In the alternative, Beneficial Owners may wish to provide their names and
addresses to the registrar and request that copies of notices be provided directly to them.

Redemption notices shall be sent to DTC. If less than all of the Bonds within an issue are being redeemed, DTC’s
practice is to determine by lot the amount of the interest of each Direct Participant in such issue to be redeemed.

Neither DTC nor Cede & Co. (nor any other DTC nominee) will consent or vote with respect to the Bonds unless
authorized by a Direct Participant in accordance with DTC’s MMI Procedures. Under its usual procedures, DTC mails an
Omnibus Proxy to the School District as soon as possible after the record date. The Omnibus Proxy assigns Cede & Co.’s
consenting or voting rights to those Direct Participants to whose accounts Bonds are credited on the record date (identified in
a listing attached to the Omnibus Proxy).

Redemption proceeds, distributions, and dividend payments on the Bonds will be made to Cede & Co., or such other
nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC. DTC'’s practice is to credit Direct Participants’
accounts upon DTC's receipt of funds and corresponding detail information from the School District or the Paying Agent, on
payable date in accordance with their respective holdings shown on DTC's records. Payments by Participants to Beneficial
Owners will be governed by standing instructions and customary practices, as is the case with securities held for the accounts
of customers in bearer form or registered in “street name,” and will be the responsibility of such Participant and not of DTC, the
Paying Agent, or the School District, subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in effect from time to time.
Payment of redemption proceeds, distributions and dividend payments to Cede & Co. (or such other nominee as may be
requested by an authorized representative of DTC) is the responsibility of the School District or the Paying Agent,
disbursement of such payments to Direct Participants will be the responsibility of DTC, and disbursement of such payments to
the Beneficial Owners will be the responsibility of Direct and Indirect Participants.

DTC may discontinue providing its services as depository with respect to the Bonds at any time by giving reasonable
notice to the the School District or the Paying Agent. Under such circumstances, in the event that a successor depository is
not obtained, Bond certificates are required to be printed and delivered.

The School District may decide to discontinue use of the system of book-entry transfers through DTC (or a successor
securities depository). In that event, Bond certificates will be printed and delivered.

The information in this section concerning DTC and DTC'’s book-entry system has been obtained from sources that
the School District believes to be reliable, but the School District takes no responsibility for the accuracy thereof.



Disclaimer of Liability for Failures of DTC

The School District and the Underwriter cannot and do not give any assurances that DTC, the Direct and Indirect
Participants or others will distribute payments of principal, interest or premium with respect to the Bonds paid to DTC or its
nominee as the owner of Bonds, or will distribute any redemption or other notices, to the Beneficial Owners, or that they will do
so on a timely basis or will serve and act in the manner described in this Official Statement. The School District and the
Underwriter are not responsible or liable for the failure of DTC or any Participant to make any payment or give any notice to a
Beneficial Owner with respect to the Bonds, or any error or delay relating thereto.

So long as Cede & Co. is the registered owner of the bonds, as nominee of DTC, references herein to the
bondholders or registered owners of the bonds (other than under the caption “TAX MATTERS - Federal Tax Exemption”)
shall mean Cede & Co. and shall not mean the beneficial owners of the bonds. Payments made by the paying agent to DTC or
its nominee shall satisfy the School District’s obligations with respect to the Bonds to the extent of such payments.

Discontinuance of Book-Entry-Only System

DTC may discontinue providing its services as depository with respect to the Bonds at any time by giving reasonable
notice to the School District and the Paying Agent. In addition, the School District may decide to discontinue use of the system
of book-entry transfers through DTC (or a successor Securities Depository). Under either of such circumstances, in the event
that a successor Securities Depository is not obtained, Bond certificates are required to be printed and delivered, and the
following provisions of the Paying Agent Agreement will apply: (i) principal or redemption price of the Bonds will be payable
upon surrender of the Bonds at the designated corporate trust office of the Paying Agent located in Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania;
(ii) Bonds may be transferred or exchanged for other Bonds of authorized denominations at the designated office of the Paying
Agent of the Bonds, without cost to the owner thereof except for any tax or other governmental charge; and (iii) Bonds will be
issued in denominations as described above under "THE BONDS".

REDEMPTION OF THE BONDS
Optional Redemption

The Bonds stated to mature on or after March 1, 2024, are subject to redemption prior to maturity, at the option of the
School District, as a whole or in part, from time to time, on March 1, 2023, or on any date thereafter (and if in part, in any order
of maturity designated by the School District and within a maturity by lot), in either case upon payment of a redemption price of
100% of the principal amount to be redeemed, together with accrued interest to the redemption date.

Mandatory Redemption
The Bonds are not subject to mandatory redemption.

Notice of Redemption

So long as Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC, is the registered owner of the Bonds, the School District and the Paying
Agent shall send redemption notices only to Cede & Co. See “BOOK-ENTRY ONLY SYSTEM?" herein for further information
regarding conveyance of notices to Beneficial Owners.

Notice of any redemption shall be given by depositing a copy of the redemption notice in first class mail not less than
thirty (30) nor more than sixty (60) days prior to the date fixed for redemption addressed to each of the registered owners of
Bonds to be redeemed, in whole or in part, at the addresses shown on the registration books; provided, however, that failure to
give such notice by mailing, or any defect therein or in the mailing thereof, shall not affect the validity of any proceeding for
redemption of other Bonds so called for redemption as to which proper notice has been given.

On the date designated for redemption, notice having been provided as aforesaid, and money for payment of the
principal and accrued interest being held by the Paying Agent, interest on the Bonds or portions thereof so called for
redemption shall cease to accrue and such Bonds or portions thereof shall cease to be entitled to any benefit or security under
the Resolution, and registered owners of such Bonds or portions thereof so called for redemption shall have no rights with
respect to such Bonds, except to receive payment of the principal of and accrued interest on such Bonds to the date fixed for
redemption.
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If at time of mailing of a notice of redemption the School District shall not have deposited with the Paying Agent (or, in
the case of a refunding, with another bank or depositary acting as refunding escrow agent) money sufficient to redeem all
Bonds called for redemption, the notice of redemption may state that it is conditional, i.e., that it is subject to the deposit of
sufficient redemption money with the Paying Agent not later than the opening of business on the redemption date, and such
notice shall be of no effect unless such money is so deposited.

Manner of Redemption

So long as Cede & Co., as nhominee of DTC, is the registered owner of the Bonds, payment of the redemption price
shall be made to Cede & Co. in accordance with the existing arrangements by and among the School District, the Paying
Agent and DTC and, if less than all Bonds of any particular maturity are to be redeemed, the amount of the interest of each
DTC Participant, Indirect Participant and Beneficial Owner in such Bonds to be redeemed shall be determined by the
governing arrangements among them, subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in effect from time to
time. See "BOOK-ENTRY ONLY SYSTEM” herein for further information regarding redemption of Bonds registered in the
name of Cede & Co.

If a Bond is of a denomination larger than $5,000, a portion of such Bond may be redeemed. For the purposes of
redemption, a Bond shall be treated as representing the number of Bonds that is equal to the principal amount thereof divided
by $5,000, each $5,000 portion of such Bond being subject to redemption. In the case of partial redemption of a Bond,
payment of the redemption price shall be made only upon surrender of such Bond in exchange for a Bond or Bonds, as
appropriate, of authorized denominations of the same series, maturity and interest rate in an aggregate principal amount equal
to the unredeemed portion of the principal amount thereof.

If the redemption date for any Bonds shall be a Saturday, Sunday, legal holiday or a day on which banking institutions
in the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania are authorized or required by law or executive order to close, then the date for payment
of the principal, premium, if any, and interest upon such redemption shall be the next succeeding day which is not a Saturday,
Sunday, legal holiday or a day on which such banking institutions are authorized or required to close, and payment on such
date shall have the same force and effect as if made on the nominal date of redemption.

In the case of any prior, optional redemption in part of a Bond that is subject to future mandatory redemption, the
District shall be entitled to designate whether the principal amount of such Bonds redeemed upon optional redemption shall be
credited against the principal amount of such Bonds to be paid by the District at the stated maturity of such Bonds or credited
against the principal amount of such Bonds scheduled to be called for mandatory sinking fund redemption on any particular
date or dates, in each case in an integral multiple of $5,000 principal amount.

THE SCHOOL DISTRICT
Introduction
The New Castle Area School District is a Pennsylvania school district of the Third Class. School Districts within
Pennsylvania are ranked by the Pennsylvania Department of Education as First, Second, Third or Fourth Class according to
population. The School District is located in the center of Lawrence County and encompasses the City of New Castle and

Taylor Township. The School District is located approximately fifty (50) miles north of the City of Pittsburgh. The School District
had a population in 2010 of 24,325 and covers an area of approximately 8.11 square miles.
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Organization and Central Administration

The School District is governed by a nine (9) member Board of School Directors, comprised of residents of the

School District who are elected by region on a staggered basis for a four-year term of office.

The daily operations and

management of the School District are overseen by the Superintendent of Schools, who is the chief educational officer of the

School District. Budget preparation and control are overseen by the Director of Business Affairs. The current enroliment of
the School District is 3,280 and the School District currently operates two elementary school, one intermediate school and a

Jr/Sr. high school. (See “SCHOOL DISTRICT FACILITIES” in the table below). The budget for the fiscal year ending June
30, 2018, is $51,331,437 and the total employment of the School District is currently comprised of 429, which does not include
teaching substitutes and coaches. (See “LABOR RELATIONS” herein).

TABLE 1

SCHOOL DISTRICT FACILITIES

Original Additions/
Construction  Renovations Pupil 2016-17
Facility Date Date(s) Grades Capacity  Enrollment
Elementary:
Croton Building — Pre-K 1963 1988 Pre-K 150 100
Harry W. Lockley Early Learning Center 1954 1969/2013 K-3 1,000 926
Intermediate School:
George Washington 1927 1988 4-6 1,200 1004
High School:
New Castle Jr./Sr. High 2002 - 7-12 1,900 1,250
Total 4,250 3,280
@
As of June 30, 2017
Sources: School District
Enrollment Trends
The following table presents recent trends in school enroliment.
TABLE 2
ENROLLMENT TRENDS
Actual and Projected Enrollment
School Elementary Secondary
Year Grades (K - 6) Grades (7 - 12) Total
2012-13 1,829 1,295 3,124
2013-14 1,900 1,239 3,139
2014-15 1,855 1,310 3,165
2015-16 1,849 1,301 3,150
2016-17 2,030 1,250 3,280
2017-18 (1) 1,850 1,300 3,200
2018-19 (1) 1,850 1,300 3,150
2019-20 (1) 1,850 1,300 3,150

@ Projected

Source: School District
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SCHOOL DISTRICT FINANCES
Introduction

The School District budgets and expends funds according to procedures mandated by the Pennsylvania Department
of Education. An annual operating budget is prepared by the Superintendent and Director of Business Affairs and submitted to
the School Board for approval prior to the beginning of each fiscal year on July 1.

Financial Reporting

The School District has organized its accounts on the basis of funds or groups of funds, each of which is a separate
accounting entity. It maintains a General Fund for instructional, operation and administrative expenses, a Food Service Fund,
and various school activity funds. Federal funds are appropriated by the School Board during the fiscal year as grant
commitments and project approvals are received. The School District keeps the books and prepares the financial reports for
the General Fund according to a modified accrual basis of accounting. Major accrual items are payrolls, payroll taxes and
pension fund contributions payable, loans receivable from other funds, and revenues receivable from other governmental
units. Taxes are credited when received. The School District financial statements are audited annually by an independent
certified public accountants, as required by State law. The firm of Philip Weiner and Company LTD, Certified Public
Accountants, New Castle, Pennsylvania currently serves as the District's independent auditor.

The financial statements of the School District are prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America. The School District’s reporting entity applies all relevant Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) pronouncements. The government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements apply Financial
Accounting Standards Board pronouncements and Accounting Principles Board opinions issued on or before November 30,
1989, unless those pronouncements conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements, in which case, GASB prevails. The
government wide statements report using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting
generally including the reclassification or elimination of internal activity (between or within funds).

The School District’'s auditor has not been engaged to perform, and has not performed since the date of its report
included as an appendix to this Official Statement, any procedure on the financial statement addressed in the report. Such
auditor also has not performed any procedures relating to this Official Statement.

Budgeting Process in School Districts under the Taxpayer Relief Act, as amended (Act 1)

In General. School districts budget and expend funds according to procedures mandated by the Pennsylvania
Department of Education (“PDE”). An annual operating budget is prepared by school district administrative officials on a
uniform form furnished by PDE and submitted to the School Board for approval prior to the beginning of the fiscal year on July
1.

Procedures for Adoption of the Annual Budget. Under the Taxpayer Relief Act (Pennsylvania Act No. 1 of the Special
Session of 2006, as amended by Act No. 25 of 2011 (“Act 1")), all school districts of the first class A, second class, third class
and fourth class (except as described below) must adopt a preliminary budget proposal (which must include estimated
revenues and expenditures and proposed tax rates) no later than 90 days prior to the date of the election immediately
preceding the fiscal year. The preliminary budget proposal must be printed and made available for public inspection at least 20
days prior to its adoption; the School Board may hold a public hearing on the budget; and the board must give at least 10 days’
public notice of its intent to adopt the final budget.

If the adopted preliminary budget includes an increase in the rate of any tax levy, the preliminary budget must be
submitted to the Pennsylvania Department of Education (PDE) no later than 85 days prior to the date of the election
immediately preceding the fiscal year. PDE is to compare the proposed percentage increase in the rate of any tax with the
school district’'s Index and within 10 days, but not later than 75 days prior to the upcoming election, inform the school district
whether the proposed percentage increase is less than or equal to the Index. If PDE determines that a proposed tax increase
will exceed the Index, the school district must reduce the proposed tax increase, seek voter approval for the tax increase at the
upcoming election, or seek approval to utilize one of the referendum exceptions authorized under Act 1 (hereinafter defined).

With respect to the utilization of any of the Act 1 referendum exceptions for which PDE approval is required, the
school district must publish notice of its intent to seek PDE approval not less than one week before submitting its request for
approval to PDE and, if PDE determines to schedule a public hearing on the request, a notice of the date, time and place of
such hearing. PDE is required by the Act 1 to rule on the school district’s request and inform the school district of its decision
no later than 55 days prior to the upcoming election so that, if PDE denies the school district’s request, the school district may
submit a referendum question to the local election officials at least 50 days before the upcoming election, if it so chooses.

If a school district seeks voter approval to increase taxes at a rate higher than the applicable Index, whether or not it
first seeks approval to utilize one of the referendum exceptions available under the Taxpayer Relief Act, and the referendum
question is not approved by a majority of the voters voting on the question, the board of school directors may not approve an
increase in the tax rate greater than the applicable Index.
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Simplified Procedures in Certain Cases. The above budgetary procedures will not apply to a school district if the
board of school directors adopts a resolution no later than 110 days prior to the election immediately preceding the upcoming
fiscal year declaring that it will not increase any tax at a rate that exceeds the Index and that a tax increase at or below the rate
of the Index will be sufficient to balance its budget. In that case, Act 1 requires only that the proposed annual budget be
prepared at least 30 days, and made available for public inspection at least 20 days, prior to its adoption, and that at least ten
(10) days’ public notice be given of the board’s intent to adopt the annual budget. No referendum exceptions are available to a
school district adopting such a resolution.

For further information regarding Act 1, see “PENNSYLVANIA ACTS AFFECTING CERTAIN LOCAL TAXING
POWERS OF SCHOOL DISTRICTS-- The Taxpayer Relief Act, as Amended (Act 1)” herein.

Act 1 requires a School District to prepare and file a preliminary budget when the District desires to increase its
property taxes above the Act 1 index. To increase its property taxes above the Act 1 index, the District must apply for
exceptions to the referendum requirement under Act 1, or prepare a referendum to be placed on the ballot of the next primary
election in May.

Status of 2017-18 Budget Under Act 1. The Index applicable to the School District in the 2017-18 fiscal year is
3.9%. The District's budget for fiscal year 2017-18 did NOT include an increase to real estate tax.

Annual Financial Statements

The School District’'s annual financial statements for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2012 through 2016, inclusive,
have been filed by the School District on EMMA (as hereinafter defined) (http://emma.msrb.org). Such financial statements
are incorporated herein by reference.

Summary and Discussion of Financial Results

Tables 3 and 4 which follow present, in summary format, annual comparisons of the District's General Fund Balance
Sheet and its Revenues and Expenditures. Table 5 is a Summary of the District’s fiscal year 2017-18 General Fund Budget.

[THIS SECTION LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK]
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ASSETS
Cash
Property Taxes Receivable
Due From Other Funds
Due From Other Governments
State Subsidy Receivable
Federal Subsidy Receivable
Other Receivables
Inventories
Prepaid Expenses
Other Current Assets

Total Assets

DEFERRED OUTHL.OWS OF RESOURCES

Tuition

Total Assets and Deferred
Outflows of Resources

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

LIABILITIES
Due to Other Funds
Accounts Payable
Accured Salaries and Benefits
Payroll Deductions and Withholding
Deferred Revenues
Other Current Liabilities
Due to Other Governments
Other Current Liabilities
Total Liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF REVENUE
Unavailable Revenue-Property Taxes

FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable Fund Balance
Restricted Fund Balance
Committed Fund Balance
Assigned Fund Balance
Unassigned Fund Balance
Total Fund Balance

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances

TABLE 3

NEW CASTLE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
SUMMARY OF COMPARATIVE GENERAL FUND BALANCE SHEET
(Years Ending June 30)

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

$ 15,679,108 $ 14,378,005 $ 9,804,288 7,122,713 $ 2,765,067
2,794,770 2,855,575 2,695,554 2,438,065 2,385,461
1,007,681 855,510 882,427 1,911,559 2,260,740
1,153,723 829,891 1,005,843 1,359,296 2,161,175
547,367 712,003 1,134,074 2,172,078 3,263,615
352,697 194,911 392,608 725,929 1,329,391
24,311 26,838 55,145 185,053 42,465
34,804 50,642 56,884 52,129 47,945
70,953 74,796 222,594 87,644 543,322
- 23,255 64,157 - 5,595
$ 21665414 $ 20,001,426 $ 16,313,574 16,054,466 $ 14,804,776
- - - 64,157 64,157
$ 21665414 $ 20,001,426 $ 16,313574 16,118,623 $ 14,868,933
$ 2,558,065 $ 728,033 $ 749,806 1,468,197 $ 1,068,721
899,979 1,042,362 927,920 624,352 1,042,822
3,448,667 3,762,531 3,993,538 2,983,188 4,883,080
69,341 219,247 150,666 1,557,035 151,770

2,853,152 55,799 - 341,850 -
- - 337,588 120,199 275,479
- 140 200 1,800 1,000
- - - - 1,800
$ 9,829,204 $ 5,808,112 $ 6,159,718 7,096,621 $ 7,424,672
- 2,855,575 2,470,200 2,180,719 2,194,486
105,757 125,438 279,478 139,773 591,267

- - - 4,764,177 -
8,371,696 8,371,696 4,764,178 - 4,564,177
3,358,757 2,840,605 2,640,000 1,937,333 94,331
$ 11,836,210 $ 11,337,739 $ 7,683,656 6,841,283 $ 5,249,775
$ 21665414 $ 20,001,426 $ 16,313,574 16,118,623 $ 14,868,933

Source: District's Audited Financial Statements, for years ending June 30, 2012, 2013, 2014, 2015 and 2016
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REVENUES
Local Sources
State Sources
Federal Sources
Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Instruction
Support Services
Noninstructional Services
Capital Outlay
Debt Service (Principal and Interest)
Refund of Prior Year Receipts
Total Expenditures

EXCESS (DEFECIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Proceeds from Borrowing
Interfund Transfers In
Interfund Transfers Out
Sale of Assets
Bond Premiums
Debt Service-Refunded Bond Issues
Bond Discount
Swap Termination Fee
Proceeds from Extended Term Financing
Other Financing Sources
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES
FUND BALANCE - Beginning
CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES

FUND BALANCE - Ending

Source: District's Audited Financial Statements for the years ending June 30, 2012, 2013, 2014, 2015 and 2016

NEW CASTLE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT

TABLE 4

SUMMARY OF SCHOOL DISTRICT GENERAL FUND
REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
(Years Ending June 30)

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
$ 11042375 $ 11,109,057 $ 11,071,341 11,096,072 $ 11,145198
28,897,419 29,091,725 31,164,028 32,255,770 33,369,353
3,462,060 3,768,525 3,485,098 3,708,861 3,884,048
$ 43401854 | $ 43969,307 | $ 45720467 47,060,703 | $ 48,398,599
$ 26297248 $ 28027920 $ 28,964,669 29848516 | $ 31,645,793
11,044,183 11,360,440 12,179,855 12,719,075 13,166,468
755,680 730,978 779,043 872,554 882,926
132,895 - - - -
324,241 883,434 884,138 883,910 883,882
- 21,767 170,857 224 2,037
$ 38554247 | $ 41,024,539 | $ 42,978,562 44324279 | $ 46,581,106
4,847,607 2,944,768 2,741,905 2,736,424 1,817,493

201,416 - - -

(4,849,823) (3,451,914) (6,449,676) (3,894,937) (3,704,239)
800 8,675 8,016 316,140 651
- - 34,850 - 294,587

- - 10,822 - -
$  (4647607) $ (3443239 | $  (6,395988) (3578,797) | $  (3,409,001)
200,000 (498,471) (3,654,083) (842,373) (1,591,508)
11,636,210 11,836,210 11,337,739 7,683,656 6,841,283
$ 11836210 $ 11337739 $ 7,683,656 6,841,283 $ 5,249,775
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TABLE 5

NEW CASTLE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
FINAL GENERAL FUND BUDGET SUMMARY FOR THE
YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2018

ESTIMATED REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES

Nonspendable Fund Balance $ 139,765
Restricted Fund Balance 3,908,932
Unassigned Fund Balance 1,749,569

Total Estimated Beginning Unreserved Fund Balance Available
for Appropriation and Reserves Scheduled for Liquidation
During the Fiscal Year $ 1,749,569

Estimated Revenues And Other Financing Sources

Revenues from Local Sources 11,380,028
Revenues from State Sources 35,578,425
Revenues from Federal Sources 3,697,984
Other Financing Sources 230,000
Total Estimated Revenues And Other Fnancing Sources $50,886,437
| Total Estimated Fund Balance, Revenues, and Other Financing Sources Available for Appropriations $ 52,636,006 |

ESTIMATED EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES

Instruction 33,378,246
Support Services 12,459,771
Operation of Non-instructional Services 196,694

Facilities, Construction and Improvement Services -

Other Expenditures and Fnancing Uses

Debt Service/Other Expenditures and Financing Uses 4,716,726
Interfund Transfers — Out 580,000
Total Estimated Expenditures and Other Financing Uses $51,331,437
Nonspendable Fund Balance 139,765
Restricted Fund Balance 3,908,932
Unassigned Fund Balance 1,304,569
Total Ending Fund Balance — Committed, Assigned, and Unassigned $ 1,304,569
| Total Estimated Ending Committed, Assigned, and Unassigned Fund Balance and Budgetary Reserve $ 5,353,266 |

Source: New Castle Area School District General Fund Budget for Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018.
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TAXING POWERS AND LIMITS

Subject to certain limitations imposed by the Taxpayer Relief Act, as amended, (“Act 1") (see
“PENNSYLVANIA ACTS AFFECTING CERTAIN LOCAL TAXING POWERS OF SCHOOL DISTRICTS — The
Taxpayer Relief Act, as Amended (Act 1)” herein), the School District is empowered by the School Code and other
statutes to levy the following taxes:

1. An ad valorem tax on all real property taxable for school purposes, not to exceed 25 mills on each dollar of assessed
valuation, to be used for general school purposes.

2. An ad valorem tax on all real property taxable for school purposes unlimited in rate, to provide funds for:
a) salaries and increments for the teaching and supervisory staff;
b)  rentals due any municipal authority, or non-profit corporation, or due the State Public School Building Authority;

c) interest and principal on any indebtedness incurred under the Debt Act or any prior or subsequent act governing
the incurrence of indebtedness of the School District; and

d) amortization of Bonds to finance construction of school facilities, if issued prior to the first Monday in July, 1959.

3.  An annual per capita tax on each resident or inhabitant over 18 years of age of not less than $1.00 and not more than
$10.00

4.  Additional taxes subject to division with other political subdivisions authorized to levy similar taxes on the same person,
subject, business, transaction or privilege, under Act No. 511, enacted December 31, 1965, as amended (the “Local Tax
Enabling Act”). These taxes, which may include, among others, an additional per capita tax, a wage and other earned
income tax, a real estate transfer tax, a gross receipts tax, a local services tax and an occupation tax, shall not exceed, in the
aggregate, an amount equal to the product of the market valuation of real estate in the School District (as certified by the State
Tax Equalization Board of the Commonwealth — “STEB") multiplied by twelve mills. All local taxing authorities are required by
the Local Tax Enabling Act to exempt disabled veterans and members of the armed forces reserve who are called to active
duty at any time during the tax year from any local services tax and to exempt from any local services tax levied at a rate in
excess of $10 those persons whose total income and net profits from all sources within the political subdivision is less than
$12,000 for the tax year. The Local Tax Enabling Act also authorizes, but does not require, taxing authorities to exempt from
per capita, occupation, and earned income taxes and any local services tax levied at a rate of $10 or less per year, any person
whose total income from all sources is less than $12,000 per year.

PENNSYLVANIA ACTS AFFECTING CERTAIN LOCAL TAXING POWERS OF SCHOOL DISTRICTS
The Taxpayer Relief Act, as Amended (Act 1)

Pennsylvania Act No. 1 of the Special Session of 2006 (the “Act 1”), which became effective June 27, 2006 provides,
inter alia, that a school district may not, in fiscal year 2007-2008 or in any subsequent fiscal year, levy any tax for the support
of the public schools which was not levied in the 2006-2007 fiscal year, raise the rate of any earned income and net profits tax,
if already imposed under the authority of the Local Tax Enabling Act (Act 511), or increase the rate of any tax for school
purposes by more than the Index (defined below), unless in each case either (a) such increase is approved by the voters in the
school district at a public referendum or (b) one of the exceptions provided below applies. On June 30, 2011, the General
Assembly adopted legislation (Act 25 of 2011) amending Act 1, eliminating several exceptions previously permitted under Act
1 and providing for the rescission of certain prior approved referendum exceptions for disaster/emergency costs,
implementation of a court order, school construction and non-academic school construction (effective after the last payment of
principal and interest on debt incurred to finance same). (Act 1, together with Act 25 of 2011, will hereinafter be referred to as
the “Taxpayer Relief Act” or “Act 1”).
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The Index exceptions which remain in Act 1 are:

1. to pay interest and principal on indebtedness incurred (i) prior to September 4, 2004, in the case of a school
district which had elected to become subject to the provisions of the prior Homeowner Tax Relief Act, Act 72
of 2004, or (ii) prior to June 27, 2006, in the case of a school district which had not elected to become
subject to Act 72 of 2004; to pay interest and principal on any indebtedness approved by the voters at
referendum (electoral debt); and to pay interest and principal on debt refunding or refinancing debt for which
one of the above exceptions is permitted, as long as the refunding or refinancing incurs no additional debt
other than for costs and expenses related to the refunding or refinancing and the funding of appropriate debt
service reserves;

2. to pay costs incurred in providing special education programs and services to students with disabilities,
under specified circumstances; and

3. to make payments into the State Public School Employees’ Retirement System when the increase in the
estimated payments between the current year and the upcoming year is greater than the Index, as
determined by PDE in accordance with the provisions of Act 1.

Any revenue derived from an increase in the rate of any tax allowed under the exception numbered 1 above may not
exceed the anticipated dollar amount of the expenditure, and any revenue derived from an increase in the rate of any tax
allowed pursuant to any other exception enumerated above may not exceed the rate increase required, as determined by
PDE. If a school district's petition or request to increase taxes by more than the Index pursuant to one or more of the
allowable exceptions is not approved, the school district may submit the proposed tax increase to a referendum.

The Index (to be determined and reported by PDE by September of each year for application to the following fiscal
year) is the average of the percentage increase in the statewide average weekly wage, as determined by the State
Department of Labor and Industry for the preceding calendar year, and the employment cost index for elementary and
secondary schools, as reported by the federal Bureau of Labor Statistics for the preceding 12-month period beginning July 1
and ending June 30. If and when a school district has a Market Value/Income Aid Ratio greater than 0.40 for the prior school
year, however, the Index is adjusted upward by multiplying the unadjusted Index by the sum of 0.75 and such Aid Ratio.

The Indexes applicable to the School District in the current and previous fiscal years (not including exemptions) are
as follows:

Fiscal Year Applicable
(ending June 30) Index
2017-18 3.90%
2016-17 3.70%
2015-16 3.00%
2014-15 3.30%
2013-14 2.70%
2012-13 2.60%

In accordance with Act 1, the School District put a referendum question on the ballot at the May 15, 2007, primary
election seeking voter approval to levy (or increase the rate of) an earned income and net profits tax (“EIT”) or a personal
income tax (“PIT”) and use the proceeds to reduce local real estate taxes by a homestead and farmstead exclusion. The
referendum was NOT approved by the voters.

A board of school directors may submit, but is not required to submit, a referendum question to the voters at the
municipal election seeking approval to levy or increase the rate of an EIT or impose a PIT for the purpose of funding
homestead and farmstead exclusions, but the proposed rate of the EIT or PIT may not exceed the rate that is required to
provide the maximum homestead and farmstead exclusions allowable under law.

Status of the Bonds under Act 1

The Bonds described in this Official Statement are being issued to refund indebtedness that was originally incurred
(in a series of prior refundings) by the School District under the Local Government Unit Debt Act prior to June 27, 2006, the
effective date of the Taxpayer Relief Act and hence said Bonds are grandfathered under the exception from the referendum
requirement of the Relief Act described in paragraph 1 above. However, if the School District desires to increase taxes under
this exception, Act 1 requires that the School District first apply for the approval of the Pennsylvania Department of Education.

THE SUMMARY OF ACT 1, AS AMENDED, IS NOT INTENDED TO BE AN EXHAUSTIVE DISCUSSION OR A

LEGAL REPRESENTATION THEREOF, AND A PROSPECTIVE PURCHASER OF THE BONDS SHOULD REVIEW THE
FULL TEXT OF ACT 1, AS AMENDED, AS PART OF ANY DECISION TO PURCHASE THE BONDS.
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Act 130 of 2008

Act 130 of 2008 of the Commonwealth amended the Local Tax Enabling Act so as to authorize school districts levying
an occupation tax to replace that occupation tax with an increased earned income tax or, if the school district has implemented a
personal income tax in accordance with the Taxpayer Relief Act, an increased personal income tax, in a revenue neutral manner.
To so replace an occupation tax, by increasing the rate of income tax the board of school directors must first give public notice of
its intent to adopt a resolution to place a referendum question on the ballot at the general or municipal election preceding the
fiscal year when the maximum rate of the income tax will be increased, hold at least one public hearing on the matter and then
place a binding referendum question on the ballot at a general or municipal election preceding the fiscal year when the maximum
rate of the income tax will be increased for approval by the voters.

The School District has not placed, and does not expect to place, a referendum question on the ballot that would
authorize a change in the occupation tax.

Act 48 of 2003

Pennsylvania Act No. 2003-48 (enacted December 23, 2003) prohibits a school district from increasing real property
taxes for the school year 2005-2006 or any subsequent school year, unless the school district has adopted a budget for such
school year that includes an estimated ending unreserved undesignated fund balance which is less than a specified percentage
of the total budgeted expenditures, as set forth below:

Estimated Ending Unassigned
Fund Balance as a Percentage of

Total Budgeted Expenditures Total Budgeted Expenditures
Less than or equal to $11,999,999 12.0%
Between $12,000,000 and $12,999,999 11.5%
Between $13,000,000 and $13,999,999 11.0%
Between $14,000,000 and $14,999,999 10.5%
Between $15,000,000 and $15,999,999 10.0%
Between $16,000,000 and $16,999,999 9.5%
Between $17,000,000 and $17,999,999 9.0%
Between $18,000,000 and $18,999,999 8.5%
Greater than or equal to $19,000,000 8.0%

“Estimated ending unreserved fund balance” is defined in Act 2003-48 as that portion of the fund balance which is
appropriable for expenditure or not legally or otherwise segregated for a specific or tentative future use, projected for the close of
the school year for which a school district's budget was adopted and held in the General Fund accounts of the school district.

The total budgeted expenditures in the School District's budget for the 2017-18 fiscal year are $51,331,437. The
School District’'s estimated ending unassigned fund balance is $1,304,569 which, as a percentage of total budgeted
expenditures for the 2017-18 fiscal year equals 2.50%.

SET FORTH IN THE TWO IMMEDIATELY PRECEDING TWO SUBSECTIONS ARE SUMMARIES OF PORTIONS
OF ACT 130 OF 2008 AND ACT 48 OF 2003. THESE SUMMARIES ARE NOT INTENDED TO BE EXHAUSTIVE
DISCUSSIONS OF THE PROVISIONS OF ACT 130 OF 2008 OR ACT 48 OF 2003 NOR A LEGAL INTERPRETATION OF
ANY PROVISIONS THEREOF. A PROSPECTIVE PURCHASER OF THE BONDS SHOULD REVIEW THE FULL TEXT OF
ACT 130 OF 2008 AND ACT 48 OF 2003 AND CONSULT WITH HIS OR HER ATTORNEY AND/OR TAX ADVISOR AS
PART OF ANY DECISION TO PURCHASE THE BONDS.

Tax Levy Trends

Table 6 shows the recent trend of tax rates levied by the School District. Table 7 shows the comparative trend of real
property tax rates for the School District, the City and the Township that comprise the School District and Lawrence County.
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TABLE 6

NEW CASTLE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT

TAX RATES
Real Estate Wage and
Real Estate  Per Capita®® = Transfer Income

Year (mills) (%) (%) (%)

2012-13 17.27 15.00 0.50 0.50

2013-14 17.27 15.00 0.50 0.50

2014-15 17.27 15.00 0.50 0.50

2015-16 17.27 15.00 0.50 0.50

2016-17 17.27 15.00 0.50 0.50

2017-18 17.27 15.00 0.50 0.50

@ $10.00 under Act 511 and $5.00 under School Code
Source: School District
TABLE 7
NEW CASTLE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
COMPARATIVE TAX LEVY TRENDS
(Mills on Assessed Value)
2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18
School District 17.27 17.27 17.27 17.27 17.27
Municipalities 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

City of New Castle 11.726 11.726 11.726 12.726 13.726
Township of Taylor 2.54 2.54 2.54 2.54 3.54
County of Lawrence 6.263 6.698 6.698 6.999 6.999

Source: County of Lawrence
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Real Property Tax

The following tables summarize recent trends of assessed and market valuations of real property and real property
tax collection data.

TABLE 8

NEW CASTLE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
REAL PROPERTY TAX COLLECTION DATA

Current Total

School Assessed Gross Tax Current Collections Total Collections
Year Valuation Mills Levy Collections (1) to Levy Collections (4) to Levy
2010-11 $ 533,633,300 17.27 $ 9,215,847 $ 7,521,875 81.62% $ 9,220,327 100.05%
2011-12 526,943,823 17.27 9,100,320 7,717,707 84.81% 9,525,796 104.68%
2012-13 529,042,923 17.27 9,136,571 7,759,186 84.92% 9,133,314 99.96%
2013-14 534,364,950 17.27 9,228,483 7,757,444 84.06% 9,355,152 101.37%
2014-15 533,436,415 17.27 9,212,447 7,847,962 85.19% 9,508,491 103.21%
2015-16 530,164,295 17.27 9,155,937 7,837,031 85.60% 9,369,375 102.33%
2016-17 (2) 533,436,415 17.27 9,212,447 7,782,547 84.48% 9,280,891 100.74%
2017-18 (3) 529,265,895 17.27 9,140,422 7,769,359 85.00% 9,361,758 102.42%

(1) Includes Tax Relief for Homestead Exclusions

(2) Estimated

(3) Budgeted

(4) Includes delinquentreal estate collections and inclusion of Homestead monies from the State of Pennsylvania

Source: School District

TABLE 9

NEW CASTLE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
REAL PROPERTY ASSESSMENT DATA

Market Assessed
Year Value Value Ratio
2011-12 489,041,033 526,943,823 107.75%
2012-13 523,722,239 529,042,923 101.02%
2013-14 533,513,232 534,364,950 100.16%
2014-15 553,260,952 536,030,275 96.89%
2015-16 547,165,926 531,681,615 97.17%
2016-17 538,632,641 527,492,415 97.93%
2017-18 (1) 547,165,926 529,265,895 96.73%

(1) Based PDE - 2028 - Final General Fund Budget 2017-18

Source: Pennsylvania State Tax Equalization Board and District's 2017-18 Budget
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TABLE 10

NEW CASTLE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
REAL PROPERTY ASSESSMENT DATA BY MUNICIPALITY

2015-16 2015-16 2016-17 2016-17
Market Value Assessed Value Market Value Assessed Value
School District $ 547,165,926 $ 531,681,615 $ 538,632,641 $ 527,492,415
2015 2015 2016 2016

Market Value Assessed Value Market Value Assessed Value

City of New Castle $ 508,128,249 $ 493,153,320 $ 501,134,275 $ 488,990,820

Township of Taylor 39,037,677 38,528,295 37,498,366 38,501,595

County of Lawrence 3,698,312,810 3,528,008,175 3,823,276,159 3,549,730,305

Source: Pennsylvania State Tax Equalization Board.
TABLE 11
NEW CASTLE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
ASSESSMENT BY LAND USE
2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17

Residential $377,933,343 $377,062,970 $378,224,190 $375,840,210 $373,613,510
Lots 6,114,800 6,085,000 7,381,785 7,128,505 6,948,005
Industrial 46,194,300 46,240,900 42,874,200 42,891,400 42,457,100
Commercial 96,418,680 102,419,680 105,632,400 103,897,000 102,524,200
Agriculture 50,900 50,900 549,500 549,500 555,300
Land 459,900 659,600 1,279,700 1,286,500 1,305,800
Mineral 0 0 0 0 0
Trailers 1,871,000 1,845,900 88,500 88,500 88,500
Total $529,042,923 $534,364,950 $536,030,275 $531,681,615 $527,492,415

Source: Pennsylvania State Tax Equalization Board.
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The ten largest real property taxpayers, together with FY 2017-18 assessed values, are shown in Table 12. The
aggregate assessed value of these taxpayers’ totals approximately 5.60% percent of total assessed value. Total assessed
value of the District for FY 2017-18 is approximately $529,265,895 (based on the District’'s 2017-18 Budget).

TABLE 12

NEW CASTLE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
TEN LARGEST REAL PROPERTY TAXPAYERS, 2017-18

2017-18 Percenatge of
Taxpayer Industry Assessed Value Total Assessment (1)

Ohio Pennsylvania Prop LLC Real estate $ 7,900,000 1.49%
Orion Power Midwest, LP Power Company 4,200,100 0.79%
Westview Terrace Estates, LP Housing 4,047,800 0.76%
Cascade Commons Retial Shopping Mall 3,190,800 0.60%
Steelite Real Estate Holdings, Inc. Real Estate 2,179,300 0.41%
Weitsman New Castle Realty LLC Real Estate 1,882,400 0.36%
Ellwood Industrial Facilities Co Manufacturer 1,676,600 0.32%
Golden Hill Nursing Home Inc. Nursing Home 1,562,000 0.30%
Haven Convalescent Home ConvalescentHome 1,555,000 0.29%
Blair Strip Steel Steel Mill 1,451,700 0.27%

Total $ 29,645,700 5.60%

(1) Based on 2017-18 budgeted assessed value of $529,265,895

Source: School District
Other Taxes

Under Act 511, the School District is expected to collect $1,645,500 in other taxes in 2017-18. Among the taxes
authorized by Act 511, are the Per Capita Taxes, the Real Estate Transfer Taxes and Earned Income Taxes (including net
profits). The Act 511 limit, equal to 12 mills on the market value of real property of $547,165,926, is $6,565,991.

Real Estate Transfer. The School District collects a tax of 0.50% of the value of real estate transfers. In 2017-18, the
District expects to collect $120,000, or approximately 0.23% of total revenue*.

Earned Income Tax (including net profits). The School District levies a tax of 0.50% on the earned income and net
profits of residents. In 2017-18, the District expects to collect $1,455,000 or approximately 2.76% of total revenue*.

Per Capita Taxes. A tax of $15.00 ($10.00 under Act 511 ($70,500) and $5.00 under the Public-School Code
($37,500) on each resident over 18 years old is expected to yield $108,000 or less than one percent total revenue*.

*Based on total revenues of $52,636,006

Source: School District 2017-18 Budget

24



COMMONWEALTH AID TO SCHOOL DISTRICTS
General

Pennsylvania school districts receive financial assistance from the Commonwealth in a number of forms, all subject to
statutory provisions and annual appropriation by the Pennsylvania General Assembly.

The largest subsidy, the basic instructional subsidy, is allocated to all school districts based on (1) the per pupil
market value of assessable real property in the school district; (2) the per pupil earned income in the school district; and (3) the
school district's tax effort, as compared with the tax effort of other school districts in the Commonwealth. School districts also
receive subsidies for special education, pupil transportation; vocational education, health service and debt service.

Current Lack of State Appropriations for Debt Service Subsidies

State law presently provides that the School District will receive reimbursement from the Commonwealth for a portion
of debt service on the Bonds upon final approval of the Department of Education. Commonwealth reimbursement is based on
the "Reimbursable Percentage" assigned to the Bonds and the School District's Aid Ratio. The School District officials have
estimated that the "Reimbursable Percentage" of the Bonds will be a maximum of 25.64 percent. The School District's Aid
Ratio for the 2017-18 school year is currently 83.05 percent. The product of these two factors for the Bonds is 21.29 percent
which is the percentage of debt service which will be reimbursed by the Commonwealth. In future years, this percentage may
change as the School District's Aid Ratio changes, or as a result of future legislation. The Aid Ratio is a function of the market
value per weighted average daily membership of the School District relative to that of other school districts of the
Commonwealth.

In May of 2016, owing to certain previous failures to adequately fund debt service subsidies, the General Assembly
enacted legislation, known as Act 25 (“Act 25”), which contained authorization for the Commonwealth Finance Authority
(“CFA”) to issue up to $2.5 billion of debt to fund PlanCon reimbursements to school districts. Act 25 also instituted a
moratorium on new projects entering the PlanCon process while an advisory committee established under Act 25 considers
amendments to the PlanCon program. This new moratorium went into effect with the adoption of the 2017-18 Commonwealth
Budget and is scheduled to expire on June 30, 2018.

On October 31, 2016, CFA issued its Revenue Bonds, Series A of 2016 (Federally Taxable) in the total amount of
$758,185,000 to provide for PlanCon reimbursement owed to school districts. It is expected that proceeds of this issue have
been and will continue to be used to provide PlanCon reimbursement that is owed to the School District for past and current
fiscal years. However, the School District cannot be certain that any future PlanCon reimbursement will be received by PDE
as the ability for CFA to issue additional bonds in the future to fund future PlanCon reimbursements owed to school districts
may impact the availability of PlanCon reimbursements payable to the School District. Any failure by the Commonwealth to
adopt a timely budget and enact necessary spending authorizations could have a material adverse effect upon the School
District's anticipated receipt of PlanCon reimbursements.

There can be no assurances that the School District will be able to successfully apply for, be awarded, and receive
sufficient PlanCon reimbursement for the costs of any current or future projects of the School District. A failure by the School
District to receive such reimbursement could force the School District to apply other available funds, if any, toward the
completion costs of a project and may have a material adverse effect on the financial resources of the School District to fund
other obligations, including payment of debt service on the Bonds.

Legislation has been introduced from time to time in the Pennsylvania General Assembly containing language that
would revise or even abolish the debt service reimbursement program for Pennsylvania school districts. As of the date hereof,
and except as described above, none of these proposals have been signed into law. To the extent that any future legislation
contains material changes to the PlanCon program as it is structured currently, the amount of PlanCon reimbursement to the
School District may be positively or negatively affected, which could materially impact the amount of local funds needed to be
raised by the School District to pay debt service on its debt obligations.
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Table 13 which follows shows the debt of the School District as of the date of delivery, including the issuance of the

Bonds.
TABLE 13

NEW CASTLE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
DEBT AND DEBT LIMITS
(as of Date of Delivery)

ELECTORAL NON-ELECTORAL
Gross Indebtedness of the School District
General Obligation Debt
GON, Series of 2015 $ 181,662
GOB, Series 0of 2012 8,840,000
GON, Series 0f 2011 (QSCB) 17,350,000
GOB, Series Aof2011 23,290,000
GOB, Series C 0f 2011 1,840,000
GOB, Series of 2010 1,265,000
Lease Rental
Total $ 52,766,662
Self-liquidating or subsidized debt
(per concurrent proceedings for
exclusion or as previously excluded
with section 410(b)) -
Debt no longer outstanding (after settlement
of the debt being incurred) is:
GOB, Series 0of 2010 $ 1,265,000
GOB, Series 0of 2012 8,345,000
Other deductions: -
Debtincurred (pursuant to these proceedings) is:
GOB, Series of 2017 $ 9,995,000
Netindebtedness is:
ELECTORAL -
NON-ELECTORAL $ 53,151,662
LEASE RENTAL SUB-TOTAL
NON-ELECTORAL PLUS LEASE RENTAL
BORROWING BASE IS: $ 49,187,978

DEBT LIMITS ARE:

LEASE RENTAL

$ 53,151,662

| a) Nonelectoral plus lease rental (225% of borrowing base)

$ 110,672,951

b) Remaining borrowing capacity

Source: School District, US Census Bureau and the Pennsylvania Tax Equalization Board

26

$ 57,521,289



TABLE 14

NEW CASTLE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT

BONDED INDEBTEDNESS

(as of Date of Delivery — Includes this issue)
Gross
Direct Debt Outstanding
Nonelectoral Debt
GOB, Series of 2017 (this issue) $ 9,995,000
GON, Series of 2015 181,662
GOB, Series 0f 2012 i 495,000
GON, Series 0f 2011 (QSCB) 17,350,000
GOB, Series Aof2011 23,290,000
GOB, Series C 0of 2011 1,840,000
Gross Direct Debt $ 53,151,662
Overlapping Debt
Municipal Debt (100%) $ 26,957,000
Share of Lawrence County Debt (14.86%) 6,077,026
Total Overlapping Debt $ 33,034,026
Total Direct and Overlapping Debt $ 86,185,688
DEBT RATIOS
Direct Debt to:
Market Value 9.87%
Assessed Value 10.08%
Per Capita $ 2,185
Direct and Overlapping Debt to:
Market Value 16.00%
Assessed Value 16.34%
Per Capita $ 3,543
Lawrence County Assessed Value (2016) $ 3,549,730,305
New Castle ASD Assessed Value (2016-17) $ 527,492,415
New Castle ASD Market Value (2016-17) $ 538,632,641
Population (2010) 24,325

@ Based on the District’s State Aid Ratio of 83.05% for the fiscal year 2017-18

Source: School District, US Census Bureau and the Pennsylvania Tax Equalization Board
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$

Net
Outstanding (1)

7,866,663
181,662
390,170

13,368,745
18,245,516
1,417,780

41,470,537

26,957,000
6,077,026

33,034,026

74,504,562

7.70%
7.86%
1,705

13.83%
14.12%
3,063



Debt Limit and Remaining Borrowing Capacity

The statutory borrowing limit of the School District under the Act is computed as a percentage of the School District's
"Borrowing Base". The "Borrowing Base" is defined as the annual arithmetic average of "Total Revenues" (as defined by the
Act), for the three full fiscal years ended next preceding the date of incurring debt. The School District calculates its present
borrowing base and borrowing capacity as follows:

Total Revenues for 2014-15 (less deductions)
Total Revenues for 2015-16 (less deductions)

$47,296,706
$49,267,229

Total ESTIMATED Revenues for 2016-17 (less deductions) $51,000,000
Total Revenues, Past THrEE YEAIS........uii ittt $147,563,935
Annual Arithmetic Average (BOrrowing BaS€).........cuiieiiiiiiiiiiiie it e e ssrtiee e e e e e s sivaaee e e e e s eaens $49,187,978

Under the Act as presently in effect, no school district shall incur any nonelectoral debt or lease rental debt, if the
aggregate net principal amount of such new debt together with any other net nonelectoral debt and lease rental debt then
outstanding, would cause the net nonelectoral debt plus net lease rental debt to exceed 225% of the Borrowing Base. The
application of the aforesaid percentage to the School District's Borrowing Base produces the following product:

Remaining
Legal Net Debt Borrowing
Limit Outstanding* Capacity
Net Nonelectoral Debt and Lease Rental Debt Limit:
225% of BOrrowing Base..........cocccueeveiveeireecreenenne, $110,672,951 $53,151,662 $57,521,289

*Includes the Bonds offered through this Official Statement.

Source: School District

[THIS SECTION LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK]
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Debt Service Requirements

See Appendix D “SUMMARY OF OUTSTANDING ANNUAL DEBT SERVICE” which represents the debt service
requirements on the School District's outstanding general obligation and lease rental indebtedness including debt service on
the Bonds.

Table 15 calculates the extent to which Commonwealth Aid covers debt service and lease rental requirements.

TABLE 15

NEW CASTLE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
COVERAGE OF GROSS DEBT SERVICE AND LEASE RENTAL REQUIREMENTS

2017-18 Estimated CommONWEAIN A ..........oiiiiiiiiee e e e e e e eraaaaaas $35,578,425
2018-19 Estimated Gross Debt Service Requirements @) ...............cccoviieieiicicecece e $3,681,759
Maximum Future Debt Service Requirements after Issuance of Bonds ............ccccceevviiiiiiiiieeiiniiiiee, $3,988,096
Coverage of 2018-19 Debt Service REQUITEMENTS .........eiiiiiiieiiiiie et e e e e e nees 9.66x
Coverage of Maximum Future Debt Service Requirements after Issuance of Bonds.............cc.c........ 8.92x

(1) Debt service is prior to state reimbursement but after federal subsidy on the 2011 QSCBs

LABOR RELATIONS

School District employees are represented by two separate unions. All of the School District's teachers, personal
care assistants and secretarial staff are represented by the American Federation of Teachers. The teachers’ contract expires
on August 31, 2020. The personal care assistants’ contract expires on June 30, 2019. The Secretaries’ contract expires on
June 30, 2021. The School District's cafeteria workers and custodians are represented by General Teamsters Local 261. The
cafeteria workers’ contract expires June 30, 2021 and the custodians’ contract expires June 30, 2021.

The following table shows School District employment as of June 30, 2017:

Type of Personnel Number
Administrative/Supervisory 24
Professional/Instructional 250
Custodial, Maintenance and Support 155

Total 429

Source: School District

PENSION PROGRAM

Currently, all Pennsylvania school districts and intermediate units participate in a pension program administrated and
guaranteed by the Commonwealth. The program is formally known as the Public School Employees' Retirement System
("PSERS"), and a percentage of each eligible employee's salary is contributed by the employee, the School District and the
Commonwealth. All full-time employees, part-time employees salaried over eighty days per year and hourly employees with
over five hundred hours per year participate in the program. (However, please note judicial decisions have removed the
hourly de minimis requirement for current members of PSERS regarding the purchase of credit for their part-time school
service rendered prior to becoming members of PSERS, for purposes of increasing their pension benefits.)

Contributions are required by active members, School Districts, and the Commonwealth as established by the Public
School Employees' Retirement Code. Active members who joined PSERS prior to July 22, 1983, and who had no break in
their public school service, contribute at 5.25% or at 6.50% of the member's qualifying compensation, depending on each
member's class. Members who returned to public school service or who joined PSERS on or after July 22, 1983 and who were
active or inactive as of July 1, 2001, contribute at 6.25% or at 7.50% of the member's qualifying compensation, depending on
each member's class. Members who joined PSERS after June 30, 2001, contribute at 7.50%. For all new hires and for
members who elected to do so, the higher contribution rates began with service rendered on or after January 21, 2002. Act
120 of 2010 was passed by the General Assembly on November 15 and signed by Governor Rendell on November 23, 2010.
The benefit reductions contained in this legislation will only impact individuals who became new members of PSERS on or
after July 1, 2011. New members will have the option of selecting one of 2 new classes. The members selecting class T-E,
will contribute a base rate of 7.5% with “shared risk” contribution levels between 7.5% and 9.5% and a pension multiplier of
2.0%. Members selecting class T-F will contribute a base rate of 10.3% with shared risk contribution levels between 10.3%
and 12.3% and a pension multiplier or 2.5%.
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The PSERS Board of Trustees has set the fiscal year 2017-18 employer retirement contribution rate at 32.57% of
payroll. The fiscal year 2018-19 rate is expected to be set at 34.18%. Current financial projections indicate the possibility of
increases in the contribution rate in future years. For further discussions of this increase, please refer to the PSERS website
on the Internet: www.users.state.ba.us.

The Commonwealth will reimburse the School District at the rate of 50% of its total contributions with respect to all
employees who were hired prior to July 1, 1994. With respect to employees hired after July 1, 1994, and who were not
previously employed by another public school system in the Commonwealth, the School District will be reimbursed by the
Commonwealth at the rate of the higher of 50% of contributions made by the School District or the current Market
Value/Personal Income Aid Ratio. The School District is reimbursed on a quarterly basis by the Commonwealth.

Under Act 5 of 2017 (signed into law on June 12, 2017), PSERS will begin to move from its historic character as a
defined benefit system to a defined contribution system. Beginning July 1, 2019, in addition to other transition rules and
options based on members' classifications, certain classes of active members may choose to switch from the current defined
benefit plan to one of three new retirement benefit plan options which will be available. Additionally, all active members newly
hired on or after July 1, 2019 will be required to select one of those three new retirement benefit plan options and will not be
eligible to participate in the current defined benefit plan. The three new plans consist of two hybrid plans, with defined benefit
and defined contribution components, along with a stand-alone defined contribution plan.

In addition to its comprehensive change in available plans for active members, Act 5 also made certain changes to
the PSERS Board of Trustees and administrative protocols and created the Public Pension Management and Asset
Investment Review Commission to study and make recommendations to the General Assembly and the Governor regarding
investment performance and strategies.

According to the Independent Fiscal Office, Act 5 is not expected to reduce school district and State contributions to
PSERS over the first fifteen years. However, beginning in fiscal 2034-35 through fiscal 2049-50, employer contribution rates
are expected to begin to decline due to the lower long-term employer costs of the new benefit plans and will be lower, in the
aggregate, over the study period.

Shown below is a summary of the School District's annual retirement contributions to the pension program.

2010-11 $ 1,200,612
2011-12 1,793,805
2012-13 2,544,980
2013-14 3,576,675
2014-15 4,344,447
2015-16 5,628,759
2016-17 (estimated) 5,827,945
2017-18 (budgeted) 6,272,118

The School District is current in all payments.

PSERS is also funded through investment earnings and mandatory member contributions. Member contributions of
approximately $1 billion are expected in fiscal year 2017-18.

Sensitivity of the District’s proportionate share of the net position liability to changes in the discount rate:

1%Decrease Current Discount 1%Increase
Rate (6.50%) Rate (7.50%) Rate (8.50%)
District's proportionate
share of the net pension liability $88,574,000 $71,860,000 $57,812,000

For further information, please refer to Note 12 Page 51 of the June 30, 2016 Audit in Appendix B of this
Official Statement.

Source: Pennsylvania School Board Association at www.PSBA.org and PSERS at www.PSERS.state.pa.us
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Other Post-Employment Benefits

The School District provides certain health care benefits for its retirees (commonly referred to as “other post-
employment benefits” or “OPEB”). The School District has become subject to the requirements of GASB Statements No. 43
and 45, which require the present value of future OPEB to be reflected as a liability on the School District's financial
statements, commencing with the School District’s annual financial statements for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2009.

The School District annually appropriates funds to meet its obligation to pay such benefits on a “pay-as-you-go”
basis, and has not established any fund or irrevocable trust for the accumulation of assets with which to pay such benefits in
future years. In the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016, the School District's “NET” OPEB cost was approximately $533,743, its
FY2016-17 estimate is $787,235 and for its FY2017-18 budget, the OPEB cost is approximately $876,211.

For further information, please refer to Note 11 Page 49 of the June 30, 2016 Audit in Appendix B of this
Official Statement.

BONDHOLDER’S RISKS

The Bonds, like all investment securities, carry a risk of loss of the investment, in whole or in part. This Official
Statement does not purport to describe all of the risks of an investment in the Bonds; both the School District and the
Underwriter disclaim any responsibility to advise prospective investors of such risks either as they may exist at the date of
dissemination of this Official Statement or as they may appear or change from time to time in the future. Prospective
purchasers of the Bonds should consult their own legal and tax advisors as to the risks associated with an investment in the
Bonds and the suitability of investing in the Bonds in light of their particular, individual, circumstances. Prospective purchasers
should evaluate their ability bear the risk of a loss from an investment in the Bonds and should carefully consider, among other
things, the matters described below, as well as the information within this entire Official Statement.

Economic Factors Affecting the Financial Condition of the School District

Changes in current economic conditions, on local, regional and national levels, could adversely affect the School
District's operating revenues and expenses and, consequently, the School District's ability to pay debt service on the Bonds.
Among the factors that could have such adverse effects are: changes in local demographics; closure or relocation of key
industries and employers; increases in local rates of unemployment; decreases in the assessed value of real estate within the
School District; decreases in real estate tax collections; future contract negations with organized labor and the consequent
impact on wage scales and operating costs; increasing costs of special education or the costs of other physical or mental
health care mandated by the State or federal governments; loss or reduction of State and federal subsidies and
reimbursements for operating and capital costs; delays in adoption of, failure to budget and appropriate within or other
adverse changes to, the Commonwealth’s budget, as the same may effect School District revenues or the timely payment
thereof.

Uncertainty of Tax Revenues

There can be no firm assurance or guaranty that the School District will realize sufficient revenues through its
taxing and other revenue generating powers to make full and timely payment of the debt service on the Bonds. The School
District's ability to increase its rates of taxation is limited by the provisions of Act 1. (See “TAXING POWERS AND
LIMITS” and “PENNSYLVANIA ACTS AFFECTING CERTAIN LOCAL TAXING POWERS OF SCHOOL DISTRICTS—
The Taxpayer Relief Act, as Amended (Act 1)" herein).

Additionally, the availability of tax and other locally-generated revenue is dependent on the tax base within the School District and
the ability of this tax base to support the tax burden imposed in any year not only by the School District, but also by such overlapping taxing
authorities as Lawrence County, the City of New Castle and Taylor Township.

However, the School District has never defaulted on the payment of principal of or interest on any general obligation
debt or any tax anticipation note issues.

Competing Commonwealth Intercept Obligations

Under current Pennsylvania law, Commonwealth subsidies to school districts can be intercepted for purposes other
than to pay debt service then due and owing on school district debt. For example, Pennsylvania law authorizes the diversion
of Commonwealth subsidies directly to local charter schools if the School District fails to transfer required appropriations to the
charter school. Additionally, state law authorizes the diversion of state subsidies to the Public School Employees Retirement
System (“PSERS”) if a school district fails to fully fund its annual contribution to the retirement system. (See
“COMMONWEALTH AID TO SCHOOL DISTRICTS” and “PENSION PROGRAM” herein.
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Commonwealth Funding Adjustments or Failure to Appropriate

For the fiscal year ending June 30, 2018, the School District's appropriation from the Commonwealth is expected to
be $35,578,425 and such appropriation represented approximately 69.92% of the revenues of the School District. The
School District’s annual appropriation is dependent upon the adoption by the Commonwealth of its annual budget and
corresponding appropriation legislation, which by law are supposed to be enacted prior to the start of each fiscal year
beginning July 1. However, more than one Commonwealth budgets over the last several years have not been fully
adopted on time, resulting in delays in the payment of such annual appropriations to school districts. See “SECURITY
FOR THE NOTES—Pennsylvania Budget Adoption” herein.

Enforcement of Remedies; Public Education Duties

Enforcement of a claim for payment of principal of and interest on the Bonds may be subject to the provisions of laws enacted by the
United States or the Commonwealth or case law developed by competent courts applying general principles of equity, all of which
could extend the time for payment or impose other constraints upon enforcement.

School District officials are generally charged with the duty of providing for the education, safety and general welfare
of their students. Confronted with a choice between providing education services to its students or funding other obligations
like debt service on the Bonds, bond purchasers should consider carefully the risk that such officials might choose to provide
educational services to its students from its limited funds available before it pays its other obligations.

Actions In The Event Of Default

If the School District fails or neglects to budget, appropriate and pay debt service on the Bonds when due, a holder or
trustee may petition the Court of Common Pleas of Lawrence County, and upon a finding of such failure or neglect, the Court
may direct, by order of mandamus, the School District to pay into the sinking fund established for the Bonds the first tax
moneys or other available revenues or moneys thereafter received. Such judgment could mandate that the School District pay
such debt service prior to all other School District expenses, including School District employee wages and benefits.
Notwithstanding such provisions of law, courts generally exercise wide discretion in deciding whether to grant a writ of
mandamus, and the judges who enter such orders are usually elected to the bench by local voters. Additionally, municipal
officials presented with a writ could resign rather than carry out the mandamus order, in which case it is uncertain the extent to
which bond purchasers would be able to cause other School District officials to pay amounts then due and owing.

In the event the School District defaults in the payment of the principal of or the interest on the Bonds after the same
shall come due, whether at the stated maturity or upon call for prior redemption, and such default shall continue for thirty days,
or if the School District fails to comply with any provision of the Bonds or the Resolution, the Debt Act provides that the holders
of 25% in aggregate principal amount of such Bonds then outstanding may, upon appropriate action, appoint a trustee to
represent the Bond purchasers. The trustee may, and upon request of the holders of 25% in principal amount of such Bonds
then outstanding and upon being provided with indemnity satisfactory to it, shall, take such action on behalf of the Bond
purchasers as is more specifically set forth in the Debt Act. Such representation by the trustee shall be exclusive.

Financial Distress/Bankruptcy

In the event of financial distress, Pennsylvania school districts are subject to State oversight under the provisions of
Act 141. Pursuant to the provisions of Act 141, if a school district is declared in "financial recovery status," a chief recovery
officer is appointed, serves at the pleasure of the Secretary of Education, and is compensated by the Pennsylvania
Department of Education (the "PDE"). The chief recovery officer is appointed to develop, implement, and administer a financial
recovery plan for the school district, coordinate the PDE's provision of technical assistance to the school district; attend regular
and executive sessions of the school district's board of school directors; and meet at least monthly with an advisory committee
which is also established pursuant to the provisions of Act 141. Chief recovery officers are afforded wide discretion by state
courts in developing and implementing financial plans.

The chief recovery officer is required to develop a financial recovery plan for a school district in financial recovery
status within 90 days of appointment, subject to extension by PDE. The school board must approve the financial recovery
plan, which is subject to final approval by PDE. The financial recovery plan shall provide for the payment of lawful financial
obligations of the school district and may include, among other things, recommendations for balancing the budget through tax
or fee changes, and for enhancing the ability of the school district to negotiate new debt.
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Following PDE's approval of the financial recovery plan, the chief recovery officer is required to oversee
implementation of the plan by "directly controlling the implementation process," including directing employees and elected or
appointed officials of the school district to take or refrain from taking certain actions. The school board is required to comply
with all directives of the chief recovery officer and may take no action that is inconsistent with the plan, not specifically
identified in the recovery plan or not directed by the chief recovery officer as necessary to implement the plan. If the school
board fails to comply with the foregoing, the school district shall be subject to the appointment of a receiver pursuant to the
School Code.

Any receiver is required to assume the powers and duties of the chief recovery officer and the board of school
directors and shall have the powers and duties to implement the financial recovery plan including the power to direct the
board of school directors to levy and raise taxes. A receiver, however, may not unilaterally levy or raise taxes or unilaterally
abrogate, alter, or otherwise interfere with a lien, charge, covenant or relative priority held by a holder of a debt obligation of
a school district. Section 672-(AXc)(3) of Article VI-A of the School Code further provides that nothing in the financial
recovery provisions of such article or financial recovery plan shall be construed to authorize a receiver to "unilaterally impair
or modify existing bonds, notes, school district securities or other lawful contractual or legal obligations of the school district,
except as otherwise ordered by a court of competent jurisdiction or as provided in Section 642-A(A)(3)" of Article VI-A of the
School Code which authorizes the receiver to "cancel or renegotiate any contract to which the board of school directors or
the school district is a party, if the cancellation or renegotiation of contract will effect needed economies in the operation of
the district's schools." Collective bargaining agreements are, however, specifically exempted from such clause.

Owing to the existence of Act 141, the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania has not authorized Pennsylvania school
districts to utilize Chapter 9 of the Bankruptcy Code, and so the rights and remedies of bond purchasers with respect to the
School District's obligations are not subject to the provisions of the U.S. Bankruptcy Code under current Pennsylvania law. If
Pennsylvania law were to change on this issue, and the School District were to file for bankruptcy, bond purchasers could
become subject to the provisions of Chapter 9, and the remedies provided under the Debt Act might not be available to bond
purchasers. Although the Bonds represent a general obligation indebtedness of the School District, for which it has pledged
its full faith, credit and available taxing power, some judicial decisions have held that general obligation indebtedness
constitutes an unsecured obligation of the debtor, with a correspondingly lower priority for payment and satisfaction, in the
event of bankruptcy. In such an event, holders of the Bonds should not expect to receive any payment of debt service prior to
confirmation of a plan of adjustment or dismissal of the case. Moreover, holders of the Bonds, as unsecured creditors,
generally would not be entitled to a claim for interest accruing during the pendency of the proceeding.

No Assurance of Secondary Market for the Bonds

There can be no guarantee that there will be a secondary market for the Bonds or, if a secondary market exists, that
the Bonds can be sold for any particular price. Accordingly, purchasers of the Bonds should be prepared to have their funds
committed until the Bonds mature. It is not the present practice of the Underwriter to make a secondary market in the bond
issues for which it serves as Underwriter. Prices of issues for which a market is being made will depend upon then prevailing
circumstances. Such prices could be substantially different than the original purchase price.

Risk of audit by the Internal Revenue Service

The Internal Revenue Service has an ongoing program of auditing tax-exempt obligations to determine whether, in
the view of the Internal Revenue Service, interest on such tax-exempt obligations is includible in the gross income of the
owners thereof for federal income tax purposes. No assurances can be given as to whether or not the Internal Revenue
Service will commence an audit of the Bonds. If an audit is commenced, under current procedures the Internal Revenue
Service is likely to treat the School District as the taxpayer and bond purchasers may have no right to participate in such
procedure. Neither the School District, the Underwriter nor Bond Counsel is obligated to defend the tax-exempt status of the
Bonds on behalf of the bond purchasers, nor to pay or reimburse the cost of any bond purchaser with respect to any audit or
litigation relating to the Bonds. See “TAX MATTERS” herein.

LITIGATION

At the time of settlement, the School Board and the Solicitor will deliver a certificate stating that there is no litigation
pending with respect to the Bonds, the Resolution or the right of the School District to issue the Bonds.
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TAX MATTERS
State Tax Matters

In the opinion of Bond Counsel, the Bonds, and the interest income therefrom, are free from taxation for purposes of
personal income, corporate net income and personal property taxes within the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania.

The residence of a holder of a Bond in a state other than Pennsylvania, or being subject to tax in a state other than
Pennsylvania, may result in income or other tax liabilities being imposed by such other state or its political subdivisions based
on the interest or other income from the Bonds.

Federal Income Tax Matters

In the opinion of Bond Counsel, under existing laws, regulations, rulings and judicial decisions, interest on the
Bonds is excludable from gross income for federal income tax purposes and is not a specific preference item for purposes of
the federal alternative minimum tax. The opinion described in the preceding sentence assumes the accuracy of certain
representations and compliance by the District with covenants designed to satisfy the requirements of the Code that must be
met subsequent to the issuance of the Bonds. Failure to comply with such covenants could cause interest on the Bonds to be
included in gross income for federal income tax purposes retroactive to the date of issuance of the Bonds. The District has
covenanted to comply with such requirements. Bond Counsel has expressed no opinion regarding other federal tax
consequences arising with respect to the Bonds.

Notwithstanding Bond Counsel’s opinion that interest on the Bonds is not a specific preference item for purposes of
the federal alternative minimum tax, such interest will be included in adjusted current earnings of certain corporations, and
such corporations are required to include in the calculation of alternative minimum taxable income 75% of the excess of such
corporations’ adjusted current earnings over their alternative minimum taxable income (determined without regard to such
adjustment and prior to reduction for certain net operating losses).

The accrual or receipt of interest on the Bonds may otherwise affect the federal income tax liability of the owners of
the Bonds. The extent of these other tax consequences will depend upon such owner’s particular tax status and other items of
income or deduction. Bond Counsel has expressed no opinion regarding any such consequences. Purchasers of the Bonds,
particularly purchasers that are corporations (including S corporations and foreign corporations operating branches in the
United States of America), property or casualty insurance companies, banks, thrifts or other financial institutions, certain
recipients of social security or railroad retirement benefits, taxpayers entitled to claim the earned income credit, taxpayers
entitled to claim the refundable credit in Section 36B of the Code for coverage under a qualified health plan or taxpayers who
may be deemed to have incurred or continued indebtedness to purchase or carry tax-exempt obligations, should consult their
tax advisors as to the tax consequences of purchasing or owning the Bonds.

Original Issue Discount

In the opinion of Bond Counsel, under existing law, the original issue discount in the selling price of any Bond sold at an
original issue discount (an "OID Bond"), to the extent properly allocable to each owner of such OID Bond, is excluded from
gross income for federal income tax purposes with respect to such holder. The original issue discount is the excess of the
stated redemption price or principal due at maturity of such OID Bond over the initial offering price to the public, excluding
underwriters and other intermediaries, at which price a substantial amount of such OID Bonds were sold.

Under Section 1288 of the Code, original issue discount on tax-exempt Bonds accrues on a compound basis. The
amount of original issue discount that accrues to an owner of an OID Bond during any accrual period generally equals (i) the
issue price of such OID Bond plus the amount of original issue discount accrued in all prior accrual periods, multiplied by (ii)
the yield to maturity of such OID Bond (determined on the basis of compounding at the close of each accrual period and
properly adjusted for the length of the accrual period), less (iii) any interest payable on such OID Bond during such accrual
period. The amount of original issue discount so accrued in a particular accrual period will be considered to be received
ratably on each day of the accrual period, will be excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes and will
increase the owner's tax basis in such OID Bond. Any gain realized by an owner from a sale, exchange, payment or
redemption of an OID Bond would be treated as gain from the sale or exchange of such OID Bond. Owners of OID Bond
should consult their tax advisors as to the determination for federal income tax purposes of original issue discount accrued or
accredited upon purchase, sale or redemption of such OID Bonds.
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Original Issue Premium

An amount equal to the excess of the purchase price of the Bonds over its stated redemption price or principal due at
maturity constitutes a premium on such Bonds. Those maturities of the Bonds sold at such a premium are referred to herein
as “OIP Bonds.” A purchaser of an OIP Bond must amortize any premium over such OIP Bond’s term using constant yield
principles, based on the OIP Bond'’s yield to maturity. As premium is amortized, the purchaser’s basis in such OIP Bond and
the amount of tax-exempt interest received will be reduced by the amount of amortizable premium properly allocable to such
purchaser. This will result in an increase in the gain (or decrease in the loss) to be recognized for federal income tax
purposes on sale or disposition of such OIP Bond prior to its maturity. Even though the purchaser’s basis is reduced, no
federal income tax deduction is allowed. Purchasers of any Bond at a premium, whether at the time of initial issuance or
subsequent thereto, should consult their tax advisors with respect to the determination and treatment of premium for federal
income tax purposes, and with respect to state and local tax consequences of owning such Bonds.

Bank Qualified

The District has represented that it does not reasonably anticipate issuing greater than $10,000,000 of tax-exempt
obligations in calendar year 2017 and that it has designated the Bonds as “qualified tax-exempt obligations” within the
meaning of Section 265(b)(3) of the Code. Accordingly, assuming the accuracy of such representations, Bond Counsel is of
the opinion that in the case of certain banks, thrift institutions or other financial institutions owning the Bonds, a deduction is
allowed for 80% of that portion of such institutions’ interest expense allocable to interest on such bonds. Bond Counsel has
expressed no opinion with respect to any deduction for federal tax law purposes of interest on indebtedness incurred or
continued by an owner of the Bonds or a related person to purchase or carry such bonds.

Backup Withholding

As a result of the enactment of the Tax Increase Prevention and Reconciliation Act of 2005, interest on tax-exempt
obligations such as the Bonds is subject to information reporting in a manner similar to interest paid on taxable obligations.
Backup withholding may be imposed on payments to any owner of the Bonds who fails to provide certain required information
including an accurate taxpayer identification number to any person required to collect such information pursuant to Section
6049 of the Code. The reporting requirement does not in and of itself affect or alter the excludability of interest on the Bonds
from gross income for federal income tax purposes or any other federal tax consequence of purchasing, holding or selling tax-
exempt obligations.

Changes in Federal and State Tax Law

From time to time, there are legislative proposals in the Congress and in the states that, if enacted, could alter or
amend the federal and state tax matters referred to under this heading “TAX MATTERS” or adversely affect the market value
of the Bonds. It cannot be predicted whether or in what form any such proposal might be enacted or whether if enacted it
would apply to bonds issued prior to enactment. In addition, regulatory actions are from time to time announced or proposed
and litigation is threatened or commenced which, if implemented or concluded in a particular manner, could adversely affect
the market value of the Bonds. It cannot be predicted whether any such regulatory action will be implemented, how any
particular litigation or judicial action will be resolved, or whether the Bonds or the market value thereof would be impacted
thereby. Purchasers of the Bonds should consult their tax advisors regarding any pending or proposed legislation, regulatory
initiatives or litigation. The opinions expressed by Bond Counsel are based upon existing legislation and regulations as
interpreted by relevant judicial and regulatory authorities as of the date of issuance and delivery of the Bonds, and Bond
Counsel has expressed no opinion as of any date subsequent thereto or with respect to any pending legislation, regulatory
initiatives or litigation.

The Internal Revenue Service (the “Service”) regularly audits tax-exempt obligations to determine whether, in the
view of the Service, interest on such tax-exempt obligations is includible in the gross income of the owners thereof for federal
income tax purposes. No prediction can be made whether or not the Service will commence an audit of the Bonds. If an audit
is commenced, under current procedures, the Service may treat the School District as a taxpayer and the Bondholders may
have no right to participate in such procedure. The commencement of an audit could adversely affect the market value and
liquidity of the Bonds until such time as the audit is concluded, regardless of the ultimate outcome.

THE FOREGOING IS NOT INTENDED AS AN EXHAUSTIVE LIST OF THE PROVISIONS OF FEDERAL, STATE
AND LOCAL TAX LAWS WHICH MAY HAVE AN EFFECT ON INDIVIDUALS AND CORPORATIONS HOLDING THE
BONDS OR RECEIVING INTEREST THEREON. PROSPECTIVE PURCHASERS SHOULD CONSULT WITH THEIR OWN
TAX ADVISORS REGARDING THE EFFECT ON THEIR FEDERAL, STATE OR LOCAL TAX LIABILITY AND GENERAL
FINANCIAL AFFAIRS OF HOLDING THE BONDS OR RECEIVING INTEREST THEREON.
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CONTINUING DISCLOSURE UNDERTAKING

In accordance with the requirements of Rule 15¢2-12 (the “Rule”) promulgated by the Securities and Exchange
Commission (the “SEC”), the School District (being an “obligated person” with respect to the Bonds, within the meaning of the
Rule), will agree to provide the following to the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board (the “MSRB") in an electronic format as
prescribed by the MSRB, either directly or indirectly through a designated agent:

(A) Annually, not later than April 1st following the end of each fiscal year, beginning with the fiscal year ending June 30,
2018, the following financial information and operating data for the School District:

e Audited financial statements for the most recent fiscal year, prepared in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles for local government units
e A summary of the budget for the current fiscal year

(B) In a timely manner not in excess of ten (10) business days after the occurrence of the event, notice of the
occurrence of any of the following events with respect to the Bonds: (1) principal and interest payment
delinquencies; (2) non-payment related defaults, if material; (3) unscheduled draws on debt service reserves
reflecting financial difficulties; (4) unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial difficulties; (5)
substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to perform; (6) adverse tax opinions, the issuance by the
Internal Revenue Service of proposed or final determinations of taxability, Notices of Proposed Issue (IRS Form
5701-TEB) or other material notices or determinations with respect to the tax status of the Bonds, or other material
events affecting the tax status of the Bonds; (7) modifications to rights of holders of the Bonds, if material; (8) bond
calls, if material, and tender offers; (9) defeasances; (10) release, substitution, or sale of property securing
repayment of the Bonds, if material; (11) rating changes; (12) bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership or similar event
of the School District; (13) the consummation of a merger, consolidation, or acquisition involving the School District
or the sale of all or substantially all of the assets of the School District, other than in the ordinary course of business,
the entry into a definitive agreement to undertake such an action or the termination of a definitive agreement relating
to any such actions, other than pursuant to its terms, if material; and (14) appointment of a successor or additional
trustee or the change of name of a trustee, if material; and

(C) in a timely manner, notice of a failure of the School District to provide the required annual financial information
specified above, on or before the date specified above.

With respect to the filing of annual financial and operating information, the School District reserves the right to modify
from time to time the specific types of information provided or the format of the presentation of such information to the extent
necessary or appropriate as a result of a change in legal requirements or a change in the nature of the School District or its
operations or financial reporting, but the School District will agree that any such modification will be done in a manner
consistent with the Rule.

The events listed in (B) above are those specified in the Rule, not all of which may be relevant to the Bonds. The
School District may from time to time choose to file notice of the occurrence of other events, in addition to the events listed in
(B) above, but the School District does not commit to provide notice of the occurrence of any events except those specifically
listed in (B) above.

The School District acknowledges that its undertaking pursuant to the Rule described herein is intended to be for the
benefit of the Beneficial Owners of the Bonds and shall be enforceable by the Beneficial Owners of the Bonds, but the right of
the Beneficial Owners of the Bonds to enforce the provisions of the School District’s continuing disclosure undertaking shall be
limited to a right to obtain specific enforcement, and any failure by the School District to comply with the provisions of the
undertaking shall not be an event of default with respect to the Bonds.

The School District’s obligations with respect to continuing disclosure described herein shall terminate upon the prior
redemption or payment in full of all of the Bonds or if and when the School District is no longer an “obligated person” with
respect to the Bonds, within the meaning of the Rule.

The MSRB has been designated by the SEC to be the central and sole repository for continuing disclosure
information filed by issuers of municipal securities since July 1, 2009. Information and notices filed by municipal issuers (and
other “obligated persons” with respect to municipal securities issues) are made available through the MSRB'’s Electronic
Municipal Market Access (EMMA) System, which may be accessed on the internet at http://www.emma.msrb.org.
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COMPLIANCE WITH PREVIOUS CONTINUING DISCLOSURE UNDERTAKINGS

The School District has entered into prior undertakings to provide information pursuant to Continuing Disclosure
Agreements for several outstanding bond issues. The requirements of the outstanding bond issues require the School District
to submit information annually, with the shortest submission period being 180 days following the close of each fiscal year of
the School District, which occurs on June 30th. The following table below provides information regarding the undertaking,
annual filing deadlines and the School District's performance of its filing obligations:

Bond Issue Annual Fling Date of Fling Date of Fling Date of Fling
Subject to a CDA Fiscal Year Deadline Due Date Audit Budget Operating Data (4)
Series 0of 2010 6/30/2012 180 Days 12/27/2012 9/10/2013 - 9/25/2017
Dated Date: June 15,2010 6/30/2013 = from June 30th 12/27/2013 2/26/2014 - 9/25/2017
Closing Date: June 28,2010 6/30/2014 12/27/2014 = 5/11/2015 (1) - 12/30/2014
To be refunded with this issue 6/30/2015 Insurer: AGM 12/27/2015  6/10/2016 (2) - 12/29/2015
6/30/2016 12/27/2016 = 3/30/2017 (3) - 12/29/2016
Series 0f 2011 (QSCBs - SPSBA) 6/30/2012 December 31st 12/31/2012 9/26/2017 - 9/25/2017
Dated Date: November 3, 2011 6/30/2013 12/31/2013 9/26/2017 - 9/25/2017
Closing Date: November 3, 2011 6/30/2014 12/31/2014  5/11/2015 (1) - 12/30/2014
6/30/2015 Insurer: None 12/31/2015 6/10/2016 (2) - 12/29/2015
6/30/2016 12/31/2016 = 3/30/2017 (3) - 12/29/2016
Series Aof2011 6/30/2012 270 days following  3/27/2013 9/10/2013 9/25/2017 9/25/2017
Dated Date: December 1, 2011 6/30/2013 = June 30th 3/27/2014 2/26/2014 9/25/2017 9/25/2017
Closing Date: December 1,2011 6/30/2014 3/27/2015 = 5/11/2015 (1) 12/30/2014 12/30/2014
6/30/2015 Insurer: AGM 3/26/2016 = 6/10/2016 (2) 12/29/2015 12/29/2015
6/30/2016 3/27/2017 = 3/30/2017 (3) 12/29/2016 12/29/2016
Series B of 2011 6/30/2012 270 days following  3/27/2013 9/10/2013 9/25/2017 9/25/2017
Dated Date: December 1,2011 6/30/2013  June 30th 3/27/2014 2/26/2014 9/25/2017 9/25/2017
Closing Date: December 1,2011 6/30/2014 3/27/2015 = 5/11/2015 (1) 12/30/2014 12/30/2014
matured March 1st of 2016 6/30/2015 Insurer: AGM 3/26/2016 = 6/10/2016 (2) 12/29/2015 12/29/2015
6/30/2016 3/27/2017 - - -
Series C 0f 2011 6/30/2012 270 days following  3/27/2013 9/10/2013 9/25/2017 9/25/2017
Dated Date: December 1,2011 6/30/2013 June 30th 3/27/2014 2/26/2014 9/25/2017 9/25/2017
Closing Date: December 1,2011 6/30/2014 3/27/2015 = 5/11/2015 (1) 12/30/2014 12/30/2014
6/30/2015 Insurer: AGM 3/26/2016 = 6/10/2016 (2) 12/29/2015 12/29/2015
6/30/2016 3/27/2017 = 3/30/2017 (3) 12/29/2016 12/29/2016
Series 0f 2012 6/30/2012 270 days following  3/27/2013 9/10/2013 9/25/2017 9/25/2017
Dated Date: February 21, 2012 6/30/2013 = June 30th 3/27/2014 2/26/2014 9/25/2017 9/25/2017
Closing Date: February 21, 2012 6/30/2014 3/27/2015 = 5/11/2015 (1) 12/30/2014 12/30/2014
A portion to be refunded with thisissue = 6/30/2015 Insurer: AGM 3/26/2016 = 6/10/2016 (2) 12/29/2015 12/29/2015
6/30/2016 3/27/2017 = 3/30/2017 (3) 12/29/2016 12/29/2016

(1) The 2014 Annual Financial Report (which is un-audited) was filed on 12-30-14
(2) The 2015 Annual Financial Report (which is un-audited) was filed on 12-29-15
(3) The 2016 Annual Financial Report (which is un-audited) was filed on 12-29-16
(4) Aportion of the operating data was filed prior to the date shown above and the remainder on the date shown above

Some of the School District's bond issues that have been outstanding during the past five (5) years have been insured
by various bond insurance companies that have received rating downgrades and upgrades by S&P and/or Moody's. This
information was publicly available from widely accepted information sources at the time of their respective downgrades or
upgrades. For informational purposes, the School District has uploaded a summary of these rating changes relating to certain
bond insurance companies on August 29, 2017.

As outlined in the table above, the School District failed to provide certain annual financial information in a timely
manner during the past five (5) years, however the School District subsequently filed all the required annual financial information
on the dates stated on the above table along with a “Failure to Provide” notice to the MSRB’s Emma System September 26,
2017. The School District will continue to adhere to procedures that were put in place to provide timely ongoing disclosure of
annual financial information and notice of material events affecting its securities.

The School District has engaged Digital Assurance Certification, LLC (“DAC”) as its Dissemination Agent for the purpose
of complying with Rule 15¢2-12, beginning with the issuance of the Bonds.
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UNDERWRITING

The Underwriter has agreed, subject to certain conditions, to purchase the Bonds from the School District at an
aggregate price of $9,781,746.30, (which represents the par amount of Bonds less underwriter’s discount of $84,957.50, minus
net original issue discount of $128,296.20). The Underwriter's obligations are subject to certain conditions precedent; however,
the Underwriter will be obligated to purchase all such Bonds if any such Bonds are purchased. The Bonds may be offered and
sold to certain dealers (including dealers depositing such Bonds into investment trusts) at prices lower than such public offering
prices, and such public offering prices may be changed, from time to time, by the Underwriter.

RATING

S&P Global Ratings is expected to assign its rating of “AA (Stable Outlook)” to the Bonds, with the understanding
that, upon delivery of the Bonds, a municipal bond insurance policy will be issued by AGM insuring the payment, when due, of
the principal of and interest on the Bonds. S&P Global Ratings has also assigned an underlying rating of “A (Stable Outlook)”
to the Bonds. An explanation of the significance of such rating may be obtained only from the rating agency furnishing the
same. There is no assurance that any such rating will be in effect for any given period of time or that it will not be revised
downward or withdrawn entirely by the rating agency if, in the judgment of such agency, circumstances so warrant. Any such
downward revision or withdrawal of any such rating may have an adverse effect on the market price of the Bonds.

LEGAL OPINION

All legal matters incident to the authorization, issuance and sale of the Bonds are subject to the approval of Bruce E.
Dice & Associates, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania, Bond Counsel, whose approving legal opinion is printed on the Bonds. The
District's Solicitor, Charles P. Sapienza, Jr., Esquire of New Castle, Pennsylvania will pass upon certain legal matters for the
District.

Bond Counsel's opinions are based on existing law, which is subject to change. Such opinions are further based on
factual representations made to Bond Counsel as of the date thereof. Bond Counsel assumes no duty to update or
supplement its opinions to reflect any facts or circumstances that may thereafter come to Bond Counsel's attention or to reflect
any changes in law that may thereafter occur or become effective. Moreover, Bond Counsel's opinions are not a guarantee of
a particular result and are not binding on the IRS or the courts; rather, such opinions represent Bond Counsel's professional
judgment based on its review of existing law and in reliance on the representations and covenants that it deems relevant to
such opinions.

FINANCIAL ADVISOR

The School District has retained PFM Financial Advisors LLC (“PFM”), Harrisburg, Pennsylvania as financial advisor
(the "Financial Advisor") in connection with the preparation, authorization and issuance of the Bonds. The Financial Advisor is
not obligated to undertake, and has not undertaken to make, an independent verification or to assume responsibility for the
accuracy, completeness, or fairness of the information contained in the Official Statement. PFM is an independent advisory
firm and is not engaged in the business of underwriting, trading or distributing municipal securities or other public securities.
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MISCELLANEOUS

This Official Statement has been prepared under the direction of the School District by Boenning & Scattergood, Inc.,
Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania, in its capacity as Underwriter to the School District. The information set forth in this Official
Statement has been obtained from the School District and from other sources believed to be reliable. Insofar as any
statement herein includes matters of opinion or estimates about future conditions, it is not intended as representation of fact,
and there is no guarantee that it is, or will be, realized. Summaries or descriptions of provisions of the Bonds, the Resolution,
and all references to other materials not purporting to be quoted in full are only brief outlines of some of the provisions thereof.
Reference is hereby made to the complete documents, copies of which will be furnished by the School District or the
Underwriter upon request. The information assembled in this Official Statement is not to be construed as a contract with
holders of the Bonds.

Use of the words “shall,” “will,” must,” or other words of similar import or meaning in summaries of documents or law
in this Official Statement to describe future events or continuing obligations is not intended as a representation that such event
will occur or such obligations will be fulfilled, but only that the document or law requires or contemplates such event to occur or
such obligation to be fulfilled.

The School District has authorized the distribution of this Official Statement.
NEW CASTLE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT

Lawrence County, Pennsylvania

By: /s/ _Mr. George Gabriel
President, Board of School Directors

By: /s/ _Ms. Abbie Betley
Secretary
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SCHOOL DISTRICT
General

The New Castle Area School District is a Pennsylvania school district of the Third Class. School Districts
within Pennsylvania are ranked by the Pennsylvania Department of Education as First, Second, Third or Fourth Class
according to population. The School District is located in the center of Lawrence County and encompasses the City
of New Castle and Taylor Township. The School District had a population in 2010 of 24,325 and covers an area of
approximately 8.11 square miles.

TABLE A-1

AREA DEMOGRAPHIC

Population
2000 2010 2000-10 % Change
City of New Castle 26,309 23,273 (13.05%)
Taylor Township 1,198 1,052 (13.88%)
School District 27,507 24,325 (13.08%)
Lawrence County 94,643 91,108 (3.88%)
Pennsylvania 12,281,054 12,702,379 3.32%

Source : United States Census Bureau 2000 and 2010.

Per Capita Income — 2000 and 2011

2000 2011 2000-11 % Change
City of New Castle $13,730 $17,329 20.77

Taylor Township $15,368 N/A N/A
Lawrence County $16,835 $20,674 18.57%
Pennsylvania $20,880 $25,692 18.72%

Source : United States Census Bureau — American Community Survey

Family and Household Income - 2010

Household Income Median Family Income Median

City of New Castle $31,898 $40,113
Taylor Township $44,250 $45,302
Lawrence County $42,833 $52,416
Pennsylvania $49,737 $62,520

Source : United States Census Bureau
Housing

Lawrence County 2000 census figures showed 39,635 housing units, compared to 40,975 housing units in
2011. This represents an increase of 1,340 housing units within a decade. School District 2000 census figures
showed 11,703 housing units, compared to 11,798 housing units in 2011. This represents an increase of 95 housing
units within a decade.



Housing Units - 2011

City of New Castle
Taylor Township
Lawrence County
Pennsylvania

Owner Occupied

Number Median Value
11,304 $57,100
494 $75,000
40,975 $90,400
5,567,315 $152,300

Source : United States Census Bureau — American Community Survey

Renter Occupied
Median Rent
$505
$483
$590
$716

Table A-2 shows recent trends in labor force, employment, and unemployment for the County and the State.

TABLE A-2

RECENT TRENDS IN LABOR FORCE, EMPLOYMENT AND UNEMPLOYMENT

Lawrence County
Civilian Labor Force (000)
Employment (000)
Unemployment (000)
Unemployment Rate

Pennsylvania
Civilian Labor Force (000)
Employment (000)
Unemployment (000)
Unemployment Rate

MAs of July 2017

TEN LARGEST EMPLOYERS IN LAWRENCE COUNTY

Name

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 20179
43,300 43,000 42,600 42,200 42,600 41,200
39,900 39,800 39,900 39,600 39,600 38,700

3,400 3,200 2,700 2,600 3,000 2,500

7.90% 7.50% 6.20% 6.10% 7.00% 6.10%

6,465 6,442 6,378 6,399 6,567 6,531

5,957 5,964 6,009 6,088 6,170 6,183

508 478 370 310 396 348

7.90% 7.40% 5.80% 4.90% 6.00% 5.30%
TABLE A-3

Jameson Memorial Hospital

ISS Facility Services Inc.

DON Services Inc.

New Castle Area School District
County of Lawrence

Westminster College

State Government

Ellwood City Hospital

Wal-Mart Associates

Liberty Mutual Insurance Company

Health Care
Janitorial Services
Health Care
Education
Government
Education
Government
Health Care
Retail

Insurance

Source: Center for Workforce Information & Analysis — 4th Quarter 2016 — July 2017



Transportation

The School District is well positioned for interstate highway travel. US Interstate 79 lies approximately 8 miles
to the east and is easily accessed via US Highway 422. US Interstate 80 lies approximately 10 miles to the north and
is easily accessed via State Highway 60. The Pennsylvania Turnpike (US Interstate 76) lies approximately 10 miles
south and is easily accessed via State Route 18. In addition to these major and supporting highways, State
Highways 65, 108, 168, 551 and 956 travel through portions of the School District and the Lawrence County area.

The Baltimore & Ohio and Pittsburgh & Lake Erie Railroads provide freight service to the area. Passenger train
service is provided by AMTRAK.

Regional bus service is provided by the New Castle Area Transit Authority which operates the municipal owned
buses within the City. The Authority provides service to and from adjacent shopping areas such as Westgate Plaza
in Union Township, North City Plaza in Neshannock Township and Lawrence Village in Shenango Township. Long
distance bus service is provided to area residents by Greyhound. Numerous charter bus providers also operate
within the Lawrence County area.

The New Castle Airport is located four miles northwest of the City. The 250 acre airport has 4,000 and 2,750
foot runways complete with taxi ways, runway lighting, a rotating beacon, hangar facilities for 24 aircraft and a large
tie-down and parking area. The School District's proximity to Interstate 79 also allows residents easy access to the
Pittsburgh International Airport.

Utilities

Water service is provided to the School District by the Western Pennsylvania Water Company. The electrical
service is provided by Penn Power. The natural gas is provided by Columbia Gas of Pennsylvania. Sanitary sewer
service is provided by New Castle Sanitation Authority and several adjacent municipal authorities. Local telephone
service is provided by Verizon. Numerous long distance telephone companies service the New Castle area.
Television cable service is provided by Comcast.

Higher Education

Westminster College, located fewer than 10 miles northwest of the School District in nearby New
Wilmington, is a co-educational liberal arts college founded by the United Presbyterian Church in 1852. Westminster
offers over 40 undergraduate majors and pre-professional programs and one graduate program in Education.
Slippery Rock University, located 10 miles from the School District in northern Butler County, is an integral institution
within the Pennsylvania State System of Higher Education.

Other higher education institutions within close proximity of the School District are listed below:

Institution Location
Youngstown State University Youngstown
Slippery Rock University Slippery Rock
Edinboro University Edinboro
Clarion University Clarion

Gannon University Erie

Grove City College Grove City
Allegheny College Meadville
Westminster College New Wilmington
Thiel College Greenville



Medical Facilities

UPMC/Jameson Memorial Hospital was founded as a successor to the original Shenango Valley Hospital.
Dedicated in 1929, Jameson Memorial Hospital has expanded and modernized its facilities over the years to meet the
community’s growing health care needs. The Hospital is a non-profit, general hospital offering a full range of
services. Some of the medical services offered by the hospital are primary and acute care, cardiology, neurology,
outpatient surgery, women’s healthcare, nuclear and emergency medicine, CAT scanner, ultrasound and a cancer
program approved by the American College of Surgeons.

The UPMC/Jameson Memorial Hospital School of Nursing offers a 27 month program in conjunction with
Slippery Rock University of Pennsylvania.

Recreation and Culture

The City of New Castle maintains 22 fully equipped playgrounds within the City. In addition, the City manages
three parks, over 20 baseball fields, 26 tennis courts, two lighted softball fields, three golf courses and a baseball
park.

The New Castle Public Library was built in 1979 and contains in excess of 150,000 volumes. The library offers
a wide range of programs for area residents of all ages. The library also serves as a site for Geneva College night
school courses and provides, free of charge, two meeting rooms to local non-profit organizations. A law library which
is located at the Lawrence County Courthouse is also open to the public.

New Castle is within close proximity to several quality outdoor recreational faciliies maintained by the
Pennsylvania Bureau of State Parks. Moraine State Park, located approximately 10 miles southeast of the School
District, is a 15, 966 acre state park complete with a 3,225 acre lake, picnic pavilions, beaches, boat rentals, boat
launches, a marina, hunting, hiking, biking trails, family cabins and camping areas.

McConnells Mill State Park, located near Slippery Rock, is a 2,534 acre state park facility that features a
nostalgic gristmill and covered bridge nestled deep within the gorge that forms the fabled Slippery Rock Creek. Other
amenities of the park include picnic pavilions, playgrounds, fishing, hunting and biking.
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PHILIP WEINER AND COMPANY LTD
A CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
ORGANIZED 1944 INCORPORATED 1991

. NEW CASTLE, PENNSYLVANIA
Boaxrd of Directors

New Castle Area School District
New Castle, Panmnsylvania

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

We have andited the accompanying comparative financial statements of the
governnental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely
presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of New Castle Area School District, as of and for the year ended June
30, 2016, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively
comprise the District’s basic financial statementsz as listed in the table on
contents.

Managament’s Raesponsibility for tha Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these
financial statements in accordance with auditing principles generally accepted
in the United States of America; thies includes tha design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presantation
of finanoial statements that are free from matarial misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error,

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based
on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United S8tates of America and the standards applicable
to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assuranca about whether the financial
statemants are fraa of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on thé auditor’s Jjudgment, including the assessment of the risk of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud of error,
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant
to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpeosa of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit alse
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
reagonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statement.

Wa believe that the audit evidence is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basgis for our audit opinions.

inions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all
material respacts, the respective financial position of the governmental
activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented
component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information
of the New Castle Area Bchool District, as of Juns 30, 2016, and the raspactive
changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the
year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America.
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Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial
statements that collectively comprise the Mew Castle Area School District’s basic
financial statements, The introductory section, combining and individnal
normajor fund financial statements, and statistieal section, are presented for
purposes of additional analysis and are not a raquired part of the basic
financial statements. Tha schedule of expenditures of fedexal awards is
presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by Title 2 U.S. Code
of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principle, and Audit Requirements of Federal Awards {(Uniform Guidance), and is
alsoc not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and the schedule
of expenditures of federal awards are the responsibility of management and were
derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records
used to prepare the basic financial statements, Buch information has been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements and certain additicnal procedures, including comparing and reconciling
such information directly to the underlying azccounting and other records used to
prepare the basic financial statementas or to the basic financial statements
themselves, and other additional proceduras in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the
combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and the schedule of
expenditures of federal awards are fairly stated in all material respects in
relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

The introductory and statistical sections have not baen subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in tha aundit of the basic financial statements and,
accordingly, we do not express an opinion oxr provide any assurance on them.

Other Reporting Recquired by Govermment Auvditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report
dated March 15, 2017, on our consideration of the New Castla Area School
District’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements and other matters, The purpose of that report is to describe the
scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the interxnal
control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral
part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in
considering the New Castle Area School Distriet ’s internal eontrol over
financial reporting and compliance.

Rt

New Castle, Pennsylvania
March 15, 2017




NEW CASTLE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
NEW CASTLE, PA 16101

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (MD&A)
Required Supplementary Information (RSI)
June 30, 2016

The discussion and analysis of the New Castle Area School District's financial performance provides an overall
review of the District's financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016. The intent of this discussion
and analysis is to look at the District's financial performance as a whole; readers should also review the
transmittal letter, notes to the basic financial statements and financial statements to enhance their
understanding of the Disfrict's financial performance.

The Management Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is an eilement of the new reporting model adapted by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) in their Statement No. 34 Basic Financial Statements — and
Management’s Discussion and Analysis — for State and Local Governments issued June 1998. Certain
comparative information between the current year and the prior year is required to be presented in the MD&A.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS:

The District in 2015-2016 relied on their reserves in the approximate amount of $1,590,000 to balance the
budget. Revenues and Expenditures both increased approximately 4% based on projections. The largest
increases in expendifures occurred in the area of salaries, heaith care, tuitions and retirement contributions,
The over-all fund balance of $5,798,266 (including Capital Reserve Fund of $548,491) at the end of fiscal year
June 2016, will allow the District to maintain real estate tax millage at its current level and no tax increases will
be projected for the 2016-2017 tax year.




NEW CASTLE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
NEW CASTLE, PA 16101

USING ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
This annual report consists of two distinct series of financial statements: district-wide and fund.

The first two statements (district-wide) are government-wide financial statements — the Statement of Net Assets
and the Statement of Activities. These provide both long-term and shortterm information about the District's
overall financial staius.

The remaining statements (fund) focus on individual parts of the Districts operations in more detail than the
government-wide statements. The governmental funds statements tell how general District services were
financed in the short term as well as what remains for future spending. Proprietary fund statements offer short
and long-term financial information about the activities that the District operates like a business. For the New
Castle Area School District, this is our Food Service Fund. Fiduciary fund statements provide information about
financial relationships where the District acts solely as a trustee or agent for the benefit of others, to whom the

resources in question belong.

The financial statements also include notes that explain some of the information in the financial statements and
provide more detailed data,

Figure A-1 shows how the required parts of the financial section are arranged and relate to one another:

Figure A-1
Required Components of
New Castle Area School Districts
Financial Report

|

Management Basic
Discussion Financial
and Analysis Statements
Government-
wide Fund Notes to
Financlal Financial the
Statements Statements Financial
Statements




NEW CASTLE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
NEW CASTLE, PA 16101

Figure A-2 summarizes the major features of the District’s financial statements, including the pottion of the
District they cover and the types of information they contain. The remainder of this overview section of
management discussion and analysis explains the structure and contents of each of the statements,

Figure A-2

Major Features of New Castle Area School District's
Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements

Fund Statements
Govemment- Govermnmental Proprietary Fiduciary
wide Funds Funds Funds
Statements
Scope Entire District | The activities of the | Activities the Instances in which
(except District that are not ; District operates | the District is the
fiduciary funds) | proprietary or similar to private | rustee or agent to
fiduciary, such as business — Food | someone else's .
education, Services resources —
administration and Scholarship Funds
community services
Required financiai | Statement of Balance Sheet, Statement of Statement of
statements Net Assets Statement of Net Assets Fiduciary Net
Statement of Revenues, Statement of Assets
Activities Expenditures, and | Revenues, Statement of
Changes in Fund Expenses and Changes in
Balance Changes in Net | Fiduciary Net
Assets Assets
Statement of
Cash Flows
Accounting basis | Accrual Modified accrual Accrual Accrual
and accounting and | accounting and accounting and | accounting and
measurement economic current financial €conomic economic
focus resources resources focus resources focus | resources focus
focus
Type of All assets and | Only assets All assets and All assets and
assetfliability liabilities, both | expected to be liabilities, both liabilities, both
information financial and used up and financial and short-term and
capital, and liabilities that come | capital, and long-term
short-term and ;| due during the year | short-term and
long-term or soon thereafter; ! long-term
ho capital assets
included
Type of inflow- All revenues Revenues for which | All revenues and | All revenues and
oulflow and expenses ! cash is received expenses during ! expenses during
information during year, during or soon after | year, regardless | year, regardless of
regardless of the end of the year; | of when cashis | when cash is
when cash is expenditures when | received or paid | recelved or paid
received or goods or services
paid have been received
' and payment is due
during the year or
soon thereafter

OVERVIEW OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS




NEW CASTLE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
NEW CASTLE, PA 16101

Government-wide Statements

The government-wide statements report information about the District as a whole using accounting methods
similar to those used by private-sector companies. The statement of net assets includes all of the government's
assets and liabilities. All of the current year's revenues and expenses are accounted for in the statement of
activities regardless of when cash is received or paid.

The fwo government-wide statements report the Disfricts net assets and how they have changed. Net assets,
the difference beiween the District’s assets and liabiiities, are one way to measure the District's financial health

or position.

Over time, increases or decreases in the District's net assets are an indication of whether its financial health is
improving or deteriorating, respectively.

To assess the overall health of the District, you need to consider additionai non-financial factors, such as
changes in the District's property tax base and the performance of the students.

The government-wide financial statements of the Disirict are divided into two categories:

» Governmental activiles — All of the Districts basic services are included here, such as instruction,
administration and community services. Property taxes and state and federal subsidies and grants finance
most of these activities.

= Business fype activities —The District operates a food service operation and charges fees to staff, students
and visitors to help it cover the costs of the food service operation.

Fund Financial Statemeanis

The District's fund financial statements provide detailed information about the most significant funds — not the
District as a whole. Some funds are required by state law and by bond requirements.

Governmental Funds — Most of the District's activities are reported in governmental funds, which focus
on the determination of financial position and change in financial position, not on income determination.
They are reported using an accounting method called modified accrual accounting, which measures
cash and ali other financial assets that can readily be converted fo cash. The goevernmental fund
statements provide a detailed short-term view of the District's operations and the services it provides.
Governmental fund information helps the reader determine whether there are more or fewer financial
resources that can be spent in the near future to finance the District’s programs. The relationship (or
differences) befween governmental activities (reported In the Statement of Net Assets and the
Statement of Activities) and governmental funds is reconciled in the financial statements.

Proprietary Funds - These funds are used to account for the District activities that are similar to
business operations in the private sector; or where the reporting is on determining net income, financial
position, changes in financial position, and a significant portion of funding through user charges. When
the District charges customers for services it provides — whether to outside customers or to other units
in the District — these services are generally reported in proprietary funds. The Food Service Fund is the
District's proprietary fund and is the same as the business-type activities we report in the government-
wide statements, but provide more detail and additional information, such as cash flows.

Fiduciary Funds - The District Is the trustee, or fiduciary, for some scholarship funds. All of the District's
fiduciary activities are report in separate Statements of Fiduciary Net Assets. We exclude these
activities from the Disfrict's other financial statement because the District cannot use these assets to

finance its operations.




NEW CASTLE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
NEW CASTLE, PA 16101

FINANGIAL ANALYSIS OF THE DISTRICT AS A WHOLE

The District's total net assets were $51,199,834 at June 30, 2016.

Table A-1
Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2015 and 2016
Net Assets
2015 2016
Business- Business-
Gavernmental fype Governmental type
Activities Activities Tolal Activities Activities Tota|

Current Assets $14,027,502  $534,315 $14,561,817  $12,919919  $106,613 $13,026,532

Capital Assets 70,469,554 4,900 70,474,454 68,704,118 3,811 68,707,929
Non-Capital

Assets 277,042 0 277,042 0 0 ¢
Deferred 6,179.760
Qutflow 5953.815 0 5.953.815 6,179,760 0

Resources

Total Assets $90.727.913 $539.215 $91.267,128 $87.803,797 3110424 $87.014 221
Current

Liabilities $ 8,443,776 $463,672 § 8907348 §$ 9,353,081 $11,426 $ 9,364,507
Long-term

llabilities 125,169,848 0 125,169,848 127,950,548 0 127,950,548
Deferred Infiow

Resources 4,807,000 0 _4,807.000 1,798,000 0 1,799,000
Total

Liabilities $136,613,624 $463,572 $134,077196 $138,102,629 $11,426 $139,114,055
Net Assets

Invested in capita

assets, net of
related debt 13,854,741 4 900 13859,641 13,474,507 3,811 13,478,318

Capital Projects 848,843 0 848,843 548,491 0 548,491

Unrestricted (62,398,295) 70,743 (62.325552)  (65,321.830) 95,187 (65.226,643)

Total Net Assets (47,692.711) 75643 (47,617.068) (51,298.832) 098998 (51.199,834)
Totat Liabilities

and NetAssefs  $90,727.913  $530.216 $91267128 $87.803797 $110424 $87.914,221

Most of the District's net assets are invested in capital assets (buildings, land, and equipment). The remaining
unrestricted net assets are combined of designated and undesignated amounts. The dssignated balances are
amounts set-aside to fund future purchases or capital projects as planned by the district. The resulis of this
year's operations as a whole are reported in the Statement of Activities. All expenses are reported in the first
column. Specific charges, grants, revenues and subsidies that directly relate to specific expense categories are
represented to determine the final amount of the District's activities that are supported by other general
revenues. The two largest general revenues are the Basic Education Subsidy provided by the State of
Pennsylvania, and the local taxes assessed to community taxpayers.




NEW CASTLE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
NEW CASTLE, PA 16101

Table A-2 takes the information from that Statement, rearranges it slightly, so you can see our total revenues for
Table A-2

Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2015 and 2016
Changes in Net Position

the year.

Revenues
Program revenues

Charges for services

Operating grants/

contributions

Capital grants/

contributions
General Revenues:

Property taxes

Other taxes

Grants, subsidies

Other
Total
revenues
Expenses

Instruction
Instructional student
support
Administrative and
financial support
Operation and
maintenance of plant

Pupll transportation
Student activities
Community services

Interest on long-term
debt

Food Services
Total
expenses
Increase (decrease) in
net position

Beginning Net
Position

Endinyg Net Position

Governmen
Activities

$ 205,381
13,707,546
0
8,289,711

1,770,058
22,989,102

275,949

47,237,745

33,376,741
3,477,920
4,672,531

3,774,086
1,640,987

1,431,428
38,042

2,415,243
0
50,526,977
(3,289,232)
(44,403.479)

2015
Business-

tal type
Activities

$ 105,287
1,924,128
0

oo o

89

2,029,484

(=]

oo O o

Q

2,047,739

2,047,739

(18,255)
93,898

$ 310,668
13,631,674
0
8,289,741

1,770,056
22,989,102

276,018
49,267,229

33,376,741
3,477,920
4,672,531

3,774,086
1,640,987

1,131,428
38,042

2,415,243

204773

52.574.716
(3,307,487)

2016
Business-
Governmental type
Activitieg Aciivities

$ 292,319 $ 112,815
14,466,973 2,196,216
0 0
8,262,143 0
1,750,104 0
23,610,546 0
.94.324 1.182
48 476,409 2,310,193
34,832,048 0
3,292,370 0
5,108,557 o
3,775,472 0
1,664,213 0
987,275 0
69,780 0
2,374,815 ¢
1] 2,286,838
52,082,530 2.286,838
(3,606,121) 23,355
75,643

{44,309.381) [47.692,711)

$ 40513
16,663,18

8,262,14
1,750,10
23,610,54

9548

50,786.60

34,832,04
3,202,37
5,106,658

3,755,47
1,664,21

987,27
69,78

2,374,81

2.286 82

54,369, 3¢

(3,582,76
{47.617.06

($47,692,711) $75643 (§47.617,068) ($51,208832) §298,908 ($51,190.83




NEW CASTLE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT

NEW CASTLE, PA 16101

Table A-3 shows the District's eight largest functions - instructional programs, instructional student support,
administrative, operation and maintenance of plant, pupil transportation, student activities, community services,
food service as well as each program's net cost (total cost less revenues generated by the activities), This table
also shows the net costs offset by the other unrestricted grants, subsides and contributions fo show the
remaining financial needs supported by local taxes and other miscellaneous revenues.

Table A-3
Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2015 and 2016 Governmental Activities
2015
Totaf Cost of Net Cost of
Fupctions/Programs Services Services
instruction $33,376,140 $24,358,171
Instructional student
support 3.477,920 2,382,474
Administrative 4,672,531 4,027 412
Operation and
maintenance 3,774,086 3,503,372
Pupil transportation 1,640,087 827,123
Student activities 1,131,428 995,079
Community services 38,042 19,217
interest on long-term debt 2,415,243 501,202
Total governmental

activities $50,526,977 36,614,050
Less:
Unrestricted grants,
subsidies 22989102

Total needs from

jocal

Taxes and other

revenues $10,335.718

2016

Total Cost of Net Cost of
Services Services
$34,832,048 $24,708,405
3,292,370 2,013,562
5,106,557 4 595,501
3,765,472 3,521,543
1,664,213 915,608
987,275 918,175
69,780 {29,262)
2,374,814 679,706
$52 120,171 37,323,238
23,610.548

10,108,571

Table A-4 reflects the activities of the Food Service program, the only Business-type activity of the District,

Table A-4

Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2015 and 2016

Business-type Activities

2015
Total Cost of Net Cost of

Functions/Programs Services Services
Food Services $2,047,739 ($18,324)
Add:
investment sarnings 69

Total business-

type activitles ($18,255)

2016
Total Cost of Net Cost of
Services Services
$2,286,838 $22,193
1.162
$23,355

The Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets for this proprietary fund will further

detail the actual results of operations.



NEW CASTLE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
NEW CASTLE, PA 16101

THE DISTRICT FUNDS

As of June 30, 2016 the District's over all fund balance is $5,798,266. The District needed to use approximately
$1,500,000 from their reserve to balance the budget. Actual revenues were approximately 3.9% higher than
projected and expenditures were approximately 4.2% higher than projected, This is largely dus to an increase in
retirement contributions. The District anticipates future operating savings because of the consolidation of
buildings that occurred in 2015-2016 school year. The District will continue to monitor future funding and the
impact it will have on our budget.

The District's used approximately $300,000 of their Capital Reserve Fund for necessary improvements various
buildings throughout the District. The District will continue to make necessary improvements to this school on an
as needed hasis. The District will continue to use these funds to make sure their bulidings are safe and secure.
The balance in the Capital Reserve Fund at the end of 2015-2016 is $548,491.

General Fund Budget

During the fiscal year, the Board of School Directors (The Board) authorizes revisions to the original budget to
accommodate differences from the original budget to the actual expenditures of the District. All adjustments are
again confirmed at the time the annual audit is accepted, which is after the end of the fiscal year, which is not
prohibited by state law. A schedule showing the District's original and final budget amounts compared with
amounts actually paid and received is provided.

The District applies for federal, state, and local grants and these grants cannot always be anticipated in the
budgeting process. Budget revenues increase by the grant awards.

Budgeted expenditures and other financing uses also increase this same amount fo compensate for the
additional approved grants. Transfers between specific categories of expenditures/financing uses occur during
the year. The most significant transfers occur from the budget reserve category to specific expenditure areas.




NEW CASTLE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
NEW CASTLE, PA 16101

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

CAPITAL ASSETS

At June 30, 2016, the District had $88,410,610 Invested in a broad range of capital assets, including land,
buildings and furniture and equipment. This amount represents a net decrease (including additions, deletions
and depreciation) of $1,765,436.

Table A5
Governmental Activities
Capital assets - net of depreciation

2015 2016
Land 2,275,130 2,275,130
Buildings/Site Improvements 66,545,405 64,949,124
Furniture & Equipment 1,648,019 1,479,864
Construction in Process 0 0
DEBT ADMINISTRATION

As of July 1, 2014 the District had total outstanding bond principal of $58,930,000 During the year, the District
made principal payments resulting in ending outstanding debt of $57,076,000 as of June 30, 2015;

Table A-6
Qutstanding Debt
2015 2016
General Obligation Notes/Bonds:

Note, Series 2015 256,946
Bonds, Series of 2010A 1,450,000 1,360,000
Bonds, Series A of 2011 26,935,000 25,455,000
Bonds, Series B of 2011 530,000 0
Bonds, Series C of 2011 1,850,000 1,845,000
Bonds, QSCB Series C of 2011 17,365,000 17,360,000
Bonds, Series of 2012 8,940,000 8,890,000

Other obligations include accrued vacation pay, sick leave and other related post-employment benefits for
specific employees of the District. More detailed information about our long-term liabilities is included in the
notes to the financial statements.




NEW CASTLE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
NEW CASTLE, PA 16101

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGETS AND RATES

The District in 2015-2016 had to use approximately $1,590,000 of its reserve funds to balance the budget.
Much of this can be attributed to increases in salaries, benefits, tuition and refirement.
The revenue budget for the 2015-2016 year, saw a modest decrease in local revenues.

The comparison of revenue and expenditure categories is as follows:

Table A-7
BUDGETED REVENUES
2015-2018 2018-2017
Local 24.1% 22.9%
State 68.8% 68.5%
Federal/Other 7.1% 8.6%
BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
20152018 2016-2017
{nstruction 65.2% 62.9%
Support Services 25.3% 26.2%
Non-insfruction/Community 0.7% 1.8%

Fund Transfers/Debt _8.7% 9.1%




NEW CASTLE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
NEW CASTLE, PA 16101

FUTURE ECONOMIC FACTORS

The New Castle Area School District has seen a much larger dependence on its reserves to balance their
budgets over the past several years. This is mainly due fo the minimal increases in State Funding as well as
continued increases in salaries, benefits, retirement and tuition. The District in an effort o save tuition cost
started a Cyber School, which will reflect a decrease in tuition cost in the 2016-17 school year. In addition, the
District recently completed consolidation of elementary schools will reduce general operafing expenditures.
Students in grades Kindergarten, first and second our all housed at the H.W. Lockley Early Learning Center. All
third grade students are now housed at the George Washington intermediate School along with grades four, five
and six. Because of this consolidation the District will incur savings in staffing as well as operating costs. .

The District will continue In 2016-2017 year to use their Capital Reserve Fund for District wide improvements at
all their building to maintain a safe and secure leaming environment. The anticipated budget for the
improvements ig approximately $200,000.

The Administration will continue to monitor and make adjustments as needed to its budget to offset the
continuing rising costs in salary and benefits including pension (PSERS) and hospitalization and tuition in the
2016-2017 budget year. The District will also continue to monitor the potential of increasing costs in
hospitalization due to the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act. In addition, the District is keeping a close
eye on a funding shift from property taxes to wage and sales tax increases. Because of the uncertainty of this
legislation, we are [n the hope that this does not get approved.

As all District's, we are in the hope that funding from the State increases not only for this year but Into the future.
The Administration is anticipating an increase in educational resources in the 2017-2018 budget, due fo a large
investment in STEM and STEAM curricular studies. Because of the lack of State Funding in previous years, the
District had to rely on its reserves balance the budget.

Disfrict reserves continue to be adequately funded even through some difficult funding years by the
Commonwealth. As in every budget year the District will look to reduce costs in all areas as well as continuing
to be aggressive in Federal, State and local grants to avoid any future potential tax increases.

The ultimate goal of the District is to continue to provide quality educational programs for our students while still
remaining fiscally responsible to the taxpayers of our District.

CONTACTING THE DISTRICT FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

Our financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, parents, students, invesfors and creditors with
a general overview of the District's finances and to show the Board's accountability for the money it receives. If
you have questions about this report or wish to request additional financial information, please contact Joseph
Ambrosini, Business Manager, New Castie Area School District, 420 Fern Street, New Castle, PA 16101,
724- 656-4774.




ASSETS
Current Assets:

GOVERNMENTAL

ACTIVITIES

NEW CASTLE AREA
Statement of

For the Year Ended

BUSINESS-TYPE

_ACTIVITIES _

__TOTAL

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Taxes Receivable-Net

Due From Other Governments
State Revenue Recaivable
Paderal Revenue Receivable
Other Receivables
Inventories

Prepaid Expense

Other Current Assets
Internal Balance=z

Total Current Assets

Noncurrent Assets:

Land

8ite Tmprovements

Buildings and Imnprovements
Furniture and Equipment

Less: Accumnlated Depreciation

Total Capital Assets-Net
of Depreciation

Total Noncurrent Assets

DEFERRED QUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Deferred Outflows Related to Pension
{See Note 12)

Total Deferred OQutflows of
Resources

Total Assets and Deferred
Outflows of Resources

The accompanying notes and auditor’s

statement,

8§ 3,261,691 $ 1,276,416

$ 4,538,107

1,019,070 -0~ 1,018,070
2,161,175 -0- 2,161,175
3,263,615 1,420 3,265,035
1,329,391 41,289 1,370,680
33,615 11,786 45,401
47,945 19,588 67,533
543,322 -0- 543,322
16,209 -0~ 16,209
1,243,886 (1.243,886) =0-
12,919,919 106,613 13,026,532
2,275,130 -0- 2,275,130
2,412,806 -0~ 2,412,806
78,779,783 -0- 78,779,783
4,942,891 29,682 4,972,573
(19,706, 402) (__ 25,871} (19,732 ,363)
68,704,118 3,811 68,707,929
68,704,118 3,811 68,707,929
6,179,760 -0~ 6,179,760
6,179,760 -0- 6,179,760

% 87,803,797 ] 110,424

raport should be read with

=17~

$ 87,914,221

this finanecial
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A CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM NEW CASTLE, PENNSYLVANIA

PHILIP WEINER AND COMPANY LTD

SCHOOL DISTRICT
Net Position

June 30, 2016

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable
Current Portion of Long-Term Debt
Bonds Payable
Short-Taerm Obligation
Compensated Absences
Acerued Salaries and Benefits
Payroll Deductions and Withholdings
Unearned Revenues
Othar Current Liabilities

Total Current Liabilities

Non-Current Liabilitiaes:
Portion Due After One Year

Bonds Pavabla
Short-Term Obligations
Compensated Absences
Net Pension Liability
Prior Year Subsidy Payable
Other Post Employment Benefits

Total Non-Current Liabilities
Total Liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Inflows Related to Pension
(See Note 12}

NET POSITION

Invested in Capital Assets-Net
of Related Dabt

Restrictad for Capital Projects

Unrestrictad

Total Naet Position

Total Liabilities, Deferred

Inflows of Rescurcas, and Net

Position

GOVERNMENTAT,
ACTIVITIRS

] 1,043,822

2,371,540
8,971
387,592
4,883,080
151,770
27,571

478,735

8,353,081

52,845,307
3,793
2,670,048
71,860,000
37,657

— 533,743
127,950,548

137,303 629

1,759,000

13,474,507
548,491

(_65,321,830)

(_51.298,832)

$ 87,803,707

=18~

BRUSINESS-TYPR

__ ACTIVITIES

=
3,811
95,187

98,998

$ 110,424

—FOTAL

8 1,046,799

2,371,540
8,971
387,592
4,883,080
151,770
36,020

478,735

9,364,507

52,845,307
3,793
2,670,048
71,860,000
37,657

533,743

127,950,548

137,315,055

1,799,000

13,478,318
548,491

(_65,226,643)
(_51,.199,834)

§ 87,914,221




NEW CASTLE AREA
Statement
For the Year Ended

PROGRAM REVENUES
CPERATING CAPITAL
CHARGES FOR GRANTE AND GRANTS AND

E NSES SERVICES CONTRIBUTIONS CONTRIBUTIQNS
GOVERNMENTAY, ACTIVITIES
Instruction § 34,832,048 § 223,219 $ 5,900,424 $§ ~0-
Instructional Student Support 3,292,370 -0- 1,278,808 -0~
Administrative and Financial
Support Service 5,106,557 -0- 511,056 -0=
Operation and Maintenance of
Plant Services 3,785,472 -0~ 233,929 -0-
Pupil Transportation 1,664,213 -0- 748,605 -0~
Student Activities 987,275 €9,100 -0- ~0~
Community Services 69,780 -0- 99,042 ~-0-
Interest on Long-Term Debt 2,374,815 -0-— 1,695,109 =0-
Total Governmental
Activities 52,082,530 292,319 14,466,973 =0-
BUSTNESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES
Food Service (Business-Type
. Activity) 2,286,838 112,815 2,196,216 —0-~
TOTAT, PRIMARY GCOVERMMENT 4 54,369,368 8 405,134 $ 16,663,189 $ -0~

GENERAY, REVENUES

Taxes:

Property Taxes, Levied for Ganeral Purposes, Net

Other Taxes

Grants, Subaidies, Contributions Not Restricted

Investnent

Earnings

Miscellanecus Income

Total General Revenues

CHANGES IN NET POSTITION

HET POSITION-BEGINNING OF FISCAL YEAR (Restated-~See Note 15)

NET POSITION-END OF FISCAT, YEAR

The accompanying notes and auditor’s report should be read with this financial statement.
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A CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM NEW CASTLE, PENNSYLVANA

PHILIP WEINER AND COMPANY LI'D

SCHOOL, DISTRICT
of Activities

June 30, 2016

NET (EXPENSES) REVENUES AND
CHANGES IN NET POSITION

GOVERNMENTAL
ACTIVITIES

$(24,708, 405)
{ 2,013,562)
( 4,595,501}
( 3,521,543)

( 915,608)

(

918,175)
29,262

( 6792,706)

(37,323,238)

e ]

(37.323,238)

8,262,143
1,750,104
23,610,546
23,496

70,828
33,717,117
{ 3,606,121)
(47.692,711)

3(51,298,832}

BUSTNESS-TYPE
ACTIVITIES

22,193

22,19

-0-
~0=
—~Q-
1,162
_0_

1,162

23,355
75.643

$ 98,998

TOTAL

$(24,708,405)
( 2,013,562)

( 4,595,501)

{ 3,521,543)

( 915,608)

{ 918,175}
29,262

{ 679,.706)

(37.323,238)

22,193

(37.301,045)

8,262,143
1,750,104
23,610,546
24,658

_ 70,827

33 B,279

{ 3,582,756)

(47.617,068)

$(51.199,834)
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NEW CASTLE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
Balance Sheet
GCovernmnental Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

A CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FiRM NEW CASTLE, PENNSYLVYANIA

PHILIP WEINER AND COMPANY LTD

CAPITAL DEBT TOTAL
GENERAIL PROJECTS SERVICE GOVERNMENTAL
FUND FUND FUND FUNDS
ABSETS
Cash 5 2,765,067 5 496,624 § -0~ 3,261,601
Property Taxes Receivable 2,385,461 -0- -0- 2,385,461
Due from Othexr Funds 2,260,740 51,867 -0- 2,312,607
Due from Other Governments 2,161,175 -0- -0- 2,161,175
State Subsaidy Receivable 3,263,615 -0- -0 3,263,615
Federal Subsidy Receivabla 1,329,391 -0- -0- 1,329,301
Cthar Receivables 42,465 -0- -0- 42,465
Inventorias 47,945 -0- -0- 47,945
Prepaid Expenses 543,322 -0~ -0~ 543,322
Other Current Assets 5,595 -0~ =0- 5,595
Total Assets 14,804,776 548,491 =0~ 15,353,267
DEFERRED QUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Tuition 64,157 -0- =0- 64,157
Total Assets and Deferred
outflows of Rasources % 14,868,933 4 548,491 3 =0- $ 15,417,424
LIABTLITIES AND FUND BALANCES
LIABILITIES
Due to Other Funds 1,068,721 S -0- $ -0- 5 1,068,721
Accounts Payabla 1,042,822 ~-0- -0- 1,042,822
Accrued Salaries and Benefits 4,883,080 -0- -0- 4,883,080
Payrcll Deduction and
Withholding 151,770 -0~ -0- 151,770
Unearned Ravenues 275,479 -0- -0- 275,479
bue to Other Governments 1,000 -0- -0- 1,000
Other Current Liabilities 1,800 —0- =0= 1,800
Potal Liabilities 7,424,672 ~0- =0- 7.424,672
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable Revenue-Proparty
Taxes 2,194,486 -0- -0~ 2,194,488
Total Deferred Inflows of
Resources 2,194,486 =0~ -0- 2,194,486
FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable Fund Balance 591,267 -0- -0~ 591,267
Restricted Fund Balance -0~ -0- -0~ -0-
Committed Fund Balance 4,564,177 -0- -0- 4,564,177
Assigned Fund Balance -0- 548,491 -0- 548,491
Unassigned Fund Balance 94,331 -0- =0- 94,331
Total Fund Balances 5,249,775 548,491 =0- 5,798,266
Total Liabilities, Deferred
Inflows of Resources, and
Fund Balances $ 14,868,933 % 548,481 ] ol g § 15,417,424

The accompanying notes and auditor’s report should be read with this financial statement.
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A CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM NEW CASTLE, PENNSYLVANIA

FHILIP WEINER AND COMPANY LTD

NEW CASTLE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance
Sheet to the Statement of Net Position
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

TOTAYT, FUND BALANCES-GOVERNMENTATL, FUNDS

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net

assets are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resources, and therefore, are not reported as assets in governmental
funds. The cost of the assets is $88,410,610 and the accumulated
depraciation is 819,706,492,

Property taxes receivable will be collected, but are not available
soon enough to pay for the current periods’ expenditures, and thare-
fore, ara deferrxed in tha funds,

Defarred outflows and inflows of resourcas associated with the
District’s pension and deferred on the government-wide Statement of
Net Position. This is +the amount that deferred outflows of
$6,179,760 exceads deferred inflows of $1,799,000 at June 30, 2016.

Long-term 1liabilities, including bonds payabla, are not due and
payable in the current periocd, and therefore, are not raported as
liabilities in the funds. Long-term liabilities at year-end consist
of:

Beonds and Note Payable § 55,216,847
Short-Term Borrowing 12,764
Acecrued Interest on Indebtedness 478,735
Compensated Absences 3,01%,399
Unamortized Bond Discounts and

Premiums 49,901
Subsidy Overpayment-Net of

Recovery Due 37,657
Net Pension Liability 71,860,000
Other Post Employment Benefit 533,743

TOTAL NET POSITION-GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

—-22=

$ 5,798,266

68,704,118

1,019,070

4,380,760

{131,201,046)

$(_51,208,832)

The accompanying notes and auditor’s report should be read with this Financial statement.




A CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOQUNTING FIRM NEW CASTLE, PENNSYLVANIA

PHILIP WEINER AND COMPANY LTD

NEW CASTLE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

Governmental Funds

For the ¥Year Ended June 30, 2016

CAPITAL DEBT TOTAL
GENERAL PROJECTS SERVICE GOVERNMENTAL
FUND FUND —_FUND FUNDS
REVENUES
Local Sources $ 11,145,198 5 913 3§ -0- § 11,146,111
8tate 8Sources 33,369,353 -0~ -0~ 33,369,353
Federal Sources 3,884,048 —-0- -0- 3,884,048
Total Revenues 48,398,599 913 ~0-~ 48,399,512
EXPENDITURES
Instruction 31,645,793 -0~ -0~ 31,645,793
Bupport Services 13,166,468 107,241 -0- 13,273,709
Noninstructional Services 882,926 -0- -0- 882,926
Capital Outlay -0- 194,024 ~0- 194,024
Debt Service (Principal and
Interest) 883,882 -0~ 3,704,239 4,588,121
Refund of Prior Year Receipts 2,037 -0- —~0- 2,037
Total Expenditures 46,581,106 301,265 3,704,239 50,586,610
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES 1,817,493 {_300,352) (3,704,239) (_2.187,098)
OTHER CTNG SCURCES SES)
Interfund Transfers In -0- -0- 3,704,239 3,704,239
Interfund Yransfers Out ( 3,704,239) -0- =-0- { 3,704,239)
Sale of Assets 651 -0~ -0- 651
Proceeds from Extended Term
Financing 294,587 -0- =-0- 294,587
Other Financing Sources -0= -0- —0- —0-
Total Other Financing
Sourcas (Uses) (3,409,001) -0= 3,704,239 295,238
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES ( 1,5681,508) ( 300,352) -0- ( 1,891,860)
FUND BALANCE-Beginning 5,841,283 848,843 -0- 7,690,126

FUND BATLANCE-Ending § 5,249,775 $ 548,491 3 -0- $ 5,798,266

The accompanying notes and auditor’s report should be read with this financial statement,
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A CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM NEW CASTLE, PENNSYLVANLA

PHILIP WEINER AND COMPANY LTD

NEW CASTLE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Statement of Ravenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balances to the Statement of Activities
For tha Year Ended June 30, 2016

TOTAT, NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES-GOVERNMENTAY, FUNDS §(1,891,860)

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of
Activities are different because:

Capital outlays are reported in governmental funds as expenditures,
however, in the statement of activities, the cost of those assets is
allocated over their estimated useful lives as depreciation expense.
This is the amcunt by which depreciation expense 31,948,569 exceads
capital outlays $183,133 in the period. (1,765,436)

Repayment of bond principal and short-term borrowing is an
expenditure in the governmental funds but the rapayment , reduces
long-term liabilitiea in the statement of assets. 2,206,404

Because some property taxes will not ba collected for several years
after the district’s fiseal vyear ends, thay are not considered
“available” revenuea and are deferred in the governmental funds.
Tax revenues decreased by this amount. 78,283

Interest on long-term dabt in the statement of activities differs
from the amount reported in the governmental funds because interest
is racognized as an expenditure when it is due, and thus raquires
the use of current financial resources, In the statement of
activities, howaver, interest expense is recognized as the interest
accrueg, regardless of when it is due. The increase of interest
reported in the statement of activities is the result of accrued
interest on debt in this amount. 15,851

In the Statement of Activities, compensated absences and
postemployment benefits are measured by the amounts earned during
the year. In the governmental funds, however, expenditures for theae
items are measured by the amount of financial resources used (paid).
This year’'s compensated absences paid exceeded the amounts earned by

this amount. 242,312
In the Statement of Activities, bond discounts and bond premiums ara
amortized over the term of the bonds. In governmental funds these
amounts are expended as they are inourrad. This is the amount of
amortization. { 8,9489)

Tha change in the OPEB Obligatiocn is a reduction in the statement of
activities and decreases the non current assets in the Statement of )
Net Position by this amount,. {( 810,084)

In the Statement of Activities, pension expense is measured by the
amounts actually calculated as earned during the vyear. In the
governmental funds, howaver, expenditures for this item is measurad
by the amount of financial rescurces used (essentially the amounts
actually paid for the y=sar) this year the amount used exceads the
amounts earned by this amount. (1,378,055)

Proceeds of the issuance of bonds an short-term borrowing is a
revenue in the governmental funds, but increase the long-term

liabilities in the Statement of Activities. (__294,587)
CHANGES IN NET POSITION-GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES $(3,.606,121)

The accompanying notes and auditor’s report should be read with this financial statement.
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A CERTIFIED FUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM NEW CASTLE, PENNSYLVANIA

PHILIP WEINER AND COMPANY LTD

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS

Cash

Due From Other Govarnments
Other Receivables
Invantory

Due from Other Funds

NEW CASTLE AREA SCHOCOL DISTRICT
Statement of Net Position
Proprietary Funds

For tho Year Ended June 30, 201§

ENTERPRISE FUND
FOOD SERVICES

$ 1,276,416
42,709
11,786
19,588

147,646

Total Current Assets 1,498,155

NONCURRENT ASSETS

Equipment-Net of Accumulated Depreciation 3,811

Total Assets
LIABILITIES

CURRENT LIARILITIES

Accounts Payablae
Due to DOther Funds
Unearned Revenue

$ 1,501,956

3 2,977
1,391,532

— 8,449

Total Current Liabilities 1,402,958

NET POSITION
Invested in Capital Assets-Net of Related Debt 3,811
Unrestricted 95,187

Total Net Position

98,998

Total Liabilities and Net Position $ 1,501,956

The accompanying notes and auditor’s report should ba read with this finaneial statement.
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A CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM NEW CASTLE, PENNSYLVANIA

FPHILIP WEINER AND COMPANY LTD

NEW CASTLE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes
in Fund Net Position-Proprietary Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

OPERATING REVENUES
Food Sarvice Revenue

OPERATING EXPENSES
Personnel Services-Salaries
Parsonnel Services-Benefits
Purchased Property Services
Other Purchased Services
Supplies
Depreciation
Dues and Fees
Miscellaneous

Total Operating Expenses

OFERATING (1.OSS)
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSRS)

Earnings on Investments
State Sources
Federal Sources

Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)

NET INCOME

TOTAL NET POSTTION-JULY 1, 201§

IOTAL NET POSITION~JUNE 30, 2016

The accompanying notes and auditor’s= report should be read with this financial statement.

-26-

ENTERPRISE FUND
FOOD SERVICE

9 112,815

817,773
379,909
27,109
2,186
1,058,299
1,089

336

137

2,286,838

(2.174,023)

1,162
180,223

2,015,993

2,197,378
23,355

75,643

$ __98,098




A CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM NEW CASTLE, FENNSYLVANIA

PHILIP WEINER AND COMPANY LTD

NEW CASTLE AREA SBCHOOL DISTRICT
S8tatement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

ENTERPRISE FUND
_FOOD SERVICE

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash Received From Users 5 102,020
Cash Payment to Employees for Services { 352,335}
Cash Payment to Suppliers for Goods and Services ( B867,848)
Cash Payment for Other Operating Expenses ( 29,768)
Net Cash (Used) by Operating Activities (1,187,931)
CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAYT, FINANCING ACTIVITIES
State Sources 81,604
Federal Sources 1.926,522
Net Cash Provided by Non-Capital Financing
Activities 2,008,126
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Earnings on Investments 1,162
Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities 1,162
RET INCREASE TN CASH AND C_ASH EQUIVALENTS 821,357
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS-BEGINNING OF YEAR 455,059
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS-END OF YEAR $ 1,276,416

RECONCILIATT OF OPERATING (LOS TO NET CASH USED
BY OPERATING BEXPENSES:
Cperating (Loss) $(2,174,023)
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Loss to Net Cash
Provided by (Used) for Operating Activities
Noncash Operating Expenses

Donated Commodities 107,871
Depreciation 1,089
Changes in Assets and Liabilities

Increase {Decrease) in Accounts Receivable { 85,628)
Increase {(Decrease} in Inventory 3,235
Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payable 959,916
Increase (Decreasa} in Unearned Revenue { 381)

Net Cash (Usad) by Operating Activities 5(1,187 . 931)

The accompanying notes and auditox’s report should be read with this Ffinancial statement.
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PHILIP WEINER AND COMPANY LTD

NEW CASTLE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
Statement of Net Position
Fiduciary Funds
June 30, 2016

AGENCY
ASSETS FUND
Cash $ 46,878
Other Receivable 74
Total Assets $ 46,952
LIARILITIES
Due to Student Groups 3 -0~
NET POSITION
Resaerved for Scholarships 14,922
Reserved for Nonbudgeted Studant
Activities 21,030
Raegerved for Accunulated Death Benefits 11,000
Total Net Position 46,952
Total Liabilities and Net Position $ 46,952

ACTIVITY
__FUND
$ 45,785

-0

8 45,755

3 45,1755

$ 45,755

Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position

AGENCY

ADDITIONS JEUND

Commissions 8 1,394

Donations 20,319

Total Additions 21,713
DEDUCTIONS

Scholarships 11,050

Student Activities 15,044

Other 1,274

Total Deductions 27,368

Change in Net Position { 5,655)

NET POSITION-July 1, 2015 52,607

NET POSITION-June 30, 2016 $ 46,852

The accompanying notes and auditor’a report should be read with this financial statement.
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A CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM NEW CASTLE, PENNSYLVANIA

FPHILIP WEINER AND COMPANY LTD

NEW CASTLE ARKA SCHOOL DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2016

ROTE 1 - REPORTING ENTITY

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 14 “Tha Financial Reporting
Entity”, established the standards for defining and reporting on the financial
reporting entity. New Castle Area School District School Board is the basic level
cf govarmment which has oversight responsibilities and control over all activities
related to the public school education of New Castla Area School District. The
Bchool District is a primary government that is a special purpose government that
has a separately elected governing body (“Board”). It is legally separate, and it
is fisecally independent of other state and local governments.

Component units are legally separata organizations for which the School District is
financially accountable. The S8chool District is financially accountable for an
organization if the School District appoints a voting majority of tha crganization’s
governing board and (1) the School District is able to significantly influsence the
programs or services performed or provided by the organization; or (2) tha School
District is legally entitled to or can othexrwise access the organization’s resources;
the School District is legally obligated or has otherwise assumed the regponsibility
to finance the deficits of, or provide financial support to, the organization; oxr the
School District is obligated for the debt of tha organization. Component units may
also include organizations that are Ffiscally dependent on the School District in that
the School District approves the budget, the issuance of debt or the lavying of taxes.
The School District has no component units.

The New Castle Area School District, in conjunction with seven other Lawrence County
School Distriots are involved in a joint venture to fund the operating budget of the
Lawrence County Career and Technical Center. The technical school is designed to teach
students trade related professions. Rach district’s share of tuition is based on the
parcentage of the district’s enrollment to the total enrollment at the Lawrence County
Career and Tachnical Center. In addition to the opearating subsidy, the district makes
a debt service related payment to the Lawrence County Career and Technical Center based
on the District’s property market valuaes as a parcentage of the preperty market values
of all participating districts. A representative from each district’s school board
g8its on the board of tha technical achool. Finanocial statements for the joint ventura
may ba obtained at the following address: 750 Phelps Way, New Castle, PA 16101.

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of the New Castle Area School District have been prepared in
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to local
governmental units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted
standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial
principles. The most significant of the School District’s accounting policies are
described below.

A, Basis of Prasentation

The School Digtrict’s basic finanecial statements consist of govermment-wide atatements,
including a statement of Net Position and a statement of activities, and fund financial
statements which provide a more detailed level of financial information.

Government-Wide Finangial Statements-The Statement of Nat Position and the Statement

of Activities digplay information about tha School District as a whola. These
statements include the financial activities of the primary government, axcept for
fiduciary funds. The activity of the internal service fund is eliminated to avoid
Ydoubling wup” revenues and expensaes, The statements distinguish between those
activities of the School District that are governmental and those that are considered
business-type activities.
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A CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM NEW CASTLE, PENNSYLVANIA

PHILIP WEINER AND COMPANY LTD

NEW CASTLE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2016

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continued)

A. Basis of Presentation (Continued)

The Statement of Net Position presents the financial condition of the governmental and
business-type activities of the School District at year-end. The Statement of
Activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for each
program ox function o©of the School District’s governmental activities and for the
businass-type activities of the School Diatrict. Direct expenses are those that are
specifically associated with a service, program or department and, therefore, clearly
identifiable to a particular function. Program revenues include charges paid by the
recipient of tha goods or services offered by the program, grants and contributions
that are restricted to meeting the cperational or capital requirements of a particular
program and interest earned on grants that is required to be used to support a
particular program. Revenues which are not classified as program revenues are
presented as general revenuas of the School District, with certain limited exceptions.
The comparison of direct expenses with program revenues identifies the extent to which
each business segment or governmental function is self-financing or drxaws from the
general revenues of the School District.

Fund Fipancial Statement-During the year, the School Distriet segregates transactions
ralated to certain School District functions or activities in separate funds in order
to aid financial management and to demonstrate legal compliance. Fund financial
statements are designed to present financial information of the School District at
this more detailed level. The focus of governmental and entarprise fund financial
statements is on major funds. Each major fund is presented in a separate column.
Nommajor funds are aggregated and presented in a single column. The special revenue
and capital projact fund do not meet the major fund percentage criteria as per audits
of stata and local governments (GASB 34 Edition), and are not required to be reported
as a major fund, The School District voluntarily presents these funds geparately as
major funds because of the public’s interest in these activities of the District. The
fiduciary fund is reported by type.

B. Fund Accounting

The School District uses funds to maintain its financial records during the year.
A fund is defined as a fiscal and accounting entity with a self-balancing set of
accoounts, There are three catagories of funds; governmental, proprietary and
fiduoiary.

Governmental Funds-Governmental funds are those through which most governmental
functions typically are financed. Governmental fund reporting foocuses on the
sources, uses and balancas of current financial resources. Expendable assets are
aggigned to the various governmental funds according to the purposes for which they
may or must ba unused. Current liabilities are assigned to the fund from which they
will be paid. The difference between governmental fund assets and liabilities is
raported as fund balance. The following are ths School District’s governmental funds:

General Fund-The general fund is tha operating fund of the Schocl District and is

usaed to account £for all financial Tresources except those required to be
accounted for in another fund.

Capital Project Fund:

Capital Twprovement Fund-Used to account for financial rescurces related to
general fixed assets acquisition, construction and improvements.
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A CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM NEW CASTLE, PENNSYLVANIA

PHILIP WEINER AND COMPANY LTD

NEW CASTLE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2016

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continued)

B. Fund Accounting {(Continued)

Special Revenue Fund-Used to account for revenues derived from gpecific revenue
sources other than major capital projects that are restricted to expenditures for
specific purposes,

Debt Service Fund-Used to account for and acocumulate resources for the payment of
general long-term debt principal and interest.

Proprietary Funds-Proprietary funds f£focus on the determination of changes in Net
Position, financial position and cash flows. The funds included in this
catagory are:

Enterprige Funds-Enterprise funds may be used to account for any activity for
which a fee is charged to external users for guods or services. The School
Digtrict’s major enterprise fund is:

Food Sarvice Fund-This fund acocounts for the Ffinancial transactions related to
the food service operations of the School District.

Fiduciary Funds-These are the funds that account for the assets held by the School
Distriet as a trustee or agent for individuals, private organizations and/or
governmental units and are therefore not available to support the District’s own
programa. The funds included in this category are:

Irugt Funde-Used to acoount for assets held by tha School District in a trustee
capacity.

Activity Fund-This fund is custodial in nature (assets eqgual liabilities) and
does not involve measurement of results of operations,

C. Meagurement Fgocus

roament-Wi Financi Statements-The government-wide financial statements are
prepared using the economic resources measurement Focus, All assets and all
liabilities associated with the operation of the School District are included on the
Statement of Net Position.

Fund Financial Statements-All governmental funds are accounted for using a flow of
current financial resources measurement focus. With this measurement focus, only
current assets and current liabilities generally are included on the balance sheet.
The statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances reports on the
sources (i.e., revenues and othar financing scurces) and uses (i.e., axpenditures and
other finaneing uses) of current financial rescurces. This approach differs from the
manner in which the governmental activities of the government-wide financial
statements are prepared. Governmental fund financial statements, therefore, include
a reconciliation with brief explanations to better identify the relationship between
the government-wide statements and the statements for governmental funds.

Like the government-wide statements, all proprietary funds are accounted for on a
flow of economic resources measurement focus, All assets and all liabilities
associated with the operation of these funds are included on the statement of Nat
Position. The statement of changes in fund Net Position presents increases (i.e.,
revenues) and decreases (i.e, expenses) in net total assets. The statement of cash
flows provides information about how the School District finances and meets the cash
flow neads of its propriety activities.
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PHILIP WEINER AND COMPANY LTD

NEW CASTLE AREA SCHOQL DISTRICT
Notas te Financial Statements
June 30, 2016

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

C. Measurement Focus (Continuad)

Private-sector standards of accounting issued prier to December 1, 1989 are generally
followed in both the govermment-wide and proprietary fund financial statements to the
extent that those standards do not conflict with the standards of the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board. The School Distriot has elected not to follow private-
sector standards issued after November 30, 1989 for its business-type activities.

When both restricted and unrestricted rescurces are available for use, it is the
District’s policy to use the restricted rescurces first, then the unrestricted

rasources as thay are needed.

D. Basis of Accounting

Basis of accounting determines when transactions are recorded in the Ffinancial
records and reported on the financial statements. Government~wide financial
statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting. Governmental funds
use the modified accrual basis of accounting, Propriety and fiduciary funds alsoc use
the accruzl basis of accounting. Differences in the accrual and the modified accrual
basis of accounting arise in the racognition of revenue, the racording of deferred
revenue, and in the presentation of expenses versus expenditures.

Revenue-Exchange and Nonexchange Transactions—-Revenue resulting from exchange

transactions, in which each party gives and receives essentially aqual value, is
recorded on the accorual basis when the exchange takes place. On a medified accrual
basis, revenue is recorded in the fiscal year in which the resources are measurable
and become available. Available means that the resources will be collected within
the current fiscal year or are expected to be collected soon enough thereaftar to be
used to pay liabilities of the current fiscal year. For the School District,
available means expected to be received within 60 days of fiscal year-end,

Nonexchange transactions, in which the School District receives value without
directly giving equal value in return, include income taxes, property taxes, grants,
entitlements and donations. Revenue from property taxes is recognized in the fiscal
year for which the taxes are levied. Revenue from grants, entitlements and donations
is recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements have been
satisfied. Eligibility requirements include timing requirements, which specify the
year when the resources are required to be used or the year when use is first
permitted, matching requirements, in which the 8chool District must provide local
resources to be used for a specified purpose, and axpenditure requirements, in which
the resources arae provided toc the School District on a reimbursement basis. On a
modified acerual basis, revenue from non-exchange transactions must alsc be available
before it can be recognized.

Under the modified accrual basis, the following revenue sources are considered to be
both measurable and available at year-end: property taxes available as an advance,
interest, tuition, grants, fees and rentals.

Defarred Revenupe-Deferred revenua arises when assets are recognized before revenue
recognition criteria have been satisfied.

Property taxes for which there is an enforceable legal claim as of June 30, 2016 but
which were levied to finance prior year operations, have been recorded as deferred
revenue. Tha amount of $2,385,461 represents the delinquent real estata taxes dua
at June 30, 201&.
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PHILIP WEINER AND COMPANY LTD

NEW CASTLE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2016

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF STCGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

D. Basis of Accounting (Continued)

Expenses/Expenditures-The measurement focus of govermmental fund accounting is on
dacreases in net financial resources {expenditures) rather than expenses.
Expenditures are generally recognized in the accounting period in which the related
fund liability is incurred, if measurable., Allocations of cost, such as depreciation
and amortization, are not recognized in governmental funds.

E. Budget and Budgetary Accounting

An cperating budget is adopted each year for the General Fund on a modified accrual
basis of accounting. The General Fund is the only fund for which a budget is legally
required.

The Pennsylvania School Code dictates specific procedures relative to adoption of the
School District’s budget and reporting of its financial statements, specifically:

The School District, before levying annual school taxes, is required to prepare an
operating budget for the succeeding fiscal year.

The School District is required to publish notice by advertisement, at least once in
a newspapar of local circulation in the municipality in which it is located, and
within thirty days of final action, that the proposed budget has been prepared and
is available for public inspection at the administrative office of the School
Digtrict. Final action shall not be taken on any proposed budget, until after ten
days of public notice, The proposed budget shall be printed, or otherwise made
available for public inspection to all persons who may interest themselves, at least
twenty days prior to the date set for the adoption of the budget.

The Board of Directors may make transfars of funds appropriated to any particular item
of expenditure by lagislative action. An affirmative vote of two-thirds of all members
of the Board is regmired.

Fund balances in Budgetary Funds may be appropriated based on resolutions passed by the
Board of Education, which auvthorizes the School District to make expenditures.
Appropriations lapse at the end of the fiscal period. In order to preserva a portion
of an appropriation for which an expenditure has been committed by a purchase order,
contract or other form of commitment, an encumbrance is recorded. FEncumbrances
outstanding at year-end are reported as reservations of fund balances.

Included in the General Fund budget are program budgets as prescribed by the state
and Federzl agencies funding the program. Thase budgets are approved on a program
by program basis by the state or Federal funding agency.

Capital budgets are not implemented for capital improvements and projecta in ths
Capital Projects Fund. An adopted budget is not presently required due to the Fund’s
racent inception and the limited amount of transactions. Additionally, all
transactiona of the Capital Projects Fund are approvad by the Board prior to
commitment, thereby, constructively achieving budgetary control,

An Enterprise Fund budget is not adopted; however, a formal budget is Prepared and
approved by management and expenditures are controlled on the basis of this budget.

A budget is not adopted for the Debt Sexrvice Fund because it is not legally required.

The expenditures in the Debt Service Fund are incorporated into the adopted General
Fund budget as a budgetary transfer,
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A CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM NEW CASTLE, PENNSYLVANIA

PHILIFP WEINER AND COMFPANY LTD

NEW CASTLE AREA SCHOOIL, DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2016

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

¥, Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purpose of the statement of cash flows, the proprietary fund type considers all
highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less when purchased to be
cash ecquivalents,
G. Inventorias
Inventories consist of the following items.
GENERAL FUND
Supplies § 47,945

CAFETERIA FUND

Material and Supplies $ 2,559
Food 8,580
Donated Commodities 8,449

$ 16,588

1, Gemeral Fund-Instructional and maintenance suppliea are inventoried at the lower
of cost or market value as determined by the School District.

2. Cafeteria Fund-Donated commodities are priced at fair market value as supplied
by the Federal govermment and is mnot owned by the School District until
Inventory is recorded in the financial statements at the lower of cost or market
value as determined by the School District,

H. Debt Premiumg, Discounts, and Issuance Costs

On the government-wide statement of net position and the proprietary fund type
statement of net position, debt premiums and discounts are netted againgt debt
payable and debt issuance costa are raecognized as an outflow of resourcas in the
period incurred. On the government-wida and proprietary fund type statement of
activities, unamortized debt premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over
the life of the debt using the straight-line method. For the Fiseal year ended June
30, 2016, bond discount and premiums amortized were $34,188 and $29,600,
respectively.

At the government fund reporting level, debt premiums and discounts are reported as
other financing sources and uses, separately from the face amount of the debt issued.
Debt issuance costs are reported as debt service expenditures.

I. Capital Asgets

General capital assets are those assets not specifically related to activities
reported in the proprietary funds. These assets generally result from expenditures
in the governmental funds. These assets are reported in the governmental activities
column of the government-wide Statement of Net Pogition but are not raeported in the
fund financial statements. Capital assats utilized by the proprietary funds are
reported both in the business-type activities column of the goverrment-wide Statement
of Net Position and in the respsctive funds,
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PHILIP WEINER AND COMPANY LTD

NEW CASTLE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2016

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continued)

I, Capital Assetis (Continued)

All capital assets are capitalized at cost (or estimated historical cost) and updated
for additions and retirements during the year. Donated fixed assets are recorded at
their fair market values as of the date received. The School District does not possess
any infrastructure. Improvements ara capitalized; the costs of normal maintenance and
repairs that do not add to the value of the azset or materially extend an asset’s life
ara not.

The District maintains a capitalization threshold as follows:

Land Improvements 825,000
Building 525,000
Building Improvements 325,000
Machinery and Equipment § 5,000
Vehicla $10,000
Portable Classroom $10,000
Grouped Depreciable Capital Assats $25,000
Leasehold Improvements $10,000

All reported capital assets except land, land improvements and construction in praogress
are depreciated. Improvements are depreciated over the remaining useful lives of the
related capital assets. Depreciation is computed using the straightline method over
the following useful lives:

GOVERNMENTATL BUSINESS TYFE
ACTIVITIES ACTIVITIES
ESTIMATED LIVES ESTIMATED LIVES
Description
S8ite Improvements 20 years N/A
Buildings and Improvements 20-50 years N/a
Furniture and Equipment 5-20 years 12 Years
Vehicles 5~8 years N/A

J. Deferred Outflows/Infows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a
separate section for deferred cutflows of resources. This separate financial statement
elenent, deferred cutflows of rescurces, represents a consumption of net position that
applies to a future pariod(s) and 8o will not be recognized as an outflow of resources
(expensa/expenditure) until then,

The District has deferred outflows of resources ralating to the Public School Employees
Retirement System of Pennsylvania’s pension plan, which arige only under the accrual
basia of accounting that qualifies for reporting in this category. Accordingly, the
item is reported only in the government-wide statement of net position, These amounts
are deferred and recognized as an outflow of rescurces in future periods.

In addition to liabilitiea, the statement of financial position will sometimes report
a separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This gseparate financial
statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net
position that applies to a future pericd and so will not be recognized as an inflow of
ragources (revenue) until that time.

The District has a tuition receivable from nonresidents, which arise only under a
medified acerual basis of aceounting, that qualifies for rzeporting in this category.
Accordingly, this item is reported only in the governmental funds balance shest. The
governmantal funds report deferred inflows of resources from tuition. These amounts
are deferred and recognized as an inflow of resources in the period that the amounts
bacoma available.
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Notas to Financial Statements
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NOTE 2 -~ SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continued)

J. Deferred Qutflows/Infows of Resources {Continuad)

The District has deferred inflows of resources relating to the Public School Employees
Retirement System of Pennsylvania’s pension plan, which arise only under the accrual
basis of accounting that gqualifies for reporting in this category. Accordingly, the
item is reported only in the government-wide statement of net position. Thase amounts
are deferred and recognized as an inflow of rescurces in future periods,

K. Compensated ences

The School District reports compensated absences in accordance with the provisions of
GASB No. 16, “Accounting for Compensated Absences”. Sick leave benefits are accrued as
a liability using the termination methed. An accrual for earned sick leave is made to
the extent that it is probable that benefits will result in termination payments. The
liability is an estimate based on tha School District’s past experience of making

termination payments,

The entire compensated absence liability is reported on the government-wide financial
statements.

In the governmental fund financial statements, none of the liability is reported as it
is not expected to be paid using expendable available resources,

L, Accrued Liabilities and Long~Term Obligations

All payables, accrued liabilities and long-term obligaticns are reported in thae
government-wide financial statements, and all payables, accrued liabilities and long-
term obligations payable from proprietary funds are reported on the proprietary fund
financial statements.

In general, governmental fund payablas and acerued liabilities that, once incurred, are
paid in a timely manner and in full from current financial resources, are reported as
obligations of the funds. However, claims and judgments, compensated absences, special
termination banefits and contractually required pension contributicons that will be paid
from governmental funds are reported as a liability in the fund Ffinancial statements
only to the extant that they arxe due for payment during the current year, Bonds are
recognized as a liability on the fund financial statements when due.

M. Net Position

Nat poaition represent the difference between =asets and liabilities. Net position
invested in capital assets, net of related debt consists of capital asseta, net of
accumulated depreciation, reduced by the cutstanding balances of any borrowing used for
the acquisition, construction or improvement of those assets. Net position are reported
as restricted when there are limitations imposed on their use either through the
enabling legislation adopted by the School District or through external restrictions
imposad by creditors, grantors or laws or regulations of other governments.

The School District applies restricted rescurces first when an expense is incurred for
purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net position are available.

N. Fund Balances
A Fund balances of the governmental funds are classified as Ffollows:

Non-spendable-amounts that cannot be spent either because they are in non-spendable
form or because they are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact,
such as inventory or prepaid expenses,
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NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

N. Fund Balances (Continuad)

Restrictad~amounts that can be spent only for specifie purposea because of
constitutional provisions, chartar requirements or enabling legislation or because of
constraints that are externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributions, or the
laws or regulations of other governments.

Committed-amounts that can be used only for specific purposes determined by a formal
action of the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors is the highest lavel of
decision making authority for the School District. Commitments may be established,
modified, or rescinded only through ordinances or resclutions approved by the Board of
Directors.

Assigned-amounts that do not meat the criteria to ba classified as restricted or
committed but that are intended to be used for specific purposes. Under the School

Districts adoptad policy, only the Board of Diractors may sssign amounts for specific
purposes,

Unagsigned-all other spendable amounts,

As of June 30, 2018, fund balances are composed of tha following:

CAPITAT, PROJECT FUNDS

CAPITAL TOTAL
GENERAL IMPROVEMENT GOVERNMENTAL
FUND FUND FUNDS
Nonspendable: -] 591,267 -] -0- 8 591,267
Committed:
Futura Budgets 4,564,177 -0~ 4,564,177
Assigned:
Capital Project -0- 548,491 548,491
Unassigned Funds 94,331 ~0- 94,331
Total Fund Palances $ 5,249,775 $ 548,491 $ 5,798,266

When an expenditure 4is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and
unrestricted fund balance is availabla, the School District considers restrictad
funds to have been spent first. When an expenditure is incurrad fox which committed,
assigned, or unassigned fund balances are available, the School District considers
the amounte to have been spent first out of committed funds, then assigned funds, and
finally unassigned funds, as needed, unlass the Board of Directors has provided
otherwise in its commitment or assignment actions.

O. Operating Revenues and Expenses

Operating revenues are those revennes that are genarated directly from the primary
activity of the proprietary funds, For the School District, these revenues are sales
for food service and uniform school supplies, and charges for services for self-
insurance programs. Operating expenses are necessary costs incurred to provide the
goods or service that is the primary activity of the Ffund.

P. Interfund Activity

Exchange transactions between funds are reported as revenues in tha seller funds and
as expenditures/expenses in the purchaser funds. Advances between funds are acoounted
for in the appropriate due from other funds and due to other funds accounts. Thesa
advances (reported in “due from” asset accounts) are considered “available spendable
resourcas”.
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NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continued)

Q. Use of Estimatas

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting prineciples requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affact the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of econtingant
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and raeported amounts
of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ From
those estimates.

R. Cost Allocation Plan

The School District uses allocations with supporting documentation on fila which
identifies, accumulates, and distributes indirect costs to cost centars or functions
in the District’s basic financial statements. The allocation mathodology logically
apportions indirect costs among services receiving a benefit, It results in a fair and
equitable distribution of costs in direct relation to actual benefits accruing to the
saervices to which coste are charged.

8. New Accounting Pronouncements

In August 2004, the GASB issued Statement No. 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting
by Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, effectiva for the
bistrict’s fiscal year beginning July 1, 2009 Statement No. 4% requires accrual based
measurement, racognition and diaclesure of OPEB expense, such as retiree medical and
dental costs, over the emplovees’ years of sexvica, along with the related liability,
net of any plan assets. Foxr the District, this will result in increased expenses and
a related liability which will likely be significant. The District is currently
avaluating the effect that Statement No. 45 will have on its Ffipancial statements.

T. Advertising Policy

It is the policy of the School District to expense all advertising costs in the year
in whick they are paid.

NOTE 3 ~ CASH, DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

Pennsylvania statutes provide for investment of Governmental Funds into certain
authozrized investment types including United States Treasury, and short-term United
States and Pennsylvania government obligations, and insured or collateralized tine
deposits and certificates of daposit. The statutes deo not prescribe regulations
related to demand deposits; howaver, they do allow the pooling of Governmental Funds
for investment purposes.

The deposit and investment policy of the New Castle Area School District adheres to
state statutes and prudent business practice. Deposits of the Govermnmental Funds are
maintained in demand deposits. There wera no deposit or investment tramsactions during
the vear that were in violation of either the state statutas or the policy of the New
Castle Area School District.

BANK BALANCE
DEPOSITS WITH OTHER
CARRYING FINANCIAL AUTHORIZED
AMOUNT INSTITUTIONS DEPCSITS TOTAL

Governmental Funds:
Cash and Cash Ecuivalents $ 3,261,691 $ 3,437,013 L] 445,645 $ 3,883,558
Proprietary Funds:

Cash and Cash Equivalents 1,276,416 21,904 1,273,388 1,295,292
Fiduciary PFundes:
Cash and Cash Equivalents 92,633 55,104 0= 95,104

£ 4,630,740 $ 3,554,921 $ 1,719,033 8 5,573,954
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NOTE 3 - CASH, DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

A. Depositsg With Financial Institutions

Customexr credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the government’s
deposits may not be returned te it. Protection of distriot cash and certificates of
deposit doposited with financial institutions is provided by the Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation (FDIC} as well as qualified securities pledged by the institution
holding the assets. By law, all governmental deposits are collateralized by a pool of
pPledged assets that are maintained with the Federal Reserve System and Designated third
party trustees of the finanecial institution.

For the deposits of custodial risk, all of the deposits with financial ingtitutions
including certificates of deposit with maturitiaes greater than three months classified
as investments, are aggregated.

At June 30, 2016, the bank balance of the District’s cash deposited with financial
institutions was $3,554,921 of this balance $754,605 was covared by FDIC Tnsurance and
$2,760,316 was uninsured and collateralized with securities held by the pledging
institutions trust department, but not in the District’s name.

B. Other Authorized Deposits

A portion of the District’s deposits are in the Pennsylvania School District Licuid
Asset Fund (PSDLAF), the Pennsylvania Local Government Investment Trust (PLGIT) and the
Pannsgylvania Treasurer’a Invest Program for Local Governments and Nonprofits (INVEST).
Although not registered with the securities and exchange commission and not subject to
regulatory oversight, PSDLAF, PLGIT, and PA INVEST act like money market mutual funds
in that their objective is to maintain a stable net asset valua of $1 per share. These
investments are both uninsured and uncollateralized. The carrying values and market
values of PSDLAF, PLGIT, and PA INVEST at June 30, 2016 are $62,032, $1,686,668, and
$33, respectively.

As of June 30, 2016, both the Pennsylvania School District Liquid Asset Fund, the
Pennsylvania Local Governments Investment Trust, and the Pennsylvania Treasurer's
Invest Program for Local Governments and Nonprofits (INVEST) were rated as AAAm by
Standard and Poors,

NOTE 4 ~ REAT. ESTATE AND PER CAPITA TAXES AND UNEARNED REVENUE

Based upon assessmenta provided by Lawrence County, the School District bills and
collects its own property taxes, and its elected tax cocllector is responsibla for
collection. The School District tax rate for the year ended June 30, 2016 was 17.27
mills (§17.27 per 31,000 of assessed valuation) as levied by tha Board of School
Directors. The Board of SBchool Directors also lavies per capita taxes based on the
census of residents in the Bchool District. The tax rate under Section 679 and Aot 511
is $10/person and $5/person respectively. The total per capita tax levied by the
District is $15/person. The schedule for real estate and per capita taxes levied for
each fiscal year is as follows:

July 1 - Lavy Date
July 1 - August 31 - 2% Discount Perxilod
September 1 - October 31 - Face Payment Period
Novembexr 1 - December 15 - 10% Penalty Period
December 16 - Lien Date

The School District, in accordance with GAAP, recognized the delinquent and unpaid
taxes recaivable reduced by an allowance for unceollectible taxes as determined by the
administration. A portion of the net amount estimated to be collectible which was
measurable and available within 60 days was recognized as revenue and the balance
deferred in the fund financial statements. All taxes, net of uncollectibla amounts,
are recognized in the period for which levied in the government-wide financial
statements, regardless of when collectad,
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NOTE 4 - REAL ESTATE AND PER CAPITA TAXES AND DEFERRED REVENUE (Continued)

The balances at June 30, 2016 are as follows:

GOVERNMENTAT, FUNDS

GROSE TAX
TAXES REVENUE DEFERRED INFLOWS
RECE IVABLE RECOGNIZED COF_ TAXES

Real Estate

$ 2,385,461 $ 6,584,476 § 2,194,486

NOTE 5 - INTERFUND BALANCES AND TRANSFERS

Interfund balances at June 30, 2016, consisted of the following amounts due from and

due to other funds:
DUE TO

OTHER FUNDS

DUE FROM
General Fund OTHER FUNDS
General Fund-Federal and
State Programs ] 869,208 $
Cafateria Fund 1,391,532
Capital Improvement Fund -0~

Enterprise Fund
Cafeteria Fund

Capital Improvement Fund

Total

869,208
147,646

51,867

1,391,532
-0-

147,646
— 51,867

$ 2,460,253 $ 2,460,253

Interfond transfars for year ending June 30, 2016 consists of the following:

TRANSFERS FROM TRANSFERS TO

Governmental Funds

General Fund $ 3,704,239 S -0-
Debt Service Fund -0- 3,704,239

Total Governmental PFunds $ 3,704,239 $ 3,704,239

1. Transfers from the General Fund to the Debt Sexvice Fund represent principal

and interest payments on long-term debt.
NOTE 6 - DUE FROM OTHER GOVERNMENTS

Amounts due from other governments represent receivablas
the 8School Distriet, collections made by another
of the 8cheool Distriect or reimbursements for expenditures.
following amounts are due from other governmental units:

At June 30,

DUE FRCOM GENERAT, FUND
Other School Districts 3 688,541
Lawrence County Tax Collection
Committea 11,886
County 508,769
Intermediate Units 808,417

Lawrence County Community Action

Partnership 143,562
Total A g!L§1!175

—-40=-
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NOTE 7 - HER RECEI LES
Other receivables consist of the following:
FCCD

GENERATL SERVICE

FUND FUND

Rental $ 1,136 ] -0-

Tuition 390,208 -0-
PTA/Student Activities 8,270 ~0-

Other 2,854 11,786

Total 8 42,465 $ 11,786

ROTE B - CAPITAYT, ASSETS

A summary of the governmental and business-type fixed asset activity for the year ended
June 30, 2016 was as follows:

BEGINNING ENDING
BALANCE INCREASES DECREASES BATANCES
Govarnmental Activities
Capital Assets, not Being:
Depreciated
Land $ _2,275,130 5 -0~ 8 -0~ $ 2,275,130
Total Capital Assets
not Being Depreciated 2,275,130 —0- =0~ 2,275,130
Capital Assets, being Depreciated
Buildings and Improvements 78,658,527 121,256 -0- 78,779,783
Furniture and Equipment 4,918,469 24,422 -0~ 4,942,891
Site Improvements 2,375,351 37,455 =0~ 2,412,806
Total Capital Assets
Being Depreciated 85,952,347 183,133 =0- 86,135,480
Less: Accumulated Depreciation
Buildings and Improvements {13,329,210) {1,580,265) -0~ {14,909,475)
Furniture and Equipment { 3,269,451) { 193,576} -0- { 3,463,027)
S8ite Improvements (_1,159,262) {(__174,728) =0~ (_1,333,9950)
Total Accumulated
Depraciation {17,.757,923) {1,948 ,569) =0- (19,706,492)
Govarmmantal Activities
Capital Asgets-Net § 70,469,554 $(1,765,436) § ~-0- § 68,704,118
Business-Type Aotivitias
Capital Assets, being
Depreciated 8 29,692 L] -0- g -0- -} 29,692
Less: Accunulated
Dapreciation {(____24,792) { 1,089) =0~ { 25.881)
Business-Type
Activitiaes Capital
Agsets-Net 3 4,900 8¢ 1,089) § -0- 3 3,811

Depreciation expense was charged to governmental functions as follows:

Instruction $ 1,692,831
Administration 104,266

Operation and Maintenance of
Plant Servicas 14,541
Student Activities 136,931
Total % 1,948,569
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NOTE ¢ - LONG-TERM DEBT

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016, the District’s long-term debt changed
as follows:

BALANCE BALANCE DUE WITHIN
JULY 1, 2015 ADDITIONS REDUCTTONS JUNE 30, 2016 ONE YEAR
Genexal Obligation
Notes and Bonds
Payable $ 57,070,000 $ 294,587 $(2,197,641) § 55,166,946 % 2,376,128
Bond Premium (Net of
Amortization 463,722 -0- 29,600) 434,122 29,600
Bond Discounts (Net
of Amortization) ( 418,409) 34,188 ~0- { 384,221) ( 34.,188)
Bonds Payable-Net of
Bonds Premiums and
Discounts 57,115,313 328,775 (2,227,241} 55,216,847 2,371,540
Short-Tarm
Obligations 21,527 -0- { 8,763) 12,764 8,971
Compensated Absences 3,299,953 231,306 ( 473,619) 3,057,640 387,592
Net Pension Liability 67,248,000 4,612,000 -0~ 71,860,000 -0~
Other Postemployment
Bensfit (OPEB} -D- 533,743 -0- 533,743 ~0-
Totzls $ 127,684,793 $ 5,705,824 $(2,709,623) § 130,680,994 $ 2,768,103

A. Ganeral Obligation Bonds

The balance of General Obligation Bond debt as of June 30, 2016 is composed of the
following Issues:

INTEREST ORIGINAL BALANCE
DESCRIPTION RATE-% PRINCIPAL JUNE 30,
2016
General Obligation Bonds, Refunding
Series of 2010A, maturing in 2028. 1.550 - 4.000 5 1,845,000 $ 1,360,000
Geaneral Obligation Bonds, Refunding
Series A of 2011, maturing in 2031, 1.000 - 4,250 $ 27,055,000 25,455,000
General Obligation Bonds, Series C
of 2011, maturing in 2031, 1.000 - 4.440 $ 1,870,000 1,845,000
Qualified School Construction Bonds
General Obligation Mote Series C of
of 2011, maturing in 2032, 5.06 $ 17,380,000 17,360,000
General Obligation Bonds, Series of
2012, maturing in 2034. 1.000 - 3.700 $ 8,975,000 8,890,000
General Obligation Note, Series of
2015, maturing in 2020, 2.730 $ 294,587 256,946
Total $ 55,166,946
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NOTE 9 - LONG-TERM DEBRT {Continuead)
A, Bonds (Continued)

The School District issued $1,845,000 of General Cbligation Bonds, the Refunding Series
of 2010 dated June 15, 2010 due through March 1, 2028. Interaest is paid at various
rates from 1.550% to 4.000% semi-annually on March 1 and September 1 of each year. The
S8chool District used the proceeds from the sale of the Refunding Series of 201CA Bonds
to refund the outstanding General Obligation Bonds, Series B of 2003 and pay zall costs
with the issuance and sale of these bonds.

Tha June 30 maturities are as follows:

TOTAL
MATURTTY PRINCIPATL INTEREST DUR

2017 $ 95,000 $ 50,144 3 145,144
2018 100,000 47,056 147,056
201s 100,000 43,806 143,806
2020 100,000 40,556 140,556
2021 105,000 36,931 141,931
2022 110,000 33,125 143,125
2023 115,000 29,138 144,138
2024 115,000 24,569 139,969
2025 125,000 20,800 145,800
2026 130,000 15,800 145,800
2027 130,000 10,600 140,600
2028 135,000 5,400 140,400

g8 1,360,000 $ 358,325 $ 1,718,325

B o X S VN ——
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NOTE 9 - LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

A. Bonds (Continued)

The District through the Pennsylvania School Building Authority issued 817,380,000
Qualified School Construction Bonds the General Obligation Note, Series C of 2011
dated November 3, 2011, Interest is paid semi-annually at a rate of 5.088% on March
1 and September 1 of each year and is subsidized by the American Recovery and
Reinvestwent Act of the Federal Government, principal payments ara made on Beptember
1 of each year with the final payment on Septembar 1, 2029, fThe District will use
the funds toward capital improvaments to the Districts facilities.

The June 30 maturities are as follows:

MATURITY PRINCIPAT INTEREST TOTAL, DUE
2017 $ 5,000 $ 884,294 8 689,294
2018 5,000 884,284 889,294
2018 5,000 884,294 889,294
2020 5,000 884,294 889,294
2021 5,000 884,294 889,294
2022 5,000 684,294 889,294
2023 5,000 884,294 889,294
2024 2,475,000 884,294 3,359,294
2025 2,475,000 684,294 3,359,294
2026 2,475,000 884,294 3,359,294
2027 2,475,000 884,294 3,359,294
2028 2,475,000 884,294 3,359,294
2029 2,475,000 884,294 3,359,294
2030 2,475,000 442,147 2,917,147

$ 17,360,000 $ 11,937,969 $ 29,297,969

The District issued $27,055,000 of General Obligation Bonds Series A of 2011 dated
December 1, 2011 for the purpose of providing funds to refund the Districts 2009,
2010, and 2011 Genexal Obligation Bonds and to pay the costs of igsuing the bonds.
The final maturity is March 1, 2031 with interest rates from 1.000% to 4.250% payabla
March 1 and September 1.

The June 30 maturities are as follows:

MATURITY FPRINCIPAT, INTEREST TOTAL DUE
2017 & 2,165,000 $ 1,000,115 § 3,165,115
2018 2,215,000 951,403 3,166,403
2019 2,330,000 840,652 3,170,652
2020 2,400,000 774,248 3,174,248
2021 2,51%,000 654,247 3,169,247
2022 2,600,000 572,510 3,172,510
2023 2,685,000 485,410 3,170,410
2024 585,000 351,160 936,160
2025 645,000 328,930 973,930
2026 715,000 304,420 1,019,420
2027 780,000 277,250 1,057,250
2028 870,000 245,078 1,115,075
2029 950,000 209,188 1,159,188
2030 955, 000 170,000 1,125,000
2031 3,045,000 129,412 3,174,412

$ 25,455,000 $ 1.294,020 $ 32,749,020
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NOTE 9 ~ LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

A. Bonds (Continued)

The District issued $1,870,000 of Genaral Obligatien Bonds, Series C of 2011, dated
December 1, 2011 due through March 1, 2034, Interest is paid at various rates from
The District

1,00% to 4.40% semi-annually on March 1 and September 1 of each year.

will use the funds toward capital improvements to the Districts facilities and to pay

the cost of issuing the bonds,

The June 30 maturities are as follows:

MATURI'TY PRINCIPAL INTEREST
2017 $ 5,000 $ 79,819
2018 5,000 79,112
2019 5,000 79,593
2020 5,000 79,458
2021 5,000 79,307
2022 5,000 79,100
2023 5,000 78,893
2024 5,000 78,685
2025 5,000 78,478
2026 5,000 78,270
2027 5,000 78,062
2028 5,000 77,855
2029 5,000 77,647
2030 5,000 77,440
2031 5,000 77,233
2032 565,000 77,017
2033 595,000 52,722
2034 610,000 26,840

$ 1,845,000 $ 1,336,131

The District borrowed $294,587, the General Obligation Note, Series of 2015 dated
October 15, 2015 due October 20, 2020. Interest is paid at 2,73% with a monthly
rayment of $5,258 including interest. The District used the funds for the District'’'s
share of the placement of the heating, ventilation, and air conditioning (HVAC) at

the Lawrence County Career and Technical Center

The June 30 maturities are as follows:

MATURITY PRINCTIPAT INTEREST
2017 $ 656,128 5 6,969
2018 58,341 4,756
2019 59,954 3,143
2020 61,611 1,486
2021 20,912 119

$ 256,946 $ 16,473

~45-

TOTAL DUE

84,819
84,712
84,593
84,458
84,307
84,100
83,893
83, 685
83,478
83,270
83,062
82,855
82,647
82,440
82,233

642,017
647,722

__636,840

$ 3,181,131

TOTAL DUE

$ 63,097
63,097
63,097
63,097

_21,031

$ 273,419
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NOTE 9 - LOWG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

A. Bonds (Continued)

The District issued $8,975,000 of General Obligation Bonds, Series of 2012, dated
February 1, 2012 due through March 1, 2034, Interest is paid at various rates from
1.00% to 3.70% semi-annually on March 1 and September 1 of each year. Tha District
will use proceeds from the sale of the 2012 Bonds to refund the Districts outstanding
General Obligation Bonds, Series of 2006 and to pay certain costs associated with the
issuing of the 2012 bonds.

The June 30 maturities are as follows:

MATURITY PRINCIPAL INTEREST AT, DUE
2017 § 50,000 $ 313,047 $ 363,047
2018 50,000 312,347 362,347
2019 50,000 311,035 361,035
2020 50,000 309,723 359,723
2021 50,000 308,410 358,410
2022 50,000 307,098 357,098
2023 50,000 305,785 355,785
2024 55,000 304,472 359,472
2025 55,000 303,029 358,029
2026 55,000 301,585 356,585
2027 60,000 299,770 359,770
2028 60,000 297,790 357,790
2029 215,000 295,810 510,810
2030 225,000 288,715 513,715
2031 235,000 281,290 516,290
2032 2,435,000 273,065 2,708,065
2033 2,525,000 187,840 2,712,840
2034 2,620,000 96,940 2,716,940

$ 8,890,000 $ 5,097,751 $ 13,987,751

B, Compensated Absences

Yagation-8cheool District employees who are required te work on a twelve-month
schedule are credited with vacation at rates which vary with length of service or job
clasgifications. Vacation must be taken by June 30 of the fiscal year or it is
forfaited.

Early Retirement Incentive-The School District by contract offers early retirement
incentive programs to teacher personnel and to administrative and supervigory
personnel. Payments are made to the retireaes during the year or years following
retirenent. The early retirement incentive programs are initiated by contracts
adopted by tha New Castle Area Boarzd of School Diractors. The amount of early
retirement incentive payments to ba provided Ffrom taxes or other revenue is
$3,299,952 and is shown in the General Long-Term Debt Account Group.
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NOTE 9 - LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

B, Compensated Abgenceg {(Continuad)

Sick Leavea and No Loss of Pay-The School District employees are credited with sick
leave and no loss of pay annually to a limited maximum per the schedule below.

Sick No Loss Accumulated Upon

Leave of Pay Retirement or Termination
Administration 15 Days 1 Day $175/Day No Maximum
Profassional Staff 12 Days 1 Day 1 te 100 Days $70,00/Day

101 to 150 Days $B7.50/Day
Over 150 Days §105.00/Day

S8ecretarial
SMonth Position 10 Days 1 Day $20/Day up to Maximum of
$2,000
12-Month Positicn 12 Days 1 Day $20/bay up to Maximum of
$2,000
Janitorial 12 Days 1 Day 1 toc 100 Days $42,00/Day
101 to 150 Days $52.50/Day
Over 150 Days $63.00/Day
Upon retirement such employees are paid per tha schedule abova, The amount of

accrued leaves at June 30, 2016 to be provided from taxes or other revenue is
$3,057,640.

Total
Conpensated
Absences
Early Retirement Incentive $ 590,690
Sick Leave 2,466,950
$ 3,057,640

C. Short-Term Obligation
The School District entered into the following installment note:
Governmental Activities:

1) The purchase of a maintenance truck with a payment of $768 ineluding interest for
a forty-eight (48) month period with a final maturity of Novembar 13, 2017.

The future installment payments required to satisfy this short-term obligation are
aa follows:

¥ear Endad Truck
June 30 Principal Interest Total
2017 $ 8,97 $ 239 $ 9,210
2018 3,783 23 3,816
Total $ 12,764 $ 262 & 13,026
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NOTE 9 - LONG-TERM DEBT {Continued)

The future annual payments required to amortize all outastanding debt, except for
compensated absences and postemployment health benefits as of June 30, 2018,
including total interest payment are as follows:

GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS SHORT TERM OBLIGATTION

AND AND
YEAR ENDING GENERAT, OBLIGATION NOTES CAPITAL LEASES

JUNE_30 PRINCIPDAT, INTEREST PRINCIPAL  INTEREST TOTAL
2017 $ 2,376,128 $ 2,334,388 $ 8,971 $ 239 $ 4,719,726
2018 2,433,341 2,279,568 3,793 23 4,716,725
2019 2,549,954 2,162,523 -0- -0- 4,712,477
2020 2,621,611 2,089,765 -0- -0- 4,711,376
2021 2,700,912 1,963,308 -0- -0- 4,664,220
2022 2,770,000 1,876,127 -0- -0- 4,646,127
2023 2,860,000 1,783,520 -0- -0- 4,643,520
2024 3,235,000 1,643,580 -0~ -0- 4,878,580
2025 3,305,000 1,615,531 -0- -0- 4,920,531
2026 3,380,000 1,584,369 -0~ -0- 4,964,369
2027 3,450,000 1,549,976 -0~ -0- 4,999,976
2028 3,545,000 1,510,414 -0- -0- 5,055,414
2029 3,645,000 1,466,939 -0- -0 5,111,939
2030 3,660,000 978,302 -0- -0- 4,638,302
2031 3,285,000 487,935 -0- ~0- 3,772,935
2032 3,000,000 350,082 -0- -0- 3,350,082
2033 3,120,000 240,562 -0- -0- 3,360,562
2034 3,230,000 123,780 -0- =0- 3,353,780

5 12,764 $ 262 $ 81,220,641

$ 26,040,669
Az referred to in Sectiom A of Note 9, the interest with regpect to the Qualified
S8chool Construction Bonds ia being subsidized by the American Recovery and
Reinvestment Act of the Federal Goverpment. This means the amount of interest above
will be reduced accordingly by the federal subsidy on an annual basis. This amount
for the current year is $821,952.

$ 55,166,946

NOTE 10 - OPERATING LEASES

Commitments under operating leases agreemants for equipment provide minimum future
rental payments as of June 30, 2016 as follows:

fear Ended

June 30
2017 § 55,484
2018 55,484
2019 23,118
Total % 134,086

Operating lease rental
expenditure during

2015~2016 were $ 58,153
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Juna 30, 2016

NOTE 11 - POSTEMPLOYMENT EENERITS OTHER THAN PEMSIONS

A, Plan Description

In addition to the pension benefits deseribed in Note 11, New Castle Area School
District provides postemployment health care benefits to qualified employees, and/or
their spouses, who retire from the District as detailed in the collective bargaining
agreement between the District and their respective bargaining unit.

4 qualified employeea is eligible for full rpostenployment health benefits until
she/he bacomes eligible for Medicare {age 65). If spouse is younger than employee
she/he may continue until death or cessation of retiree coverage if earlier.

B, Funding Policy

The cbligations of the plan members, employers and other entities are astablished
by action of the District pursuant to applicable collective bargaining and
amployment agreements. The required contribution rates of the employer and the
members varies daepending on tha applicable agreement. The District cuxrently
contributes enough money to the plan to satisfy current obligations on a pay-as-you-
go basis. The costs of administering the plan ara paid by the Distriet.

C. Accounting Poligy

The accrual basis of accounting is used. The fair market valua of assets, if any,
is determined by the market value of assats, if any, paid by a willing buyer to a
willing sellar.

D. Annual OPEB Cogt and Net OPEBR Obligaticn

The District’s annual other postemployment benefit (OPEB} cost {expense) is
calculated based on the annual required contribution of tha employex (ARC). The
District has engaged an actuary to calculate the ARC and related informaticn per the
provisions of GASB Statemant 45 for employers in plans with more than one hundred
total plan members. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an
ongoing basis, is projacted to cover normal ceost each year and to amortize any
unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not to exceed
thirty years. Tha following table shows the componants of the Distriect’s annual
OPEB cost for the year, the amount actually contributed to the plan, and the
District’s net OPEB obligation to the Retiree Health Plan at June 30, 201s.

For Fisecal Year July 1, 2015 to June 30, 2016 TOTAL
Annual Required Ceontribution (ARC) $ 2,388,785
Interest on Net OPEB Obligation -0-
Adjustment to ARC —0-

Annual OFEB Cost 2,388,785
Contributions Made (Estimated) 1,578,000

Estinated Increase in Net OPEB Obligation 810,785
Net OPEB Obligation-Beginning of Year (277,042}
Estimated Net OPEB Obligation-End of Year ] 533,743

-4 0=

i T —




NEW CASTLE, PENNSYLVANIA

A CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

PHILIP WEINER AND COMPANY LTD

NEW CASTIE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
Notea to Financial Statements
June 30, 2016

NOTE 11 - POSTEMPIOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (Continued)
—=eoonme e peaRallo UIHER THAN DENSIONS

D. Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation (Continued)

The District’s annual OREB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to
the plan, and the net OPEB cbligation is as follows:

FISCAL YEAR ANNUAL OPEB PERCENTAGE OF ANNUAL NET OPER

ENDED COST OPEE COST CONTRIEBUTED OBLIGATICON
June 30, 2016 $3,388,786 66.1% $ 533,743
June 30, 2015 $2,349,192 76.2% 5( 277,042)
June 30, 2014 51,725,993 87.5% 3( 836,834)
June 30, 2013 51,700,770 88.9% §(1,051,877)
June 30, 2012 $1,448,155 120.3% ${1,240,247)
June 30, 2011 $1,447,556 126.2% 5({ 945,902)
June 30, 2010 81,484,258 119.3% 5( 567,358)
June 30, 2009 31,480,000 119.0% $( 281,514)

E. Funded Status and Funding Progress

As at July 1, 2016, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the actuarial accrued
liabkility for benefits was $13,058,634, all of which was unfunded. The covered
payroll (annual payroll of active employees covered by the plan) was $19,780,720
and the ratio of the unfunded actuarial liability to the covered payroll was 66.0%.

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of rapertad
amounts and assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the
future. Examples include assumptions about future employment, mortality, and the
healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the plan
and the annual required contributions of the employer are subject to continual
revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are
made about tha future. The scheduls of funding Progress, presentad as required
supplementary information following the notes to the financial statements, presents
multiyear trend information about whether the actuarial valua of plan assets is
increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liability for
benefits.

F. Actuarial Methods and Assunptions

Projections of benefits for Ffinancial reporting purposes are based on the
substantive plan (the plan as understood by the employer and the plan members} and
include the types of benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the
historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs baetween the employer and plan members
to that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that
are designed to reduce the effacts of short-term volatility in actuarial aeccrued
liabilities and the actuarial value of assata, consistent with the long-term
perspactive of the calculations. A copy of the report as prepared by Milliman
Company is available at the Administration Office of the District at 415 Fern
Street, New Castle, PA 16101,
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NOTE 12 - EENSION PLAN

Penaions

For purpoges of measuring the net pension liability, daferred outflows of resources
and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions r and pension expense,
information about the fiduciary net position of the Public School Employees”
Retirement System (PSSERS) and additiona to/deductions from PSERS’s fiduciary net
position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by PSERS. For
this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are
recognized when due and payabla in acoordance with the benefit terms investments are
reported at fair value.

General Information about the Pension Plan

Plan Description

PSERS is a governmental cost-sharing multi-employer defined benefit pension plan that
provides retirement benefits to public school employees of the Commonwealth of
Pennsylvania. The members eligible to participate in the System include all full-
time public school employees who rendar at least 500 hours of saervice in the school
yeazr, and part-time hourly public school employees whe rendsr at least BO days of
sexvice in the school year in any of the reporting entities in Pannsylvania. PSERS
issues a publicly available financial report that can ba obtained at
www.psers.state.pa.us.

Benefits Provided

PSERSB provides retirement, disability, and death benefits. Members are eligible for
monthly retirement benefits upon reaching (a) age 62 with at least 1 yaar of credited
service; (b} age 60 with 30 or more years of credited service; or (ec) 35 or more
years of service ragardless of age. Act 120 of 2010 (Act 120) preserves the benefits
of existing members and introduced banefit reductions for individuales who become new
members on or after July 1, 2011. Act 120 created two new membership classes,
Mambership Class T-E (Class T-E} and Membership Class T-F (Class T-F). To qualify
for normal retirement, Class T-E and Class T-F members must work until age 65 with
a minimum of 3 years of service or attain a total combination of age and service that
is equal to or greater than 92 with a minimum of 35 years of servica. Benefits are
generally equal to 2% or 2,5%, depending upon membership class, of the member’s final
average salary {as defined in the Code} multiplied by the number of years of credited
service, For members whose mnembership started prior to July 1, 2011, after
completion of five years of service, a member’s right to the defined benefits is
vested and early retirement benefits may be elected, For Class T-E and Claas T-F
members, the right to benaefits is vested aftar ten years of service.

Participants are eligible for disability ratirement benefits after completion of five
years of credited service. Such benaefits are generally equal to 2% or 2.5%,
depending upon membership class, of the memberfs final average salary (as defined in
the Code) multiplied by tha number of years of credited sarvice, but not less than
one-third of such salary nor greater than the benefit the member would have had at
normal retirement age. Members over normal retirement age may apply for disability
benefits.

Death benafits are payable upon the death of an active member who has reached age 62
with at least one year of credited servica (age 65 with at least three yoars of
credited service for Class T-E and Clase T-F members) or who has at least five years
of cradited service (ten years for Class T-E and Class T-F members). Such benefits
are actuarially equivalent to the benefit that would have been effective if the
menber had retired on the day before death.

-51 -

oA




A CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM NEW CASTLE, PENNSYLVANIA

PHILIP WEINER AND COMPANY LTD

NEW CASTLE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2016

NOTE 12 - PENSION PLAN {(Continued)

Contributions
Member Contributions:

Active members who joined the System prior ta July 22, 1983, contribute at 5.25%
(Membership Class T-C) or at 6.50% {Membership Class T-D) of the member’s qualifying
compensation.

Members who joined the System on or after July 22, 1983, and who were active or
inactive as of July 1, 2001, contribute at 6.25% {Membership Class T-C) or at 7.50%
(Membership Class T-D) of the member’s qualifying compensation.

Meambers who joined the System after June 30, 2001 and before July 1, 2011, contribute
at 7.50% (automatic Membership Clasa T-D),. For all new hires and for members who
eleated Class T-D membership, the higher contribution rates began with service
rendered on or after January 1, 2002.

Members who joined the System after June 30, 2011, automatically contribute at the
Membership Class T-E rate of 7.5% (base rate) of the member’s qualifying
compensation. All new hires after June 30, 2011, who elect Class T-F membership,
contribute at 10.3% (base rate) of the member’s qualifying compensation, Membership
Class T-E and Clasg T-F are affected by a “shared risk” provision in Act 120 of 2010
that in future fiscal years could cause the Membership Class T-E contribution rate
to fluctuate between 7.5% and 9.5% and Membership Class T-F ocontribution rate to
fluctuate between 10.3% and 12, 3%,

Employer Contributions:

The School Districts’ contractually required contribution rate for fiscal vear ended
June 30, 2016 was 21.17% of covered payroll, actuarially determined as an amount
that, when combinad with employee contribution, is expected to finance the costs of
benefits earned by employees during the year, with an additional amount to Ffinance
any unfunded acorued liability. Contributions to the pension plan from the District
was 55,628,759 for the year ended June 30, 2016.

PENSION LIABILITIES, PENSION EXPENSE, AND D D OUT OF RE CES AND DEFERRED
INFLOWS OF RESOURCES RELATED TO PENSICNS

At June 30, 2016, the District reported a 1liability of $71,860,000 for its
proportionate share of the net pension liability. The net pension liability was
measured as of June 30, 2015, and the total pension liability used to calculate the
net pension liability was determined by rolling forward the System’s total pension
liability as of June 30, 2013 to June 30, 2014. The District’s proportion of the net
pension liability was calculated utilizing the employer’s one-year reported covarage
payroll as it relates to the total one-year reported covered payroll. At June 30,
2015, the District’s proportion was ,1659 percent, which was an decrease of .0040
from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2016.
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NOTE 12- PENSION PLAN (Continued}

For the year ended June 30, 2016,

Ddifference between oxpacted
and actual expenditures

the District recognized pension expense of
$5,628,760. At June 30, 2016 the District reported deferred outflows of resources
and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Outflouws
of Regources

$ ~0-

Net difference between projected

and actual investment earnings
Changes in proportions
Contributiona subsedquent to the
maeasurement date

_o_
551,000

5,628,760

$ 6,179,760

Deferred Inflows
of Rascurcas

$ 297,000

145,000
1,357,000

—0=

$ 1,799,000

$6,179,760 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting
from District contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as

a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended June 30, 201s,

Other

amounts reported as deferred cutflows of rasources and deferred inflows of resources
related to pensions will be recognized in pension axpense as follows:

Year Ending

Jung 30
2016
2017
2018
2019
Total

$(378,000)
(378,000)
(378,000)
485,000)

$(£49,000)

Actuyarial Assuwptions

The total pension liability as of June 30, 2015 was determined by rolling forward the
System’a total pensicn liability as of June 30, 2014 actuarial valuation to June 30,
2015 using tha following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in
the measurement:

* Actuarial cost mathod - Entry Age Normal -level % of pay

* Investment return - 7.5%, including inflation at 3.00%

* Salary increases - Effective average of 5.50%, which reflects an allowance
of inflation of 3.00% real wage growth of 1% and merit or seniority increase
of 1.50%

* Mortality rates were based on tha RP-2000 Combined Healthy Annuitant Tables
(male and female) with age set back 3 years for both males and females. For
disabled annuitants the RP-2000 Combined Disabled Tables {male and femala)
with all age set back 7 vears for males and 3 years for females.

The actvarial assumptions used in June 30, 2014 valuation were based on the
experience study that was performed for the five-year period ending June 30, 2010.
The recommended assumption changes based on this experience study ware adopted by the
Board at its March 11, 2011 board meeting, and were effactive beginning the June 30,
2011 actuarial valuation.
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NOTE 12- PENSION PLAN {Continued)

The long-term expacted rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using
a building~block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of
return {expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are
developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-
term expected rate of return by weighting the expacted future real rates of return by
the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expacted inflation.

The pension plan’s policy in regard to the allocation of invested plan assets is
established and may be amended by the Board, Plan assets arae managed with a long-term
objective of achieving and maintaining a fully funded status for the banefits provided
through the pensions.

Long-Tarm
Target Expactad Real
Asset Class Allocation Rate of Return

Public Market Global Equity 19% 5.0%
Private Markets (Equity) 21% 6.5%
Privata Real Estate 13% 4.7%
Global Fixed Income 8% 2.0%
U.S. Long Treasuries 3% 1.4%
TIPS 12% 1.2%
High Yield Bonds 6% 1.7%
Cash 3% 0.9%
Absolute Return 10% 4.8%
Risk Parity 5% 3.9%
MLPs/Infrastructure 3% 5.3%
Commodities 6% 3.3%
Financing (LIBOR) {__9%) 1.1%

100%

The above was the Board’s adopted asset allocation policy and best estimate of
geometric real rates of return for each major asset class of June 30, 2015,

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure tha total pension liability was 7.50%. Tha
projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions
from plan members will be made at the current contribution rate and that contributions
from employers will be made at contractually required rates, actuarially determined.
Based on thosa assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to
be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members.
Therafore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was
applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension
liability.

Sensitivity of the District’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to
Changes in the Digcgunt Rate

The following presents the net pension liability, calculated using the discount rate
of 7.50%, as well as what the net pension liability would be if it were caloulated
using a discount rate that is l-percentage point lower (6.50%) or l-percentage-point
higher ({8,50%) than the current rate:

Currant
1% Decrease Discount 1% Increase
6.50% Rate 7.50% 8.50%

District’s Proportionate
Share of Net Pension
Liability $ 88,574,000 $ 71,860,000 $ 57,812,000

—5d4-
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NOTE 12- PENSION PLAN {Continued)

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information about PSERS’ fiduciary net position is available in PSERS
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report which can be found on the System’'s website at

yww.psers.state.pa.us.
Total Employer Contributions (Pension and Health Insurance)

Based on the June 30, 2013, actuarial wvaluation, a total contribution rate of 27.82% of
payroll payable by employers for FY 2015/2016, when taken together with the contribution
rayable by the members, current assats, and expected future asset returns, is gsufficient
to achieve the financing objective. However, Act 2010-120 limits the contribution for
FY¥ 2015/2016 to 25.00% of payroll. This has the effect of deferring part of the
contribution that would otherwise have been payable in FY 2015/2016 to future years.
This rate consists of a 25.0% pension rate (FY 2015/2016 rate of 27.82% plus the Act 120
4.5% collar, resulting in a deferral of 2.82% pension contribution) plus a .84% health
insurance contribution rate.

The employer contribution rate for the fiscal vear baginning July 1, 2016 has been
recertified. The new contribution rate will be 30.03% of covered payroll.

New Castle Area School District’s contribution to PSERS for the years ended Juna 30,
2016, 2015, and 2014 were $5,628,759, $4,344,477, and $3,576,675 raspectivaly, which were
100% of the required contributions,

According to requirements established in Act 29 of 1994, the Commonwealth reinmburses
school entity empleyers a portion of the employer contributions pald to the System. All
achool entity employers are reimbursed by the Commonwealth at least 50% of the total
employer contributions based on the total econtribution rate. The Commonwealth
reimburses certain school entity emplovyers at a rate greater than 50% based upon nen-
pension criteria which stipulates that the entity must have a Commonwealth Department of
Education caleulated Market Value/Personal TIneome Aid Ratio in excess of .5000.

The following is a history and projection of contribution rates and funded ratios From
the Pennsylvania Public School Employees Retirement System’s Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report for Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015

Fiscal Year Preliminary Final Employer
Ending Employer Employer Health Total
June 30 Pansion Pensgion Insurance Employer
2004 2,98% 2.98% 0.79% 3.77%
2005 0.38% 4.00% 0.23% 4.23%
2006 3.33% 4.00% 0.69% 4,69%
2007 5,67% 5.72% 0,74% 6.46%
2008 6.44% 6.44% 0.69% 7.13%
2009 3.31% 4.00% 0.76% 4.76%
2010 3.63% 4.00% 0.78% 4.78%
2011 7.58% 5,00% 0.64% 5.64%
2012 18.27% 8.00% 0.65% 8.65%
2013 21.65% 11.50% 0,86% 12.36%
2014 23.82% 16.00% 0.93% 16.93%
2015 25,.97% 20.50% 0.920% 21,40%
2016 27.28% 25.00% 0.84% 25,84%
2017 28.44% 28,44% 0.83% 29.27%
2018 29.43% 29.43% 0.82% 30.25%
2019 30.45% 30.49% 0.79% 31.28%
2020 31.30% 31.30% 0.78% 32.08%
2021 31.25% 31.25% 0.77% 32.02%
2022 31.27% 31.27% 0.74% 32,01%
2023 31.49% 31.49% 0.73% 32.,22%
2024 31.58% 31.68% 0.72% 32.30%
2025 31.67% 31.67% 0.69% 32.36%
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NOTE 13 - CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Bigk Management

The District is axposed to various risks of loss related to theft of, damage to, and
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; and natural disasters. The District has
purchased various insurance policies to safeguard its assets from risk of loss.
Insurance coverage appears to be consistent with previous years.

Grant Proqgrams

The School District participates in both state and federally assisted grant programs
These programs are subject to program compliance audits by the grantors or their
representatives. 'The Bchool District is potentially liable Ffor any expenditures
vhich may be disallowed pursuant to the terms of these grant programs, Management
is not aware of any material items of noncompliance which would result in the
disallowance of program expenditures.

Litigation

In the normal course of operaticns, the School District is involved in various civil
disputes, principally regarding proparty tax appeals. Management is of the cpinion
that any unfavorable cutcome results from these actions would not have a material
effect on the 8chool District’s financial position,

NOTE 14 - ACTIVITY FUND REVENUE

The nature of the Activity Fund is such that all of the receipts are collected from
cutaide sources and these records are sent to the business office for recording and
classification. BSince these monies are not controlled by the School District at the
source of receipt, that is, student activities such as dances, candy sales, etc., we
have been unable to substantiate and audit these funds.

NOTE 15 - PRICR YEAR SUBSIDY PAYMENT

The District received a finding for the loss of parent paid tuition of nonresident
students in the amount of $110,664 for prior years. This amount will be withheld
from future subsidy payments. Also the District negotiated a settlement from the
parenta of these nonresident students of $73,007 to be repaid at a xate of $600 per
month, resulting net amount payable of $37,654.

NCTE 16 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The School District has evaluated subsequent events through March 15, 2017, the
financial statements were available to be issued.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAT. CONTROI. OVER FINANGTAI, REPORTTNG AND ON

COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT QF FINANCIAT, STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Directors
Naw Castle Area Schoeol District
New Castle, Pennsylvania

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained
in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptreller General of the United
States, the financial statements of the govermmental activities, the business-type
activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and
the aggregate remaining fund information of New Castle Area School District, as of
and for the year ended June 30, 2016, and the related notes to the financial
statements, which collectively comprise New Castle Araa School District’s basic
financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated March 15, 2017.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In plamming and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered New
Castle Area School District’s internal control over financial reporting (intexnal
control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances
for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the New Castle Area
School District’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effaectivenass of the New Castle Area School District’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a contrel
does not allow management or employses, in the normal course of performing their
asgigned functions, to prevent, or detect and’ correct, misstatements on a timely
basis. A material weaknass is a deficiency, or combination of deficienaies, in
internal control, such that there is a reascnable possibility that a material
misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detacted
and corrected on a timely basis, A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material
weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencises in
internal control that might be material weaknesses or, significant deficiencies.
Given these limitations, during our audit we did not . identify any deficiencies in
internal controcl that we consider to be material weaknesses, However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

ks part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether New Castle Area School
District’s financial statements are free of materiazl misstatement, we performed tests
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effact on the
detormination of financial statement amounts, However, providing an opinion en
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our aundit, and accordingly,
wa do not axpress such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances
of noncompliance or other matters that are requizred to be raported under Govermment
Auditing Standards.
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Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal
contrel and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion
on the effactiveness of tha entity’s intexrnal controcl ox on compliance. This report
is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly,
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

%w@r

New Castle, Pennsylvania
March 15, 2017
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A CERTIFIED PUBLIC AGCOUNTING FIRM NEW CASTLE, PENNSYLVANIA

PHILIP WEINER AND COMPANY LTD

NEW CASTLE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
Statement of Revenues and Expendituraes-Budget and Actual

For the Year Bnded June 30, 2016

REVENUES

8000
7000
8000

Local Sources
S8tate Sources
Federal Sources

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES

1100
1200
1300
1400
1500
1800
2100
2200
2300
2400
2500
2600

2700
2800
2900
3200
3300
4000
5110

5300

o

Regular Programs

Special Programs

Vocational Programs

Other Instructional Programs

Nenpublic School Programs
Pro-Kindergarten

Pupil Personnel Services
Instructional Staff Services

Administrative Services

Pupil Health

Business Services

Operation and Maintenance of
Plant Service

Student Transportation Services

Central & Other Support Servicas

Other Support Servicas

Student Activities

Community Sarvices

Fac Acg. Const, and Imp

Debt Service (Principal &
Intarast)

Refund of Prior Years Receipts

Total Expenditures

Bxcess (Deficiency) of

Revanues Over
Expenditures

FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

2400 Sale of Fixed Assats

5200

Interfund Transfer-Out
Proceeds from Extended Finanocing

Total Other Financing
Sources (Uses)

NET CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

FUND

BALANCE-July 1, 2015

FUND BALANCE-June 30, 2016

BUDGETED AMOUNTS

ORIGINAIL

§ 11,007,395
31,622,100

3,873,734

46,503,229

20,067,301
6,833,610
1,594,847

885,152
31,470
461,180
1,171,247
912,913
3,360,701
721,374
661,048

3,035,389
1,630,028
460,862
17,000
757,591
40,002
-0~

4,546,452
~0n

47,188,167

FINAT,

VARIANCE WITH

$ 11,007,395
31,622,100

3,873,734

46,503,229

20,289,099
7,100,000
1,594,847

870,152
31,470
401,180
1,171,247
947,913
3,408,701
665,000
239,048

3,082,876
1,630,028
623,861
17,600
650,591
35,002
_o—

684,352
2,100

44,046,067

ACTUATL, FINAL BUDGET
BUDGETARY POSITIVE/
BASTS . NEGATIVE
$ 11,145,198 § 137,803
33,169,353 1,747,253
3,884,048 10,314
48,398,599 1,895 370
21,258,381 { 969,282)
7,294,093 { 194,093)
1,763,868 { 169,021}
896,356 (  26,204)
34,111 ( 2,641}
398,984 2,196
1,450,602 { 279,355)
956,588 ( 8,675)
3,407,455 2,246
664,241 759
B38,090 958
3,529,602 { 446,726)
1,662,024 { 31,996)
640,304 { 16,443)
17,562 38
850,344 { 199,753)
32,582 2,420
-0' -=-
883,882 ( 199,530)
2,037 63

46,581,106 {(2,535,039)

(__684,938) (_2,457,162) 1,817,493 (__639,669)
-0~ -0- 651 651
( 520,000) ( 3,662,100) ( 3,704,239) ( 42,139)
-0- -0~ 294,587  _ 294,587
(__520,000) {(_3,662,100) (_3,409,001) 253,099

8(_1,204,938)

$(_1,204,938)

( 1,591,508) $(_.__386,570)

6,841,288

$ 5,249,78p

The accompanying notes and auditer's report should be read with this financial statement.
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A CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

PHILIP WEINER AND COMPANY LTD

NEW CASTLE, PENNSYLVANIA

ACTUARIAL
VALUATION
DATE
July 1, 2016
July 1, 2014
July 1, 2012
July 1, 2010

July 1, 2008

NEW CASTLE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
Schedula of Funding Prograss for Retiree Health Plan
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

UNFUNDED
ACTUARIAL ACCRUED
VALUE OF ACCRUED LIABILITY FUNDED
ASSETS LIABILITY {UATL) RATIO
(a) (B) (B-A) {A/B)
$ -0- $13,058,634 813,058,634 0.00%
§ -0- $13,930,400 513,930,400 0.04%
§ -0- $10,948,900 510,948,900 0.00%
$ -0- $10,982,800 $10,982,800 0.00%
8 -0- $12,841,400 512,841,400 0.00%

~61=

UAL AS A

PERCENTAGE

COVERED  OF COVERED

PAYROLL PAYROLL

(C) {{B-2) [C[
$19,844,700 65.8%
$19,091,272 72. 9%
$20,754,300 52.8%
$19,954,400 55.0%
518,931,000 67.8%

The accompanying notes and auditor’s report should be read with this financial statement.




A CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM NEW CASTLE, PENNSYLVANIA

PHILIP WEINER AND COMPANY LTD

NEW CASTLE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
Pennsylvania Public School Employeas Retirement System Plan
Year Ended June 30, 2016

SCHEDULE OF THE DISTRICTS PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY-See Note

balow
Yeay Ended June 30
__2016 __2015
Districts Proportion of the Net Pension Liability (Asset) .1659% .1699%

Districts Proportionate Share of the Net Pension

Liability {Asset)

$ 71,860,000 $ 67,248,000

District Covered-Employee Payroll 22,700,318 21,683,136
District Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability
(Asset) as a Percentage of its Covered-Employee Payroll 316.56% 310.14%
Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage of the Total
54,36% 57.24%

Pensicn Liability

* The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of the prior fiscal year

of tha pension plan (the measurement date).

SCHEDULE OF THE DISTRICT’S CONTRIBUTIONS-See

Contractually Requirad Contribution
Contributions in Relation to the
Contxactually Required Contributions
Contribution Deficiency (Excess)

Distriet’s Covered-Employee Payroll

Contributions as a Parcentage of
Covered-Employee Payroll

NOTH
Changes in Benefit Terms None
Changas in Assumptions None

Note below

Year Ended June 30
2016 2015 2013
$ 5,628,759 § 4,279,597 5 3,576,675

5,628,759 4,279,597 § 3,576,675

8 ~0- -0- -0~

$ 22,700,396 § 20,876,085 § 21,683,130

24.79% 20.5% 16.0%

Method and Assumptions used in Calculations of Actuarially Determined Contributions

The actuarially determined contributions are calculated as of the June 30 preceding the

fiscal year in which contributions are made,

That is, the contribution caleculated as of

the June 30, 2013 actuarial valuation will be made during the fiscal year ended June 30,
2016. The following actuarial methods and assumptions ware used to determine contribution

rates reported in that =schedule:

® Invastment return-7.50%, including inflatien at 3.00%

L S8alary increases-Effective average of 5.50%, which reflects an allowance for
inflation of 3.00%, real wage growth of 1%, and merit or seniority of 1.5%

® Benefit payments-no postretirement benefit increases assumed in the future

® Multiple decrement tablas-mertality, vesting, retirement age, and withdrawal

estimates are based upon tables provided by the actuary
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FEDERAL GRANTOR/PASS—-THROUGH

GRANTOR/PROJECT TITLE

U.8. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION
Passed Through the Pennsvivania

Department of Education:

Title I-Improving Basic Program

Title II~Improving Teacher Quality

Rural and Low Income Schools

Twenty First Century Community Learning
Center-Cohort 7

Twenty Flrst Century Community Learning
Center-Year 1

Twenty First Century Community Learning
Center-Cohort 8

U.S5. Department of Education:
Impact Aid

Total U.8. Department of Education

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE

Passed Through the Pennsylvania

Department of Education:
Child and Adult Care Food Program
Fresh Fruit and Vegetable Program
National School Lunch Program
School Breakfast Program
Special Milk Program
Summer Food Service Program-2016
Summer Food Bervice Program-2015

Passed Through the Pannsylvania
Department of Agriculture:
Value of USDA Commodities
Total Food Nutrition Cluster

Total U.S5. Department of Agriculture

U.S5. DERPARTMENT OF HEATTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

Passed Through the Pennsylvania Department
of Public Welfare:

Medical Assistance Reimbursement for Admin

SOURCE
CODE

HH K

HEREHMHH®

I

NEW CASTLE

Schedule of Expenditures

For the Year Ended

FEDERAL
CFDA

NUMBER

84.010
84,367
B84.358

84.287

84,287

84.287

684.041

10.558
10,582
10.555
10.553
10.556
10.559
10.559

10.555

93,778

Total U.S. Department of Health and Human Services

Total Expenditure of Pederal Awards

Bource Codes:
D~Direct Funding
I-Indirect Funding

PASS THROUGH
GRANTORS
NUMBER

013-150280
020-150280
007-150280

FC4100068079
FC4100071648

FC4100068079

48-FPA-02-3002

N/A
N/&
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/a

N/A

N/A

The accompanying schadule of expenditures of federal awards included the federal grant

activity of New Castle Area School Digtrict and is

presented on the accrual basis of

accounting, The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with

raquirements of the Uniform Guidance. Therafore,

some amounts presented in this

schedule may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of the basic

financial statements.
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A CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM NEW CASTLE, PENNSYLVANIA

PHILIP WEINER AND COMPANY LTD

AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
of Federal Awards
Junae 30, 2016

GRANT GRANT
BEGTNNING ENDING CLUSTER
DATE DATE EXPENDITURES EXPENDITURES
08-28~15 09-30-16 5 1,788,309
08-28-15 09-30-15 308,143
08-28-15 09-30-16 63,620
10-01-14 09-30-16 71,169
01-06-16 12-31-16 122,885
10-15-15 08-30-16 376,225
N/A N/A 10,130
2,740,481
07-01-15 09-30~-16 62,951
07-01-15 06-30-16 62,760
07-01-15 06-30-16 § 1,233,587
07-01-15 06-30-16 516,389
07-01-15 06-30-16 801
01-p1-16 08-18-16 10,709
07-04-15 08-16-15 20,924
07-01-15 06-30-15 107,871
890,281
2,015,992
07-01-14 06-30-186 47,973
47,973
$ 4,804,446
Programs Selected For Testing:
AMOUNT
Food Nutrition Cluster $ 1,890,281
Twenty First Centuzry Community
Learning Center 570,279
Total $ 2,460,560
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PHILIP WEINER AND COMPANY LTD
A CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

ORGANIZED 1944 INCORPORATED 1891
NEW GASTLE, PENNEYLVANIA

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM; REPORT ON INTERNAI. CONTROL OVER
COMPLIANCE ; AND REPORT ON_SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS REQUIRED BY

THE UNTFQRM GUIDANCE

Board of Directors
New Castle Area School District
New Castle, Pennsylvania

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited the New Castle Area School District’s compliance with the types of
compliance requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have
a direct and material effect on each of New Castle Area School District's major
federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2016, Mew Castle Area S8School
District's major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results
section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management!s Respongibility

Management is responsible for compliance with federxal statutes, regulations and the
terms and conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of New Castla
Area School District’s major federal programs based on our audit of the types of
conpliance requirements referred to above. We conducted cur audit of compliance in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America; the standards applicahle to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United S8tates; and the
requirements of Title 2 VU.8. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Prineiple, and Audit Requirements of Federal
Awards (Unifornm Guidance) . - Those standards and Uniform CGuidance requirae that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reascnable assurance about whether
noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could
have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, eovidence about New Castle Area School
District's conpliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures
as we considered necessary in the circumstances,

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for ocur opinion on compliance
for each major federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal
determination of New Castle Area School District's complianca.

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, New Castle Area School District complied, in all material respects,
with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct
and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year endaed June
30, 201e6.
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Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of New Castle Area School District is responsible for establishing and
maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance,
we considered New Castle Area School District’s internal control over compliance with
the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major
federal program to determine the auditing procedurea that are appropriate in the
circunstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major
federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in
accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinicn cn the effectiveness of New Castle Area School District’s internal
control over compliance,

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation
of a control does not allow managemant or employees, in the normal course of performing
their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type
of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness
in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies,
in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that
material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will
not ba prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis,. A significant
deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement
of a federal program that is less severa than a material weakness in internal control
over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose
described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or
significant defieciencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control
over compliance that we consider to be material weaknasses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified,

The purpose of this report on internal contrel over compliance is solely to describe
the scope of our testing of intarnal control over compliance and the results of that
testing based on the requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report
is not suitable for any other purpose.

Repeort on Schedule of Expenditures of Fedeoral Awards Reguired by the Uniform Guidance

We have audited the financial statements of New Castle Area School District as of and
for the year ended June 30, 2016, and have issued our report therson datad January 31,
2017, which contained an unmodified opinion on those financial statements, Our audit
was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a
whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is Presented for
purposes of additional analysis as required by the Uniform Guidance and is not a
required part of the financial statements. Such information is the respeonsibility of
management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and
other records used to prepare the finanoizl statements., Thae information has been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of tha finaneial statements
and certain additional proceduras, including comparing and reconciling such information
diractly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial
statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditure of federal awards is fairly
stated in all material respects to the financial statements as a whole.

New Castle, Pannsylvania ;

March 15, 2017
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A CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM NEW CASTLE, FENNSYLVANIA

PHILIP WEINER AND COMPANY LTD

NEW CASTLE ARREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
Bchedule of Findings and Questiocned Cost

For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

Section I-Summary of Auditor’s Results

Financial Statements

Typa of auditox’s report issued expresses an unqualified opinion on the financial
statements of New Castle Area School District:

Internal control ovaer financial reporting:
* Material weaknesses identified? Yes X None Reported
* Reportable conditions identified that are not

considered to be material weaknesses? Yas X one Reported

Noncompliance material to financial statements
noted? Yes X Nona Reported

Federal Awards
Internal control over major programs:
* Material weaknesses identified? Yeas X None Reported

* Reportable conditions identified that are not
considered to ba material weaknesses? Yes X None Reported

Type of auditor’s report issued on gompliance for major programs for New Castle Area School
District expresses an unqualified opinion on all major programs:

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to
tbe reported in accordance with Uniform Guidance? Yas X None Reported

Identification of Major Programs:

CEFDA Numbers Name of Federal Program oy Cluster
10.555/10.553/10.556/10.559 Food Nutrition Cluster

Dollar threshold used to distinguish batween Type A and Type B programs: 8 750,000

Auditea qualified as low-risk auditee? X Yes No

Section IT - Financial Siatement Findings

None

Section IIY - Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

None
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A CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM NEW CASTLE, PENNSYLVANIA

PHILIF WEINER AND COMPANY LTD

NEW CASTILE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
Budgetary Comparison-Revenues and Expenditures
For the Year Ended Juns 30, 2016

GE FUND

ACCQUNT
NUMBER REVENUES

6000
7000
8000
2000

1000
2000
3000
5000

The accompanying notes and auditor’s report should be read with this financial statement,

Revenue From Local Sources
Revenus From State Sources
Revenue From Federal Sources
Other Financing Sources

Total Revenuas

EXPENDITURES

Instruction

Support Services

Operation of Non-instructiconal Sarvices
Other Financing Uses

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiancy) of Revenuea
Over Expenditures

-69-

BUDGET
AS AMENDED

$ 11,007,395
31,622,100
3,873,734
_0_

46,503,229

30,286,748
12,387,274
685,593

4,348,552

47,708,167

${_1.204,938)

. ACTUAL,

$ 11,145,198
33,369,353
3,884,048

295,238

48,693,837

31,645,793
13,166,468
882,926

4,590,158

50,285,345

$(_1.591,508)




A CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING EIRM NEW CASTLE, PENNSYLVANIA

FHILIP WEINER AND COMPANY LTD

NEW CASTLE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT

Budgetary Comparison-Revenues and Expenditures

Fox the Year Ended June 30, 2016

GENERAL FUND

SUPPORTING SCHEDULES-REVENUES

ACCOUNT §000-REVENUE FROM LOCAL SOURCES

6111
6113
6114
6120
6141
6151
6153
6211
6300

6411
6420
6440

6451
6500
6700
6740
6829
6832
6836

6910
6920
6941
6944
6961

6591
€999

Current Real Estate Taxas

Publig Utility Realty Taxes

Payments In Lieu of Taxes

Current Per Capita Taxes, Section 679

Current Per Capita Taxes-Act 511

Current Act 511 Earned Income Taxes

Current Act 511 Real Estate Transfer Taxaes

Discounts on Current Real Estate Taxes
Penalties and Interest Collected on Taxes
Levied by the LEA

Delinquencies on Taxes Levied/Assessed by the LEA

Delinquencies Per Capita Taxes, Section 679

Delinquencies Local Enabling Taxes-Flat Rate
Assessment

Delinquencies Act 511 Earned Income Taxas

Earning on Investments

Revenuas from Student Activitias-Fees
Revenues from S8tudent Activities-Other

State Pre-K Counts Three LCCAP

Federal IDEA Revenue Received as Pass Through

Federal ARRA Race to the Top Revenue Received =s Dass

Through
Rentals
Contributions and Donations
Regular Day School Tuition

Recaipts from Other LEA's in Pennsylvania Education
Transportation Services Provided Other Pennsylvania

LEA' 5
Refunds of Prior Year Expenditures
Other Revenue

ACCOUNT 7000-REVENUE FROM STATE SOURCES

7110
7160

7240
7271
7310
7320

7330
7340
7505
7810
7820

Basic Instructional Subsidy

Tuition for Orphans and Children Placed in Private
Hones

Drivers Education-Students

Special Education Funding for School Aged Pupils
Transportation (Reqular and Additicnal)

Rentals and Sinking Fund Payments/Building
Reimbursement Subsidy

Health Services (Medieal, Dental, Nurse, Act 25)
State Property Tax Reduction Allocation

Penngylvania Accountability Grant-Pre-Kindergarten
State Share of Social Security and Medicare Taxes
State Share of Retirement Contributions

(

BUDGET
AS AMENDED

§ 6,580,000

12,500
15,000
40,000
80,000
1,320,000
120,000
91,000)

158,700
1,450,000
10,000

22,000
175,000
30,025
60,000
4,000
182,470
607,505

18,384
48,000
20,000
7,000
120,000

15,000
1,000

1,811

11,007,395

22,532,066

70,000
2,000
2,439,291
845, 000

686,517
60,000
1,185,515
...0_
1,113,713
2,687,998

31,622,100

ACTUAL

$ 6,584,476
11,539
16,396
33,405
76,390
1,338,622
98, 660

{ 100,388)

178,042
1,532,344
13,565

27,131
123,783
22,583
68,370
2,735
182,470
623,994

18,384
53,024
51,827
13,735
153,725

_.0_
2,733
— 17,653

11,145,198

22,414,901

49,309
2,135
2,587,460
744,561

873,157
56,513
1,185,515
681,743
730,447

4,043,612

33,369,353

The accompanying notes and auditor's report should be read with this financial statement.
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A CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM NEW CASTLE, PENNSYLVANIA

PHILIP WEINER AND COMPANY LTD

NEW CASTLE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT

Budgetary Comparison-Revenues and Expenditures

For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

GENERAT, FUND
SUPPORTING SCHEDULES-REVENUES

ACCOUNT BOOO-REVENUE FROM FEDERAL SOQURCES

8110 Payments for Federally Impacted Areas

8514 No Child Left Behind, Title I, Improving the
Academic Achievement of the Disadvantaged

8515 No Child Left Behind, Title IIA, Improving Teacher
Quality

8517 No Child Left Behind, Title IV 21°* Century

B519 No Child Left Behind, Rural and Low Income Schools

B732 American Recovery and Reinvestment Aot of 2009 (ARRA)
Grant-Qualified School Construction Bonds

8810 Medical Assistance Reimbursements-School Board Access
Medicare Reimbursement Program Reimbursement

8820 Medical Assistance Reimbursements-Medical Asgistance
Reimbursement for Administrative Claiming Program

ACCOUNT 9000-OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
5200 Proceeds from Extended-Term Financing
2400 Bale of Fixed Assets

Total Revenues

BUDGET AS
AMENDED ACTUAL
-0- 10,130
1,788,309 1,788,309
306,833 306,143
570,260 570,260
63,620 63,620
819,741 821,952
275,661 275,661
50,000 47,973
3,873,734 3,884,048
-0- 294,587
-0- 651
-0~ 295,238

8 46,503,229

$ 48,693,837

The accompanying notes and auditor’s report should be read with this financial statement.
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A CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM NEW CASTLE, FENNSYLVANIA

PHILIP WEINER AND COMPANY LTD

NEW CASTLE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
Budgetary Comparison-Revenues and Expenditures
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

GENERAL FUND
SUPPORTING SCHEDULES-EXP, IT S

BUDGE'T
CCOUNT 1000-INSTRUCTION AS AMENDED ACTUAT
1100 Regular Programs-Elementary/Secondary $ 18,528,762 8 19,340,219
1100 Regular Programs-NCLB, Title I-Basic 1,394,574 1,520,779
1100 Regular Programs-Title ITA 302,143 332,286
1100 Regular Programs-NCLB-Rural and Low Income Schools 63,620 65,097
1200 Special Programs-Elementary/Secondary 6,228,538 6,309,980
1200 Special Programs-IDEA ) 607,505 696,396
1200 Special Programs—Medical Accass 263,956 287,717
1300 Vocational Education Programs-Elementary/Secondary 1,594,847 1,763,868
1400 Other Instructiecnal Programs-Elementary/Secondary 446,242 459,133
1400 Other Instructional Programs-Academy Program -0- -0-
1400 Other Instructional Programs-Prison Program 39,114 25,825
1400 Other Instructional Programs—Twenty First Century Grant 384,796 411,398
1500 Nonpublic School Program-NCLB-Title I-Basic 31,470 34,111
1800 Instructional Programs-PA Block Grant-Pre-Kindergarten 218,710 206,531
1800 Instruoctional Programe-Pre-Kindergarten thru LCCAP 182,470 192,453
30,286,748 31,645,793
ACCOUNT 2000-SUPPORT SERVICES
2100 Support Services-Pupil Parscnnel-Elementary/Secondary 1,042,074 1,308,234
2100 Support Services-Payroll Personnel-Twenty First
Grant 118,056 131,251
2100 Suppeort Services-Pupil Personnell-Medical Access 11,117 11,117
2200 Instructional Staff-Elementary/Secondary 810,826 809,273
2200 Instructional Staff-NCILB, Title I-Basic 118,703 127,881
2200 Instructional Staff-Race to the Top 18,384 19,434
2300 Administration Services ' 3,409,701 3,407,455
2400 Pupil Health-Elementary/Secondary 569,412 568,888
2400 Pupil Health-PA Block Grant-Pre-Kindergarten 85,000 94,766
2400 Pupil Health-Medical Access 588 588
2500 Business ) 839,048 836,090
2600 Operation and Maintenance of Plant Services 3,082,876 3,529,601
2700 Student Transportation Services 1,562,621 1,594,617
2700 Btudent Transportation Services-Twenty First Century
Grant 67,407 67,407
2800 Central 400,302 396,925
2800 Central-NCLB, Title I-Basic 223,559 243,379
2900 Other Support Services 17,600 17,562

12,387,274 13,166,468

The accompanying notes and auditor’s report should be read with this Financial statement,
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A CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM NEW CASTLE, PENNSYLVANIA

PHILIF WEINER AND COMPANY LTD

NEW CASTLE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
Budgetary Compariscon-Revanues and Expenditures
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

GENERAT, FUND
SUPPORTING SCHEDULES-EXPENDITURES

BUDGET

ACCOUNT 3000-OPERATION OF NONINSTRUCTIONAL SERVICES AS AMENDED
3200 Student Activities 650,591
3300 Community Services 15,000
3300 Community Services-NCLB, Title I-Basic 20,002

685,593
ACCOUNT 5000-OTHER EXPENDITURES AND FINANCING USES
5110 Debt Sarvices 684,352
5130 Refund of Prior Years Ravenues/Receipts 2,100
5200 Interfund Transfers-Qut 3,662,100

4,348,552

Total Expenditures $ 47,708,167

The accompanying notes and auditor’s report should be read with this financial statement.
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ACTUAT,

850,344
12,380

20,002

— 882,926

883,882
2,037

3,704,239
4,590,158

$ 50,285, 345




A CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM NEW CASTLE, PENNSYLVANIA

FPHILIP WEINER AND COMPANY LTD

NEW CASTLE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
General Fund
Schedule of Athletic Revenues and Expenditures
For the Year Ended June 30,2018

ATHLETIC
FUND
REVENUES
Gate Receipts and Guarantees $ 55,7713
Interest 18
State Subsidy-Social
Security/Retirement 40,369
WPIAL/PIAA Playoff Revenus 5,912
Total Ravenues 102,073
EXPENDITURES
Adninistrative Salaries 25,2086
Coaches 220,387
Other Labor 47,703
Benefits 80,738
Other Professional Services 12,724
Technical Sarvices 20,015
Officials and Gama Workers 47,533
Utilities 27,083
Repairs 23,173
Transportation 57,706
Rental of Equipment 4,889
Travel 14,091
Equipment and Other Supplias 156,712
Dues and Fees 4,775
Total Expenditures 742,735
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY)} OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES (640,662)
GENE FUND SUFPORT 640,662

This schedule includes additional information that is included in the body of the financial
statement.

The accompanying notes and auditor’s report should ba read with this Financizal statement,
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A CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM NEW CASTLE, PENNSYLVANIA

PHILIP WEINER AND COMPANY LTD

NEW CASTLE AREA SCHOOIL, DISTRICT
Capital Project Fund
Combining Balance Sheat

For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

CAPITAL
IMPROVEMENT
FUND
ASSETS
Cash $ 496,624
Dua from Other Funds 51,867
Total Assets 548,491
LIABRILITIES AND FUND BATANCES
LIABILITIES
Dua to Other Funds -0-
Accounts Payable -D-
Total Liabilities -0-
FURD BALANCE
Reserva for Capital Projects 548,491
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $ 548,491
Capital Project Fund
Combining Statement of Revenues and Expendituras
Fox the Year Ended June 30, 2016
CAPITAT,
IMPROVEMENT
¥FUND
REVENUES
Investment Earnings $ 913
Refunds -0-
State Subsidy-Social Security/Retirement ~0=
Total Revenues 913
XPENDITURES
Instruction -0~
Support Services 107,241
Noninstructional Services ~0=
Capital Outlay 154,024
Total Expenditures 301,265
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over
Expanditures {300,352)
NET CHANGES 1'Q FUND BALANCE {300,352}
FUND BALANCE-Beginning 848,843
FUND _BALANCE-Ending $ 548,491

The accompanying notes and auditor’s: report should be read with this financizl statement.
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A CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM NEW CASTLE, PENNSYLVANIA

PHILIP WEINER AND COMPANY LTD

NEW CASTLE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
Fiduciary Fund Types
Student Activity Fund

Combining Balance Sheet

For the Year Ended Jupe 30, 2016

JUNIOR/SENIOR
HIGH ELEMENTARY TOTAL
BEETS
Cash $ 40,426 $ 5,329 $ 45,755
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilitias
Other Current Lizbilities $ 40,426 $ 5,329 $ 45,755
Total Liabilities 40,426 5,329 45,755
Fund Balances == e -0-
Total Liabilities and Fund Balance $ 40,426 5 5,329 $ 45,755

The accompanying notes and auditor’s report should be read with this finasncial statement.
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A CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM NEW CASTLE, PENNSYLVANIA

PHILIP WEINER AND COMPANY LTD

NEW CASTLE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
Fiduciary Fund Types
Student Activity Fund
Statement of Revaenues and Expenditures
For the Year Ended Juna 30, 2016

BATLANCE BALANCE

IOR/SENIOR HIGH JULY 1, 2015 REVENUES TOTAL EXPENDITURES JUNE 30,2016
Acadenic Games ] 65 8 -0- 3 65 g 45 5 20
Art Club 403 -0- 403 -0- 403
Band 280 100 380 ll6 264
Busted 508 -0- 508 ~0- 508
Canes Cornar 999 127 1,126 267 859
Choir 3,528 -0~ 3,528 -0- 3,528
Drama Club 1,102 ~-0- 1,102 ~0- 1,102
Eye of the Hurricane 120 -0- 120 -0~ 120
French Club 631 -0~ 631 -0- 631
Freshman Class 1,093 -0- 1,093 -0- 1,093
Grade 7 1,615 -0~ 2,575 -0- 1,768
Grade 8 2,094 960 2,902 807 678
Italian Club 256 808 256 2,224 256
Junior Class 1,083 -0- 1,093 ~0- 1,093
Jr High Honors -0- 276 276 -0- 276
Make A Diffarence 61 ~0- 61 -0=- 61
National Honor Society 30 1,378 1,408 920 488
Par for the Cure 1 5,368 5,389 5,368 1
Pergodian 1,660 2,225 3,885 1,265 2,620
Senior Class 190,166 17,802 27,968 17,727 10,241
Service Learning 1,245 5,050 6,295 1,027 5,268
Sophomore Class 1,083 i,093 2,186 1,093 1,083
Spanish Club 1,862 231 2,093 T5 2,018
Student Council 4,349 6,558 10,907 4,870 6,037

Totals 5 34,254 $ 41,976 $ 76,230 ] 35,804 $ 40,426
ELEMENTARY
Pre-Kindergarten—Croton

School -4 740 8 -0~ S 740 $ 22 & 718
Harry W. Lockley School 1,727 -0~ 1,727 -0- 1,727
George Washington

Intermediate School 2,884 -0- 2,884 =0- 2,884

Total Elementary & _§,35] $ =Q- $ _5,35L 8§ 22 $ 5,329

The accompanying notes and auditor’s report should be read with this financial statement,
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ASSETS
Cash
Prepaid Expenses
Total Assets

LIABITTTIES AND NET POSITION

LIARILITIES
Accounts Payable
Scholarship Payable

Total Liabilities

RET POSITION
Reserved for Scholarship

RICHARD HAMILTON

-NEW CASTLE AREA
Fiduciary Fund Type-

Combining

For the ¥Year Ended

Reserved for Nonbudgeted $Student

Activities
Raeserved for Accumulated Death
Benafits

Total Net Position

Total Liabilities and Net
Position

REVENUES
Donations
Commissions

Total Revanues

EXPENDITURES
Scholarships

Btudent Activities
Other

Total Expenditures

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES

OVER EXPENDITURES

NET POSITION-JULY 1, 2015
NET POSITICN-JUNE 30, 2016

MEMORIAL OLSON PAUL BUILSON SR ACTIVITY
SCHOLARSHTIP SCHOLARSHIF PAUL BUILSON JR UMBRELLA
FUND FUND FUND FUND
T
$ 4,055 3 9,358 -0- $ 20,956 I
-0- -0- -0- 74 %
£
4,055 9,358 -0- 21,030 H
m
g
¥
Z
o
$ -o0- § =-0- ~0- $ -o- 3§
-0- -0~ -0- -0- 2
Z
-0- -0- -0~ -0- %
5
v)
4,085 9,358 -0- -0~
»
-0~ -0- -0~ 21,030 §
3
-0- -0- —0- -0~ 3
G
4,055 9,358 -0- 21,030 4
8
C
$ 4,055 $ 9,358 -0- $ 21,030 9
$ 4,305 $ 8,806 2,000 $ 1,208 §
=0~ -0- ~0- 1.394 4
Q
4,305 8,806 2,000 2,602 =
a
2
250 5,800 2,000 -0-
-0- -0~ -0- 15,044 Z
~-0— 1.274 ~0- -0- =
250 7.074 2,000 15.044 1
h
T
4,055 1,732 ~0- (12,442) ©
-4
-0~ 7.626 -0~ 33,472 4
r
<
$ 4,055 $ 9,358 ~0- $21,030 2%
-5

The accompanying notes and auditor’'s report should be read with this financial

statement.
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A CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM NEW CASTLE, PENNSYLVANIA

FPHILIP WEINER AND COMPANY LTD

S5CHOOL DISTRICT
Trust And Agency
Balance Sheet

June 30, 2016

COACH PAP
LIFE SCHOLARSHIP
SURANCE FOND

§ 11,000 $
-0~

$ 11,000 $

11.000

$ 11,000 3

509
=0-

509

MEREDITH/ANDY
WAWAZYNSKI

SCHO!

2_FUND

WILSON AND MOFFETT SIOUX OF 62
FAMILY SCHOLARSHIP SCHOLARSHIP

$ 1,000 $ -0-
~0= -

$§ 1,000 $ -0
8 -0~ 5 -0-
-0— -0-

-0- -0-
1,000 -0~
-Q= -0~

-0~ (-
1,000 -0-

$ 1,000 $ _ -0~
$ 1,000 5 1,000
s ~0-
1,000 i,000
-0- 1,000
-0~ -0~

-D— ~0-

-Q- 1,000
1,000 -0~
- -Q=

5 1,000 8§ —0-

-7

TOTAT,

$ 46,878
74

$ 46,952

14,922
21,030
11,000

46,952

$ 46,952
$ 20,319
1,394
21,713

11,050
15,044

1,274

27,368

{ 5,655}
52,607

3 46,952




NEW CASTLE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
Food Bervice
Statemant of Revenues and Expenditures

For the Year Ended Jung 30, 2016

A CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM NEW CASTLE, PENNSYLVANIA

FHILIP WEINER AND COMPANY LTD

REVENUE-Cafeteria Sales

COST _OF SALES

Beginning Inventory, July 1, 20185 ] 16,353
FPurchases 1,005,368
Total 1,021,721

Ending Inventory, June 30, 2016

Total Cost of Salas

19,588

s 112,815

1.002,133

GROSS (LOSS) ( B885,318)
OPERATING EXPENSES

Szlaries and Wages 817,773

Benefits 379,909

Supplias 56,166

Repairs and Maintenance 27,109

Insurance and Bonding 1040

Office Expense 473

Depreciation 1,089

Travel /Training 2,086

Total Operating Expenses 1.284,705

NET 88) BEFORE ND RATING EXPENSE) (2,174,023)
NONOPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSE)

State Subsidy 180,223

Federal Bubsidy 2,015,993

Interest Income
Total Noncperating Revenue {Expensa)

NET INCOME FOR THE YEAR

The accompanying notes and auditor’s report should be read with this finaneial atatement,
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NEW CASTLE AREA

Schedule of Federal Financial Assistance Statement as Required
For the Year Ended

FEDERAL PASS THROUGH GRANT PERIOD

SOURCE CEDA GRANTOR BEGINNING
GRANTOR PROGRAM TITLE CODE _NUMBER NUMEER DATE
U.8, DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATICN
Passed Through the Pennsylvania
Department of Education:
ECIA Title I-Improving Basic Programs I 84,010 013-160280 08-28-15
ECIA Title II-Improving Peacher
Quality I 84.367 020-180280 08-28-15
ECIA Title IT~Improving Teacher
Quality I 84,367 020-150280 08-15-14
Rural and Low Income Schools I 84,358 007-160280 08-28-15
Twenty First Century Community
Learning Centers (Cohort 7) I 84.287 FC4100068079 10-01-14
Twenty First Century Community
Learning Centeras Year 1 I B84.287 FC4100071648 01-06-16
Twenty First Century Community
Learning Centers (Cohort 8) I 84,287 FC4100068079 10-01-15
U.S. Department of Education
Inpact Aid D 84.041 48-PA-3002 N/A

Total U,8. Department of Education

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEATTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

Passed Through the Pennsylvania
Department of Welfare:

Madical Assistance Reimbursement for
Adninistration I 93,778 N/A 07-01-15

Total US Department of Health and
Human Services

SOURCE CODES:

D - Direct Funding

I - Indirecot Funding
S ~ 8tate Funding

The accompanying schedule of Fedaral Awards is prepared on the accrual basis of

accounting.
-81~
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A CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM NEW CASTLE, PENNSYLVANIA

PHILIP WEINER AND COMPANY LTD

SCHOOL, DISTRICT

by the Pennsylvania Department of Education

June 30, 2016

GRANT PERIOD PROGRAM

ENDING OR AWARD
___DATE  _AMOUNT

09-30-16 § 1,788,309

09-30-16 306,143
09-30-15 306,574
09-30-15 63,620
09-30-15 390,000
12-31-16 240,000
09-30-16 390,000

N/A N/a
06-13-16 N/A

TOTAL

$ 1,532,836
262,537

43,574
57,836

205,846
-0~

-
2,102,629
- 10,130

2,112,759

—. 35,873

ACCRUED COR
RECEIVED FOR (DEFERRED)AT REVENUE

—_THE YEAR 7-01-15

43,574
-0~

154,168
-0~

' I

197,742

(_7.1456)

190,596

23,730

-82~

RECOGNIZED _EXPENDI 8

$ 1,788,309 % 1,788,309

308,143 308,143
—0- —0-
63,620 63,620
71,169 71,169
122,885 122,885
376,225 376,225
2,730,351 2,730,351

10,130 0,130
2,740,481 740,481

47,973 47,873

ACCRUED OR

DISBURSEMENTS/ DEFERRED AT

6-30-16

$ 255,473
45,6086

_0.-.
5,784

19,491
122,885
376,225
825,464

(7,146}

818,318

35,830

oLt




GRANTOR PROGRAM TITLE

U.8., DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE

Passed Through the Pennsylvania
Department of Education:

National School Lunch Progranm
National School. Lunch Program
National School Lunch Program
National School Lunch Program

NEW CASTLE AREA
Schedule of Federal Financial Assistance Statement
For the Year Ended

S80URCE
CODE

School Breakfast Program
School Breakfast Progran
School Breakfast Program
8chool Breakfast Program
Special Milk Program
Special Milk Program

Fresh Fruit and Vegetable Program
Fresh Fruit and Vegetable Program
Summer Food Service Program 2016
Summer Food Service Program 2015
Child and Adult Care Program

HHMMHHHHOHODHODHNGODH

Passed Through the Pennsylvania

Department of Agriculturea:

Value of USDA Commodities

Total U.S. Department

of Agriculture

Totals
Less: State Programs
Total of Federal Programs

SOURCE CODES:

D - Direct Funding

I - Indirect Funding
8 - 8tate Funding

The accompanying schedule of
accounting.

FOOTNOTES :

FEDERAL
CFDA
NOMBER

10.555

N/A
10.555

N/A
10.553

N/2A
10.553

N/A
10.556
10.556
10.582
10.582
10.559
10.559
10.558

10.555

FASS~THROUGH GRANT PERIOD

GRANTOR
NUMBER

BEGINNING
DATE

N/A

07-01-15
07-01-15
07-01-14
07-01-14
07-01-15
07~-01-15
07-01-14
07-01-14
07-01-15
07-01-14
07-01-15
07-01-14
07-01-16
06-11-15
07-01-15

07~01-15

{A) Total amount of donated commodities received
from the Department of Agriculture

{B} Beginning inventory at July 1

(C} Total value of commodities used

(D) Ending inventory at June 30

Federal Awards is prepared on the accrual basis of

-83-
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A CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM NEW CASTLE, PENNSYLVANIA

PHILIP WEINER AND COMFANY LTD

SCHODOL DISTRICT
as Required by the Pennsylvania Department of Education
June 30, 2016 (Continued)

GRANT PERIOD PROGRAM TOTAL ACCRUED OR
ENDING OR AWARD RECEIVED FOR (DEFERRED)AT REVENUE

— DATE =~ _AMOQUNT _ THE YEAR = _ 7-01-15 = REGOGNIZED

06-30-16 N/A § 1,212,731 8 -0- & 1,233,587
06-30-16 N/A 53,868 -0- 54,795
06-30-15 N/Aa 33,005 33,005 ~0-
06-30-15 N/A 1,510 1,510 -0-
06-30-16 N/A 506,666 -0- 516,389
06-30-16 N/A 25,512 -0~ 26,005
06-30~15 N/A 13,471 13,471 -0~
06-30-15 N/a 714 714 -0-
06-30-~16 w/a 801 -0- 801
06-30-15 N/A 53 53 -0-
06-30-16 N/A 62,760 -0~ 62,760
06~30-15 N/a 5,628 5,628 -0~
08-18-16 N/A 0= -0~ 10,709
08-16-15 28,455 28,455 7,531 20,924
09-30-16 N/A 62,951 ~0-— 62,951

2,008,125 61,912 1,988,921
06-30-16 N/A  (A) 107,480 (B) (__8.840) 107,871

$ 2,115,605 $ 53,072 § 2,096,792

$ 4,264,237 $ 267,398 $ 4,885,246
81,604 2.224 80,800
$ 4.182 633 $ 265,174 $ 4,804,446

-84 -

ACCRUED OR

DISBURSEMENTS/ DEFERRED AT

EXPENDITURE

$ 1,233,587
54,795

_O_
516,389

1,988,921

{C) 107,871

$ 2,096,792

$ 4,885,246
80,800
5 4,804,446

__ 6-30-16

$ 20,856
a27

(D) (__8,4449)

5 _34,259

$ 888,407

1,420
3 886,987




APPENDIX C

SPECIMEN MUNICIPAL BOND INSURANCE POLICY
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MUNICIPAL BOND
INSURANCE POLICY

ISSUER:

BONDS: $ in aggregate principal amount of

ASSURED GUARANTY MUNICIPAL CORP. ("AGM"), i i i hereby
UNCONDITIONALLY AND IRREVOCABLY agrees to pay to the tr ing agent (the

"Paying Agent") (as set forth in the documentation providing for the i i onds) for
the Bonds, for the benefit of the Owners or, at the election of i ject only to
the terms of this Policy (which includes each endorsement i rincipal of and
interest on the Bonds that shall become Due for Payment but sh i Nonpayment by

the Issuer.

On the later of the day on which such
Business Day next following the Business Da ed Notice of Nonpayment,
AGM will disburse to or for the benefit of ea nt of principal of and interest
on the Bond that is then Due for Payment but i of Nonpayment by the Issuer, but

t and (b) evidence, including any
hts with respect to payment of such
in AGM. A Notice of Nonpayment will be
rior to 1:00 p.m. (New York time) on such
the next Business Day. If any Notice of
e deemed not to have been received by AGM for
purposes of the prec promptly so advise the Trustee, Paying Agent or
Owner, as appropi ed Notice of Nonpayment. Upon disbursement in
respect of a Bond, AG m®& theyowner of the Bond, any appurtenant coupon to the Bond or right

receive payment of the principal
appropriate instruments of assign
principal or interest that is Due for
deemed received on a given Busi

Owner, incl he payments under the Bond, to the extent of any payment by
AGM her . ‘ Trustee or Paying Agent for the benefit of the Owners shall, to
i n of AGM under this Policy.

or all purposes of this Policy. "Business Day" means any day other than (a) a
asday on which banking institutions in the State of New York or the Insurer's

to the principal of a Bond, payable on the stated maturity date thereof or the date
all have been duly called for mandatory sinking fund redemption and does not refer to
ich payment is due by reason of call for redemption (other than by mandatory sinking
, acceleration or other advancement of maturity unless AGM shall elect, in its sole
discretion, to pay such principal due upon such acceleration together with any accrued interest to the date
of acceleration and (b) when referring to interest on a Bond, payable on the stated date for payment of
interest. "Nonpayment" means, in respect of a Bond, the failure of the Issuer to have provided sufficient
funds to the Trustee or, if there is no Trustee, to the Paying Agent for payment in full of all principal and
interest that is Due for Payment on such Bond. "Nonpayment" shall also include, in respect of a Bond, any
payment of principal or interest that is Due for Payment made to an Owner by or on behalf of the Issuer
which has been recovered from such Owner pursuant to the



Page 2 of 2
Policy No. -N

United States Bankruptcy Code by a trustee in bankruptcy in accordance with a final, nonappealable order
of a court having competent jurisdiction. "Notice" means telephonic or telecopied notice, subsequently
confirmed in a signed writing, or written notice by registered or certified mail, from an Owner, the Trustee or
the Paying Agent to AGM which notice shall specify (a) the person or entity making the claim, (b) the Policy
Number, (c) the claimed amount and (d) the date such claimed amount became Due for Payment. "Owner"
means, in respect of a Bond, the person or entity who, at the time of Nonpayment, is entitled under the
terms of such Bond to payment thereof, except that "Owner" shall not include the Issuer gr any person or
entity whose direct or indirect obligation constitutes the underlying security for the Bonds.

AGM may appoint a fiscal agent (the "Insurer's Fiscal Agent") for purposes o
giving written notice to the Trustee and the Paying Agent specifying the name and notice a
Insurer's Fiscal Agent. From and after the date of receipt of such notice by
Agent, (a) copies of all notices required to be delivered to AGM pur,

(including, without limitation, the defense of fra i Pgation, assignment or
otherwise, to the extent that such rights and d ; to avoid payment of its
obligations under this Policy in accordance wit

This Policy sets forth in full
affected by any other agreement or in
the extent expressly modified by al
nonrefundable for any reason wha
Bonds prior to maturity and (b) t
COVERED BY THE PROPERTY/C

M, and@shall not be modified, altered or
ification or amendment thereto. Except to
®mium paid in respect of this Policy is
ovision being made for payment, of the
ed or revoked. THIS POLICY IS NOT

ever, including pa
Policy may not be

MUNICIPAL CORP. has caused this Policy to be

ASSURED GUARANTY MUNICIPAL CORP.

By

Authorized Officer

A subsidiary of Assured Guaranty Municipal Holdings Inc.
1633 Broadway, New York, N.Y. 10019
(212) 974-0100

Form 500NY (5/90)
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SUMMARY OF OUTSTANDING ANNUAL DEBT SERVICE
(INCLUDING THIS ISSUE)
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New Castle Area School District
General Obligation Bonds, Series of 2017

SUMMARY OF DEBT SERVICE PRIOR TO STATE REIMBURSEMENT BUT AFTER FEDERAL SUBSIDY ON THE QSCBS

Series 0of 2011 Series A of 2011 Series C 0of 2011 Series 0f 2012 Series 0of 2017 Semi-Annual Annual
Date Debt Service Debt Service Debt Service Debt Service Debt Service Debt Service Debt Service
QSCBS
9/1/2017
3/1/2018 - 2,690,701.25 44,856.25 6,952.50 91,846.64 2,834,356.64 2,834,356.64
9/1/2018 5,000.00 420,326.25 39,796.25 6,952.50 146,304.38 618,379.38
3/1/2019 - 2,750,326.25 44,796.25 56,952.50 211,304.38 3,063,379.38 3,681,758.75
9/1/2019 4,900.00 387,123.75 39,728.75 6,296.25 145,654.38 583,703.13
3/1/2020 - 2,787,123.75 44,728.75 56,296.25 285,654.38 3,173,803.13 3,757,506.25
9/1/2020 4,800.00 327,123.75 39,653.75 5,640.00 142,854.38 520,071.88
3/1/2021 - 2,842,123.75 44,653.75 55,640.00 292,854.38 3,235,271.88 3,755,343.75
9/1/2021 4,700.00 286,255.00 39,550.00 4,983.75 141,354.38 476,843.13
3/1/2022 - 2,886,255.00 44,550.00 54,983.75 296,354.38 3,282,143.13 3,758,986.25
9/1/2022 4,600.00 242,705.00 39,446.25 4,327.50 139,804.38 430,883.13
3/1/2023 - 2,927,705.00 44,446.25 54,327.50 299,804.38 3,326,283.13 3,757,166.25
9/1/2023 2,474,500.00 175,580.00 39,342.50 3,671.25 138,204.38 2,831,298.13
3/1/2024 - 760,580.00 44,342.50 58,671.25 293,204.38 1,156,798.13 3,988,096.25
9/1/2024 2,425,000.00 164,465.00 39,238.75 2,949.38 136,654.38 2,768,307.50
3/1/2025 - 809,465.00 44,238.75 57,949.38 301,654.38 1,213,307.50 3,981,615.00
9/1/2025 2,375,500.00 152,210.00 39,135.00 2,227.50 134,901.25 2,703,973.75
3/1/2026 - 867,210.00 44,135.00 57,227.50 304,901.25 1,273,473.75 3,977,447.50
9/1/2026 2,326,000.00 138,625.00 39,031.25 1,320.00 132,946.25 2,637,922.50
3/1/2027 - 918,625.00 44,031.25 61,320.00 302,946.25 1,326,922.50 3,964,845.00
9/1/2027 2,276,500.00 122,537.50 38,927.50 330.00 130,863.75 2,569,158.75
3/1/2028 - 992,537.50 43,927.50 20,330.00 340,863.75 1,397,658.75 3,966,817.50
9/1/2028 2,227,000.00 104,593.75 38,823.75 - 128,133.75 2,498,551.25
3/1/2029 - 1,054,593.75 43,823.75 - 383,133.75 1,481,551.25 3,980,102.50
9/1/2029 2,177,500.00 85,000.00 38,720.00 - 124,691.25 2,425911.25
3/1/2030 - 1,040,000.00 43,720.00 - 389,691.25 1,473,411.25 3,899,322.50
9/1/2030 - 64,706.25 38,616.25 - 120,981.25 224,303.75
3/1/2031 - 3,109,706.25 43,616.25 - 390,981.25 3,544,303.75 3,768,607.50
9/1/2031 - - 38,508.75 - 116,931.25 155,440.00
3/1/2032 - - 603,508.75 - 2,591,931.25 3,195,440.00 3,350,880.00
9/1/2032 - - 26,361.25 - 79,806.25 106,167.50
3/1/2033 - - 621,361.25 - 2,634,806.25 3,256,167.50 3,362,335.00
9/1/2033 - - 13,420.00 - 40,842.50 54,262.50
3/1/2034 - - 623,420.00 - 2,675,842.50 3,299,262.50 3,353,525.00
9/1/2034 - - - - - -
3/1/2035 - - - - - - -

Total 16,306,000.00  29,108,203.75 3,056,456.25 579,348.75  14,088,702.89  63,138,711.64  63,138,711.64



New Castle Area School District
General Obligation Bonds, Series of 2017

SUMMARY OF DEBT SERVICE AFTER CREDIT FOR BOTH STATE REIMBURSEMENT AND FEDERAL SUBSIDY ON THE QSCBS

Series of 2011 Series A of 2011 Series C of 2011 Series of 2012 Series 0of 2017 Semi-Annual Annual
Date Debt Service Debt Service Debt Service Debt Service Debt Service Debt Service Debt Service
QSCBS

9/1/2017
3/1/2018 - 2,107,910.43 34,563.21 5,480.12 72,288.79 2,220,242.55 2,220,242.55
9/1/2018 3,852.66 329,285.94 30,664.32 5,480.12 115,150.29 484,433.33
3/1/2019 - 2,154,620.99 34,516.98 44,891.24 166,309.18 2,400,338.39 2,884,771.72
9/1/2019 3,775.61 303,274.91 30,612.31 4,962.85 114,638.70 457,264.38
3/1/2020 - 2,183,448.35 34,464.97 44,373.97 224,827.08 2,487,114.37 2,944,378.75
9/1/2020 3,698.56 256,270.58 30,554.52 4,445.57 112,434.94 407,404.16
3/1/2021 - 2,226,535.66 34,407.18 43,856.70 230,493.91 2,535,293.45 2,942,697.61
9/1/2021 3,621.50 224,253.77 30,474.57 3,928.30 111,254.35 373,532.50
3/1/2022 - 2,261,108.33 34,327.24 43,339.43 233,248.62 2,572,023.61 2,945,556.11
9/1/2022 3,544.45 190,136.46 30,394.63 3,411.03 110,034.40 337,520.97
3/1/2023 - 2,293,580.49 34,247.30 42,822.16 235,963.97 2,606,613.92 2,944,134.89
9/1/2023 1,906,683.54 137,550.36 30,314.69 2,893.76 108,775.11 2,186,217.45
3/1/2024 - 595,842.63 34,167.35 46,246.00 230,769.38 907,025.36 3,093,242.81
9/1/2024 1,868,542.16 128,842.80 30,234.75 2,324.76 107,555.17 2,137,499.64
3/1/2025 - 634,139.41 34,087.41 45,677.00 237,420.03 951,323.86 3,088,823.50
9/1/2025 1,830,400.79 119,242.17 30,154.80 1,755.77 106,175.35 2,087,728.87
3/1/2026 - 679,377.17 34,007.47 45,108.00 239,975.52 998,468.16 3,086,197.03
9/1/2026 1,792,259.41 108,599.60 30,074.86 1,040.45 104,636.65 2,036,610.97
3/1/2027 - 719,655.97 33,927.52 48,333.80 238,436.81 1,040,354.11 3,076,965.09
9/1/2027 1,754,118.03 95,996.56 29,994.92 260.11 102,997.60 1,983,367.22
3/1/2028 - 777,559.44 33,847.58 16,024.56 268,280.15 1,095,711.74 3,079,078.96
9/1/2028 1,715,976.66 81,939.33 29,914.97 - 100,848.92 1,928,679.88
3/1/2029 - 826,174.65 33,767.64 - 301,549.17 1,161,491.46 3,090,171.35
9/1/2029 1,677,835.28 66,589.48 29,835.03 - 98,139.47 1,872,399.26
3/1/2030 - 814,741.82 33,687.70 - 306,710.32 1,155,139.84 3,027,539.10
9/1/2030 - 50,691.24 29,755.09 - 95,219.48 175,665.81
3/1/2031 - 2,436,161.29 33,607.75 - 307,725.62 2,777,494.67 2,953,160.47
9/1/2031 - - 29,672.26 - 92,031.89 121,704.14
3/1/2032 - - 465,023.32 - 2,040,004.89 2,505,028.21 2,626,732.35
9/1/2032 - - 20,312.21 - 62,812.29 83,124.50
3/1/2033 - - 478,779.25 - 2,073,750.08 2,552,529.34 2,635,653.84
9/1/2033 - - 10,340.55 - 32,145.49 42,486.04
3/1/2034 - - 480,365.59 - 2,106,048.06 2,586,413.65 2,628,899.69
9/1/2034 - - - - - -
3/1/2035 - - - - - - -

Total 12,564,308.65 22,803,529.82 2,355,099.95 456,655.72 11,088,651.68 49,268,245.82 49,268,245.82

EST. Eff Reim 22.95% 21.66% 22.95% 21.18% 21.29%
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